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New Hampshire Veterans Home /.-'f“q,%
139 Winter Street 1"-.’5___' & l
Tilton, NH 03276-5415 et

—

www.nh.gov/veterans
Kimberly M. MacKay

Commandant Fax: {603) 286-4242
May 15, 2024 \ 6 8
His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Veterans Home to enter into Sole Source contracts, with the vendors
listed below, to continue to provide Department of Veteran Affairs (VA) required specialized rehabilitative
services and radiology and other diagnostic services, per 38 CFR part 51, when the State Veterans Home does
not provide the services in house, in an amount not to exceed $150,000, shared among all vendors with no
maximum or minimum service volume guarantee, with the option to renew for four (4) additional years,
effective July 1, 2024 upon Governor and Council approval, through June 30, 2029. 39% Federal Funds. 32%
Other Funds. 29% General Funds.

Funds are available in State Fiscal Year 2025 and are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal
Year 2026 through State Fiscal Year 2029, to support this request, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within the price
limitation and encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if needed and justified,
without approval from Governor and Council.

Vendor Name Vendor Code Price Limitation
Shared by All

L Vendors

Concord Hospital, Inc, 177653-B014

Concord, NH

Concord Hospital — Franklin 355355-B001 $150,000
| Franklin, NH

Concord Hospital - Laconia 355356-B002

Laconia, NH

05-043-043-430010-5359 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, NH VETERANS HOME, VETS
HOME PROFESSIONAL CARE

Telephone: (603) 527-4400

State Fiscal Year | Class/Account Class Title Amount
2025 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers $30,000.00
| 2026 101-500729 | Medical Payments to Providers £30,000.00
2027 101-560729 Medical Payments to Providers $30,000.00
2028 | 101-500729 | Medical Payments to Providers $30,000.00
2029 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers $30,000.00
= - Total: $150,000.00




His Excelléncy, Governor Christopher T. Simunu
and the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

These contracts are sole source because the Contractors represent an established and essential
medical resource network to the New Hampshire Veterans Home since 2011. The New Ha;mpshlre Veterans
Home is a certified State Veterans Home (SVH). State Veteran Homes that provide nursing home care to
eligible veterans are recognized and certified by the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs (VA). As such, there
are regulations; rcqmrements, and procedures that the State Veterans Home must abide by to be in compliance
with provision of services to the residents by the state home as follows:

1. Specialized rehabilitation services, per 38 CFR 51.160 regulation guidance, such as but not limited to,
physical therapy, speech therapy, occupational therapy, and mental health services for mental illness
are required in the resident's comprehensive plan of care. The NH Veterans Home must provide the
required services or obtain the required services from an outside resource, from a provider of
specialized rehabilitative services.

2. Radiology and other diagnostic services, per 38 CFR 51. 120(n) regulation guidance. Accordmgly, the
NH Veterans Home must provide or obtain radiology and other diagnostic services to meet the needs
of its residents. If the State home does not provide its own radiology and diagnostic services, it must
have an agreement to obtain these services. The services must meet all applicable certification
standards, statutes, and regulations.

- This contract serves as a coordinated effort between the New Hampshire Veterans Home and the
Contractors to ensure that the veterans are receiving the required services as stated above.

Respectfully Submitted,

\ | . }%WM v

Kimberly MacKay
Commandant -



FORM N UMBER P-37 (versmn 2/23/2023)

Nguc 'I‘hrs agreement and all of jts atlachments shall become pubhc upon submnssxon to Govemor and }
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must !
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior 1o signing the contract, !ﬁ

AGREEMENT .
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor bereby mutually agree as foliowsz
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1, IDENTIFICATION, _ S
+ 1.1 State Agency Name i 1.2 Stato Agcncy Address
New Hampshire Veterans Home 139 Winter Street, Tilton, NH 03726
13 Contractor Name T L 4 Contractor Address T
Concord Hospital, Inc. 250 Pleasant Street, Concord, NH 03301
115 Contractor Phone | 1.6 Account Unit Sn&"c':laéé‘ T "Completion Date “T1.8 Price Limitation
Number 010-043.53590000-101~ | 6/36/2029 { $150,000.00
(603)225-2711 1500729 : ‘
115 Cﬁh&acting Officer for State Agencj T U0 Sate Agency Tclééhoﬁé Number -
Kimberly MacKay | 603-527-4400 i
T[TIT Conmactor Sigmamare ~ T 112 Natne and Title of Contractor Signatory ]
/// Yy / 5’}" Date: o fas/:?agf Robonk P Sreignasee Prosidond £ CE
13 State Agency Signature o B ]Qi4 Namé and Ti'tlé of g}gté Aéency Sigﬁéthj;':- T
Kimberly Mackay, MS NHA
I SURA i Date: 5 2)’2021[- Commandani
i 1.15 ‘ Apprt;iral by the N. H Departmem of Admunstrauon, Dmsxon of Persontiel {if applwable)
By:  Director, On:
“1.16 Approval by the Afforney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (7 applicable)
gy, byn A. %W On: 6/11/24
1 17 Approval by the Govemnor and Executive Cmmcil (zf applicable) R
G&C Item number: G&C Mecting Date;
Page 1 of 4 ) 2
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2, SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified . in block 1.1
(“State™), engages contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor™)
to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of
goods, or both, identified and more particularly described in the
attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated hercin by reference
(**Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement fo_the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Govemor and

Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,

this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive Couricil
approve this Agreenient, unless no such approval is required, in

which case the Agreement shall become effective on the date the.

Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block 1.13
(“Effective Date").

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effecnve
Date, all Services performed by the Comiractor prior to the
Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor,
and i the event that this Agréement does not become cffective, the
State shall have no liability to the Contractor, including withont
limitation, any cbligation to pay the Contractor for any costs
_incurred or Services performed.

3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by the Compleuon Date

specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary,
all obligations of the State hereunder, including, without limitation,
the continuance of payments hersunder, are contingent upon the
.availability and contimvied appropriation of funds. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments herennder in excess of sich
available appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or
termination of appropriated-funds by any state or federal legislative
or executive action that reduces; eliminates or otherwise modifies
the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreemem and

 the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole orin part,

the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such finds

“become available; if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or

terminate the Services under this Agreement unmedlatcly upon
- giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination. The
State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account

“Gr source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds

in that Account are reduced os unavailable:

5, CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT. -
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment

are identified and more particularly described m EXHIBIT C.

which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 Notwithstanding- any provision in this Agrecment to the
contrary, snd notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shail the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. The
paymient by the State of the contract price shall be the only and the
complete reimbursement to the Contractor. for all expenses, of
whatever pature incurred by the Contractor in the performance
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hereof, and shall be the only and the complete compensmon to the
Contractor for the Services.

53 The State sescrves the right to offset from any. amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required ‘or permztted by N.H..RSA 80:7
through RSA. 80:7-c or any other provision of law, -

5:4 The State’s liability under this Agreement shall be limited to

- monetary damages not to exceed (he total fees paid. The Contractor

agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this .
Agreement by the State and hereby waives any right ‘to specific
parfomaance orother equitable remedies against the State.

6. COMPLIAI\ CEBY CON TRACTOR WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

‘6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the‘

Contractor _ shall comply with all applicable -statutes, laws,
rcguiaﬂons and orders of federal,, state, county or ‘municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including; but not limited to, civil rights. and egual:
employment opportumty laws and the Gavernor’s order on Respect
and Civility in the Workplace Executive order 2020-01. In
addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all federal
executive orders, rules, rcgu}auons and statutes, and with any ules,
regulations and guidelines as the State or the United Statés issue to
‘implement these regulations. The Conteactor shall alse comply
with all apphcable intellectual property laws, -

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, ihie Contractor shall not -
discrimitiate apgainst employees or appllcants for cmployment
because of age, sex, sexuval ordentation, race, color, marital status,
physical or mental disability, religious creed, national origin, .
gender identity, or gender expression, and will take affirmative
action to prevent such discrimination, unless-éxempt by state or
federal Jaw, The Contractor shall ensure any subcontractors
comply with these nondxscnmmauon requirements.

6.3 No payruents of transfers of value by Contractor or its
representatives in conneclion with this Agreement have or shall be
made which have the purpose or effect of public or commercial
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks,
ot other unlawful or improper means of btaining business.

64. The Contractor agrees to-permit the Staté or United States
access to any of the Contractor’s books, records and accaunts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance: with this Agreement and
all rules, regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL. : ‘
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provxde all personncl
niecessary 1o perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be: qualified to perform the
Services, and shall be properly licensed and o(hervme authonzed

te do so under all spplicable laws,

" 9.2 Th& Costracling Officer’ specified . in block 1.9, or any

successor, shall be the State’s point of comtact peﬂammg to this-

‘Agreement.
Conuactor lmuals / f/
Date ¢,



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder (“Event

of Default”):
8.1.1 failure to performn the Services satisfactorily or on schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or

. 8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, termm or condition of

this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may

take any one, or mofe, or all, of the following actions:

8.2.] give the Contractor a writen notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a

greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) calendar days
from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely

cured, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) calendar days

after giving the Coniracior notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of

Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price which

would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the period from
the date of such notice until such time as the Sfate determines that
thé Contractor has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid

to the Contractor;

8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may owe
to the Contracior any damages thé State suffers by reason of any

Event of Default; andfor.

8.2:4 give the Contractor a written notice sporifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the Agreement

and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both.

7

9, TERMINAT]ON

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate ¢the Agresment for any reason, in whole or in
part, by thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the Contracior

that the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.

9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any
veason other than the completion of the Services, the Contractor

shall, at the State’s discretion, deliver to the Contracting Officer,

- not later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the date of

termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in' detail

all Services-performed, and the contract price earned, to and

ingluding the date of termination. -In addition, at the State’s

discretion, the Contractor shall, within fifieen (15) calendar days

of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State 2
transition plan for Services urider the Agreement.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “Property” shall mean
all data, information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, plctonal reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
rcprcsentahom computer programs, computer priniouts, notes,
{etters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether finished or

unfinished.
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10.2 Alt data and any Property which has been received from the
State, or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be retarned
to the State npon demand or upon termination of this Agree.ment
for any reason.

10.3 Disclosure of data, infornation and other records shall be
govemed by N.H. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other applicable law.
Disclosureé requires prior writlen approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTORS RELATION TO THE STATE. .In the
_performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects an
‘independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of"
the State, Nejther the Contractor nor any of its officers, mnployees,
agents or members shall have authority to bind the State or receive
any benefits, workers' compensation or other emoluments
provided by the State to its employees. -

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATIDN]SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 Contractor shall provide the State writtennotice at least fifteen .
(15) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Agrezment. No such -
assignment, delegation, or other transfer shall be effective wuhout
the written consent of the State.

12.2 For purposes of paragrph 12, a Change of Contral shall

constitte assignment. “Change of Confrol" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or @ transaction or séries of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its “affiliates, becomes the direct
or indirect owner of fifty percent (§6%) or more of the voting
shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting power of the
Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or subslantia]ly all of the assets of
the Contractor.

12.3 None of the Services shall be suhcontracred by the Centractor
withou! prior written notice and consent of the State.

124 The State is entitled to copics of all subcontracts and
assipnment agreernents and shall not be bound by any provisions
contained in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it

is not a party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the State, its officers, and employees
from and against all actioms, claims, damages, demands,
judgments, fines, liabilities, losses, and othér expenses, including,
without limitation, reasonable atorneys’ fees, arising out of or
relating to this Agreement directly or indirectly arising from death, -
personal  injury, property damage, intellectual property
infringement, or other claims asserted against the State; its officers,
or employees caused by the acts or omissions of negfigence,
reckless or willful misconduct, .or fraud by the Contractor, -ils
employees, agents, or subconiractors. The State shall not be liable
for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under this
paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing- herein
contained shall be deered to constilute a waiver of the State’s
sovereign immunity, which immunity is hereby reserved fo the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the termination
of this Agregment.

Contractor Initials // /
Date_+ fax /o



14. INSURANCE.
14.1 The Contractor shall,” at its sole expense, obtain and
contimously maintain in force, and shall require dny subcontractor
or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims of
‘bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate or excess;
and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Property
_ subject to sabparagraph -10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the Property. |
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State of
New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insirance, and issued
by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall farnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or any successor, a-certificate(s) of
insurance for afl insurance required under this Agreement. At the
request of the Contracting Ofﬁcer, or ay successar, the Contractor
shall provide certificate(s) of insurance for all renewal(s) of
insurance required under this Agreement. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
mcorpomled herein by reference.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreesient, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
~ warrants that the Contracior is in compliance with or exempt from,
the requirements of N.H. RSA chapler 281-A (“Workers'
Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 28[-A, Contractor shall maintain, and require
any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain, payment of
Workers’ Compensation in connection with activities which the
- person proposes 0 undertake pursuant to this Agreement. The
Contractor shall farsish the Contracting Officer identified in black
1.9, or any successor; proof of Workers® Compensation in the
manner described in N.H, RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are incorporated
herein by reference. The State shall not be responsible for payment
of any Workers’ Compensation preminms or for any other claim or
benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of
Contractor, which might arise under applicable State of New
Hampshire Workers’ Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16, WAIVER OF BREACH. A State's failure to enforce jts rights
with respect to any single or continvinp breach of this Agreement
shall not act as a waiver of the right of the State to later enforce any
such rights or fo enforce any other or any subsequent breach.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shail

be deemed to have heen duly delivered or given at the time of
mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States Post

Office addressed lo the parties at the addresses given in blacks 1.2

and 1.4, herein,
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18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged only by an insiniment in writing signed by the parties
hercto and only after approval of such amendment, waiver or
discharge by the Governor and Executive Couneil of the State of
New Hampshire unless no.such approval is required under the
circumstances pursnaat to Staté law, rale or policy.

19, CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.

19.1 This Agreement shall be govemed, inteipreted and consirued
in accordance with the laws of the State of New Hampshire except
where the Federal supremacy clause. requires otherwise, The
wording used in this Agreement is the wording chosen by the
parties to express their mutual intent, and ne rule of construction
shall be applied against or in favor of any party, - -
19.2 Any actions arising out of this Agreement, mc]udmg the

- breach or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted to bmdmg

arbitration, but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the
Mertimack County Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall
have exclusive jurisdiction thereof, :

20. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict between
the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any
other portion of this Agreement inclading any attachments thereto,
the terms of the P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall eontrol.

21. THIRD PARTIES, This Agreement is being entered into for

thi& sole benefit of the parties hereto, and nothing herein, express or
izplied, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,

benefit, or remedy of any nature upon any other parson :

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are for
refereénce purposes only, and the words contained therein shall in
no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or mcanmg of the provisions of this

‘Agreement.

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated

herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along with its
agents and affiliates, shall, at its own cost and expense, execute any
additional documents and take such further actions as may be
reasonably required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement
and give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby:.

25. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this

Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreernent will remaia in full force and effect.

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of ¢ounterparts, each of which shall bo
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreemenl and
understanding between the paities, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings w:th sespect 10 the Sl-lb_] ecl matter

hereof.
Contractor Initials ,i/ !
Date o4
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New Hampshire Veterans Home

Exhibit A

AT e AT T e NSRS et S Fan H e A S A2 L T S RGN Ubls 1 o SN i

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by deleting subparagraph 33
in its entirety and replacing it as follows:

3.3. Contractor must complete all Services by the Completlon Date specified in block 1.7,
The parties may extend the Agreement for up to four (4) additional years from the
Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties, and approval of the Goevernor and Executive Council,

Appendix A - Revislons to Standard Contract Provisions Contractor Initials,»;{,/ ;;7 Lf

A

Date _¢-/# lz g
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New Hampshire Veterans Home

Exhibit B

- Scope of Services

1. Regulation and Purpose

1.1. The New Hampshire Veteranis Home is a certified State Veterans Home (SVH). State veteran
homes that provide nursing home care to eligible veterans are recognized and certified by the U.S.
Department of Veterans Affairs (VA). As such, there are regulations, requirements, and
procedures that the state veterans home must abide by to be in compliance with provision of

services to the residents by the state home as follows:

111,

Specialized rehabilitation services, per 38 CFR 51.160 regulation guidance, such as but not
limited to, -physical therapy, speech therapy, occupational therapy, and mental health -
services for mental illness are required in the resident's comprehensive plan of care, the
NH Veterans Home must provide the required services; or obtain the required services
from an outside resource, from a provider of specialized rehabilitative services.

Radiology and other diagnostic services; per 38 CFR 51.120(n) regulation guidance.
Accordingly, the NH Veterans Home must provide or obtain radiology and other diagrostic
services to meet the needs of its residents. If the state home does not provide its own
diagnostic services, it must have an agreement to obtain these services. The services must
meet all applicable certification standards, statutes, and regulations.

1.2. This contract serves as a coordinated effort between the New Hampshire Veterans Home and
Concord Hospital, Inc. to ensure that the veterans are receiving these services. -

2. Statement of Work

2. The Contractor will provide the following provision of service to the residents of the New
Hampshire Veterans Home, as described in U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs (VA) CFR 38
Part 51, such as, but not limited to: }

2.2. Specialized -Rél;abilitéﬁve Services: As defined in 38 CFR 51.160, these include, but are not

limited to:

(a)
(b)
©
@
{e)

Physical Therapy;

Speech Therapy;

Occupational Therapy; and

Mental health services for mental illness. ‘ .

These services must be provided under the written order of a physician by qualified
personnel. ~ “Qualified Persormel” means a physical therapist, occupational therapist,

* respiratory therapist, speech-language pathologist, physician, nurse practitioner, clinical

nurse specialist, or physician’s assistant, who is licensed or certified by the state to famnish
therapy services. Qualified personnel may also include a physical therapist assistant (PTA),

Contractor inItiafs 4/ /(

v y
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New Hampshire Veterans Home

_Exhibit B

or an occupational therapy assistant (OTA) when furnishing services under the supervision

- of a qualified therapist.
2.3. Radiology and other diagnostic services: As defined in 38 CFR §1.210 (n), the Contractor
will provide radiology and other diagnostic services to meet the needs of NHVH residents.
Radiologic and other diagnostic services must be available 24 hours a-day, seven days a week.

3. Reporting
3.1. The Contractor shall maintain records pertaining to contract activities.

3.2, - The Contractor shall provide the Department with reports and/or documentation as requested
by the Department.

4. By signing this contract, the Coniractor is aftesting to the fact that their corporation and individuals
within their corporation have never been excluded from participating in Umted States Government
federally funded, including VA funded programs or services.

5. By signing this coniract, the Contrzct is attesting to the fact that thelr corporauon and mdlvxduals within
their corporation are not currently excluded from participating in United States Government federally

funded, including VA funded, programs or services.

6. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contracior agrees that funding under this contraet |
may be withheld, in whole, or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any State or Federal law, rule
or regulation. applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have not been completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General  Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting

encumbrances between State Fiscal Years may be made by written agreement of both parties and may
be made without further approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

Contractor initials _/_Zj / /
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New HampShire Veterans Home

Exhlblt C

R A AT T AN SRR RIS AR R TR 5 TR A A R P e SRS N

Method and Condltmns Precedent to Pavment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37 General Prowsmns, Price
Limitation, Block 1.8, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of
Services.

1.1, This Agreement is one [6)) of mulnple Agreements that wﬂl provide Department of Vetemn Affairs
(VA) required speclahzed rehabzhtatwe services and radiology and other dlagnosnc services, to
Veteran residents, per 38 CFR part 51, when the State Veterans Home does not provide the
services in house. No maximum or minimum service volume is guaranteed. Accordingly, thie price
limitation among all Agreements is identified in Form P-37, Genera] Provisions. Block 1.8, Pnce
Limnitation. '
'1.2. The State shall pay the Contractors among all agreements an amount not to exceed $30 000 for
State Fiseal Year (SFY) 2025; $30, 000 for SFY 2026; $30, 000 for SFY 2027, $30 000 for SFY
- 2028; and $30,000 for SFY 2029 for the services provided by the Contractors pursuant to
- Bxhibit B, Scope of Services, for a total contract value listed on the Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price
'antatlon of $150,000, with consideration for paragraph 1.1 of this Exhlblt C.

2, The Contractor agrees 10 prov1de the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Serwces in comphance with
~ funding reqmrements

3, The NHVH will devise a mechamsm to notify the Contractor 1f the mdmduai isa prevaﬂmg, basis, or’
no rate mdmdual '

4. The Veteran residents, at New Hampshlre Veterans Home, fall into one of three ehglblhty categones
“that determme the Contractors billing for services rendered: .

4.1, Veteran residents, with 0% up to 69% Servme—Connected (SC) dlsablhty, for whom the
Department of Veterans Affairs pays the New Hampshire Veterans Home a basic per diem rate:
-4.1.1.  The Contractor shall first bill the resident’s insurance for services rendered.
4.1.2. Ifthere is a balance remaining, after insurance reimburses the Contractor the Contractor
will bill the resident.

4.2, Veteran re51dents, w:th 70% up to 100% SC d1sa¥nhty, for. whem the Department of Veterans
Affairs pays the New Hampshire Veterans Home a prevailing per diem rate:
42.1. The Contractor shall bill the New Hampshire Veterans Home for all services rendered
42.2. - The Contractor cannot bill the resident’s insurance for services rendered ’

43. Veteran resident for whoin the New Hampshire Veterans Home receives no per- diem rate:
43.1.  The Contractor shall first bill the resident’s insurance for services refidered.
432, Hfthere is a balance remaining, after insurance reimburses the Contractor, the
Conn'actor will bill the resident.

Exhibit C ~ " Contractor Initials o .
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5. The Contractor will be solely responsible for billing third party payers for services rendered by the .
Contractor, except for 70% SC Veterans or prevailing rate Vetérans, as listed in 4.2 above. The New
- Hampshire Veterans Home shall reimburse the Contractor for services rendered to SC Veterans not to
exceed the Medicare Fee Schedule, of the year in which the service is provided, for the procedure code
of the service provided. ' ' , .

6. TheContractor will submit an invoice to NHVH 1o later than 30 days afier the service is rendered, per
Exhibit B, to the following:

6.1. - Email: AccountsPavable@@nhvhnh.eov

6.2, Mail: NH Veterans Home
' 139 Winter Street

Tilton, NH 03276
ATTN: Business Office

7. NHVH has up to 30 déys to pay the Contractor, per invoicé submission.
8. The Contractor is responsible for paying their own license, taxes, and insurance cosfs;

9. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this contract
may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any State or Federal law, rule
or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have not been completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. ' '

10. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting amounts-
~ between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits. within the price
limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by -written
~ agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive
Council, .

Exhibit C Contractor Initials 4 1/
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CER’I’IF TCATION, REGARDIN G DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHBR
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding charment
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s
represcntative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following

Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary pamclpant is provxdmg the
certification set ant below.

2. The inabilit.ybof a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the cerlification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Veterans Home (NHVH) determination whether to entet into
this transaction. However; failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an
explanatidn’ shall disqualify such person from participation in this fransaction. ‘

3. The certification in this clause is a material representanon of fact npon which reuance was giaced
when NEHVH determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knewingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, NHVH may terminate this transaction for cause or defanlt.

4, The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the NHVH agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant leams
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “Jower tiér covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principa! » “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules 1mp]ementmg Bxecutive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part ‘76 See the

attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excludecl
from partmxpatmn in this covered transaction, unless anthorized by NHVH.

7. The prospe’ctwe primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it wi}l include the
olause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Inelj gibility and Voluntary Exclusion
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by NHVH, without modification, in all ]ower tier
covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. ‘

Exhibit D~ Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsi'b_ility Matters
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A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarmed, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded

- from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each -

participant may, but is not required to, check the Office of Inspector General Exclusion Database:
https://exclosions.oig.hhs.zov/

Nothing contained in the for:‘agoiﬁg shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
_in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

information of a participant is not rcqu]red to exceed that which is normally possessed by 2 prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

Except for transactions suthorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participantina
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in -
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, NHVH may tenminate thls transaction
for cause or default. :

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

1.

12.

13.

14,

The prospectwe primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and behef ihat it and its

principais: .

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year pertod preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State-or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; viclation of Federal or State antitrust -
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsxﬁcauon, or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmcnta] cnmy
(Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (D{b)

- of this certification; and

11.4, have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more pubhc

transactions (Federal State, or local) terminated for cause or default.

Where the prospecnve primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).
LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS. N

By signing and submiiting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

*13.2. where the.prospective lower tiér participant is unable to certify to-any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal {contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposél (contréct) that it will

- Exhibit D — Certification Regarding Debarment Suspenslon and Other ReSponSIbmty Matters

Ve ndor lm’na Is /// /j

Concord Hospital, Inc. Page 20f3  Date _ Z [% [é"f

>

—



\

New Hampshire Veterans Home
Exhibit D

onie Y s e e bty iy st Y e Sl | 0T

include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspenéion,'lncligibility, and
Vohntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier
covered transactions (and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name:

giZJ;/J_aaj | . k.

Dat Name: l\c_beﬂ.vL I3 Sfpra/‘vﬁfﬁ
Title: p’gs;*r% + CEw

Exhibit D - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspens;on and Other Respons:blllty Matters :
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This Business Associate Agreement herein, “Agreement”, effective as of this 1% day of January 2024
herein, “Effective Date”, is entered into by and between Concord Hospital, Ine. herein, “Business
Associate”, located at 250 Pleasant Street, Concord. NH 03301 and State Agency, New Hampshire
Veterans Home herein, “Covered Entity” locatcd at 139 Winter Street, Tilton, NH 03276,

1. HIPAA. The Business Associate agrees to comply with the Heaith Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the Standards for Privacy and Security of
Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164,

(1) Definitions.

a. “Desisnated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set” in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

- b. “Data Ageregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation™ in 45 CFR
Section 1 64 501. ‘ :

¢. “Health Care Oneratmns” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operahons” in 45
‘CFR Section 164 501.

d. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability znd Accounta.nhtv Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191. '

e. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501
and shall inchude a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordancc with 45 CFR
Section 164.501(g).

f. “Privacy. Rule” shall méan the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States Department

of Health and Human Services.

g. “Protected Health Information” shal] have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by Business

Associate ﬂom or on behalf of Covered Entity.

h. “Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CF R
Section 164.501.

i. “Secretary " shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Humah Services or hisfher

designee.
j. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected

Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

k. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established
under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time.

(2) Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Concord Hospital, Inc. Page 1 of 6 : Date _#/ é.::’ /R2Y
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a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain, or transmit Protected Health Information
(PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the
Agreement. Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers, -
employees, and agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would -
constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule. .

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
(i) for the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
(i) as required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
(m) for data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permmed unde.r the Agreement to dlsclosa PHI to a third
party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable assurances
from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further disclosed only as
required by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party; and (i) an agreement
from such third party to immediately notify Business Associate of any breaches of the confi demlahty of
the PHI, to the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach, : .

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to pmvnde ;

- services under Exhibit- A of the Agrecment disclose any PHI in response to a request for dlsclosure on
the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an
opportunity to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such
disclosure, the Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has =
‘exhansted all rémedies. :

e If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agresdto be bound
by additional restrictions on the uses or'disclosures or security safeguards of PHI pursuant to the
Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such additional restrictions and -
shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional

security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing, -
any use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident involving
Covered Entity data, of which it becomes aware;, within two (2) business days of becommg aware of
such unavthorized use or disclosure or security incident.

b. Business Associate shall use administrative, physical and technical safegnards that reasonably-

* and appropriately protect the confidéntiality, integrity and availability of protected health information,
in electronic or any other forim, that it creates, receives, maintains.or transmits wider this Agreement, in
accordance with the Privacy and Security Rules, to prevent the use or disclosure of PHI other than as
permitted by the Agreement.

c. Business Asscciate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and
records relating to the iisc and disclosure of PHI received from, or creatad or received by the Business
Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining Covered Entity’s -
comphance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate’ lnmals // /
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d. Business Associate shall require ail of its business associates that recejve, use or have access to
PHT under the Agreement, to agres in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on the
use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided
under Sectien (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct third party
beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’s intended business
associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and
indemnification from such business associates who shall be govemed by standard provision #13 of this
Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected health information.

. Within five (5) business days of receipt of'a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books,
agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity,
for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to detexmine Business Associate’s compliance with the terms
of the Agreement. i

f. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as directed
by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

2. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the Business
Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and incorporate any such
amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

h. Business Associate shall document such disciosures of PHI and information related to such . N
disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for an /
accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

L. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for -
an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity such
information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting of
disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

j. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from
the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such request
to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to forwarded requests.
However, if forwarding the individual’s request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the
Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall
instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such law and notify Covered Entity of such
response as soon as practicable. _ '

k. Within ten (10) business days of fermination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not retain any copies
or back-up tapes of such PHL If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has
been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections
of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those purposes

: Business Associate Initials é/'; g/ ’
Concord Hospital, Inc. Page30f6 . Date _¥/ ZZ{ i



New Hampshire Veterans Home e
Exhibit E: Business Associates Agreement

-

{

that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Assocjate maintains such PHI. If
Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the
Business Associate shall certify 10 Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

()] ObllLutxuns of Covered Enntv

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or ]umtatlon(s) in its Notice of
Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the
extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHL

b. Covered Entity shall prompily ﬁotify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of
permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHImay be used or disclosed by
Business Associate nnder this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section
164_508.

c. Covered cntlty shal] promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or

disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the
extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

{5) Term and Termination for Cause

a. Term, The Term of this Agreement shall be effective as of the Effective Date first st forth above
and shall continue in effect until terminated hereunder. .
b. Termination by Asreement. This Agreement may be terminated at any time by mutual
agreement of the parties.”
c. Automatic Termination, This Agreement shall terminate upon termination of the business
relationship between the parties.
d. Termination for Cause, Upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a material breach by Business
Asgsociate, Covered Entity may at its sole discretion:
1. Terminate this Agreament after providing opportunity for Business Assoclate to cure the
breach or-end the violation within the time specified by Covered Entity; or
2. Terminale this Agreement immediately if Business Associate has breached a material term of
this Agreement; or

If neither termination nor cure are feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the Secretary.

e. [Effect of Termination.

1. Ifthis Agreement is terminated for any reason, the Covered Entity may snmultaneously
terminate any business relationship without penalty. Ifthere is a conflict between the
underlying service agreement and this Agreement with respect to termination, this Agreement
shall prevail.

2. Except as provided in paragraph (3) of this Section VL. E., upon termination of this

 Agreement for any reason, Business Associate shall return to Covered Entity or, if agreed to -

/by Covered Entity, destroy all protected health information received from Covered Enltity, or
created, maintained, or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entlty, that the
Business Associate maintains in any form. Business Associate shall retain no copies of the

protected healih information.

) f/ (_‘.‘
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3. . In the event that Business Associate determines that returning or destroying the protected health
information is infeasible, Business Associaté shall provide to Covered Entity notification of
the conditions that make return or destruction infeasible. In'such event, Business Associate.
shall extend the protections of this Agreement to such protected health information and limit -
further nses and disclosures of such protected health information to those purposes that make
the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains such protected
health information.,

4. The provisions of this Section VI1.E shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

(6) Miscellaneous

a.

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall have
the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Ruls, as amended from time to lime. A
reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to a Section in the Privacy and
Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended. i

. Amendment, Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to-

amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Enfity to comply with the
changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and

_state law.

. Data Ownership: The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with

respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

. Interprelation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit

Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

. Segrepation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit or the application thereof to any person(s)

or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which can
be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of this
Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the'use and disclosure of PHI, return or

destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and
indemnification provisions of section 3 d and g. below, shall survive the termination of the :
Agreement. :

. Indemnification. To the extent permitted by law, each party (the “Indemnifying Party™) shall

indemmnify and hold harmless the other party (the “Indemnified Party”), its officers, directors,
employees and agents, from and against, and, at the Indemnified Party’s request, defend the
Indemnified Party against, any and all claims, damages, losses, liabilities, costs and expenses
(including reasonable attomey’s fees) arising out of or resulting from the grossly negl igent or the

* intentional acts or omissions of the Indemmifying Party, its employees and its agents under the

Agreement. Each Indemnified Party shall fully cooperate with the Indernnifying Party in all -
matters within the scope of this section.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Business Associates Agreement.

The Coverei Entity .

WL,

Slgnature of St therized gcpreszfntatwe

‘Kimberly M. MacKay
Name of Authonzed chresentanve

Commandant
Title of Authorized Represemauve

o5 |osl vzt

Date

e e e

Concord Hospital, Inc.

Page 6 of B

Comccfco Hm: o] W 271} (
Name of the Business Assomate

Slgnature of Authonzcd Representatwc '

?cﬁne o & wo g-ﬁc’«(ahwo.:. ,

Name of Authonzed Representatwe :

f;f"g:,j? ;;-i‘ %+ CEO

Tltle of Authorized Reprcsentatliilﬁ

= /,;g /.?o:'-—l ]

Date”

Business Associate Inmals /L”/ / /
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M, Scaulan, Secretary of State of the State af New Hampshire, do hereby certify that CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. is
a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshite on January 29, 1985. 1 fusther certify
that all fees and doéuments required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as far as this

office is concerned.

Business ID: 74948
Certificate Number: 0006676652

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,
Thereto set.my hand and cause to be affixed
the Scal of the-State of New Harhpshire,

this- 25th day of April A D. 2024

David M. Scanlan
Scoretary of State.




CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Lucy Hodder Esq,, hereby certify that:
1. 1am aduly elected Secretary of Concord Hospital, Inc.

2. The following is & true copy ofra vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Trustees, duiy called and

VOTED: That Robert Steipmeyer, President and CEQ, is duly‘authorrized on behalf of Concord’

Hosgital, Inc. Concord Hospital-Laconia, and Concord Hosgital-Franklin to enter_ihto contracts

or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and
further is authorized to execute any and all d'ocum'ents, agreements and other instruments, and
any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be '

desirable or necessary to effect the purpase of this vote.

3. lhereby Lnrtafy that said vote has not been amended or repealed snd remains in full force and effect
as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certifi icate is attached. This
authority was valid thirty (30} days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30} days from the date of

| this Certificate of Aﬁthority. | further cértify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire
will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s} indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. Ta the extent that
there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporatlon in contracts with
the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressiy statezi herein.

DATED: . . Q4/24/2024 -~ /?,,, g A // Pl

"+ Lucy Hpdder, Esq.
/i Concord Hospital, Secretary of the Board
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY lNSURANCE

TpATE (MMI’DD'IYW-Y)'
. 0500172024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS lSSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

“IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED the polrcy(ies} must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provlslons or be endorsed,
if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to. the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policles may requlre an endorsement. A statement on
this certifi cate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s), . e,

PROnU ER CONTAGT
MARSH USA, LLC. EHOMEM e e
99 HIGH STREET (AMC Mo Bt . . Ll e l &_c N..ﬂJ_ -
BOSTON, MA 02110 E-!:DA“E. »

Altn: Boston certrequest@Marsh.com

| CN142100133-CORP-GAUWP-23-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Trustees o
- Concord Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Concord Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the System),
which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, the related consolidated
statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes
to the consolidated financial statements (collectively, the financial statements).

In our opinion, the accompanymg financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the System as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, and the results of its operations, changes in its nei
assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting prmcl,lles generally accepted
in the United States of America. ,

Bésis for Opinimi

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors'
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the System and to'meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the System adopted the provisions of Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), and all subsequent ASUs that modified Topic 842, effective
Qctober 1, 2022. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements |

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentatxon of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or €rTor,

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are condmons or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the System's ability to continue as a
going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued or avaﬂable to be issued:



The Board of Trustees
Concord Hospital, Inc. and Subsn:hanes

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute asstrance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting fromfraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually
or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
*  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. '

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. :

+ Obtain an understanding of internal conirol relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circurustances, but not for the purpose of expressmg an opinion on the
effectiveness of the System's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

+ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the System's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time,

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control—related matters
that we identified during the audit. :

. 1] '
Ruter Newrm € N«yc DC
Manchester, New Harhpshire
December 8, 2023



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
‘ September 30, 2023 and 2022

ASSETS
(In thousands)

Current assets;
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable
Due from affiliates
Supplies v
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Assets whose use is limited or restricted:
Board designated k
Funds held by trustee for insurance reserves,
escrows and construction funds
Donor-restricted funds and restricted grants

Total assets whose use is limited or restricted

Other noncurrent assets: )
Due from affiliates, net of current portion
Prepaid pension and other assets

Total other noncurrent assets
Property and equipment:
Land and land improvements
Buildings
Equipment
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation

Net property and equipment

Operating lease right-of-use assets

2023 2022
$ 79917 $ 54,630
46,394 15,322
91,318 110,525
1,443 1,099
4744 6,125
_ 11247 12255
235,063 199,956
388,305 340,058
34,960 50,118
44094 43514
467,359 433,690
467 533
_43662 21126
44,129 - 21,659
8,435 8,359
267,179 266,581
278,585 260,992
10620 11807
564,819 547,739 .
(363.709)  {344.416)
201,110 203,323
26252 T

5,973,913 $.858,628



LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
(In thousands) '

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued compensation and related expenses

Accrual for estimated third-party payor settlements -

Current portion of long-term debt
Current portion of operating lease liabilities

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current portion
Operating l'egse liabilitieé, less current portion
Reserve for insurance
_ Accrued pension and other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Net aésets: | 7
Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions
Total Concord Hospité] net assets

Noncontroilhig interest in consolidated subsidiary

Total net assets

See accompanying notes.

2023 2022

§ 49,982 § 50,361

46,827 49,107
68,589 62,608

6,144 4,147
5406 -

176,048 166,223
145,525 = 152,600
21000 -
20759 23,601

18278 26490

382,601 368,923

544,486 443,500
44004 _43514

588,580 487,014

__2732 2691

501,312 489,705

$.973.913 $'§i_&,&v8




CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended September 30, 2023 and 2022

" (In thousands)

Revenue and other support without donor restrictions:
Patient service revenue
Other revenue
‘Disproportionate share revenue
Net assets released from restrictions for operations

Total revenue and other support without donor restrictions

Operating expenses:

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies and other

" Purchased services
Professional fees .

-Depreciation and amortization
Medicaid enhancement tax
Interest

Total operating expenses
Income from operations
Nonoperating income (loss):
Gifts and bequests without donor restrictions
Investment income (loss) and other
Other nonoperating expense ,
Net periodic benefit gain, other than service cost

Total nonoperaﬁng income (loss)

Consolidated excess (deficiency) of revenues and
nonoperating income (loss) over expenses

Excess of revenues and nonoperating income (loss) over expenses
attributable to noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiary

Excess (deﬁci‘ency)»(of revenues and nonoperating income
(loss) over expenses attributable to the System

See accompanying notes.

2023 2022 -

$705,758  $709,396
29,373 © 39,781 .

30,212 29,744

5.105 1,889

770,448 780,810

377,209 380,846
81,591 92,363
152,635 156,674
57,796 51,392
17,021 16,498
27,291 28,953

32,647 32,035
4275  __4.568

750465 763,329

19,083 17,481

346 261
49961  (48,917)
. (856).  (856)

4733 1.321

54,184  (48.191)

74,167  (30,710)

__(181) __(227)

$.73,986 $(30.937)



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS |

Years Ended September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands) :

- System net assets without donor restrictions:

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and nonoperating income
(loss) over expenses attributable to the System

Net transfers from affiliates

Other changes

Net assets released from restrictions used for
purchases of property and equipment

Pension adjustment

Increase (decrease) in System net assets without donor restrictions

" System net assets with donor restrictions:

023 2022

$ 73,986 $(30,937)

Contributions and pledges with donor restrictions
Net investment gain (loss)

Contributions to affiliates and other community organizations
Unrealized gains (losses) on trusts administered by others
Net assets released from restriciions for operations
Net assets released from restrictions used for
purchases of property and equipment
Increase (decrease) in System net assets with donor restrictions
Increase (decrease) in System net assets
Noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiary:
Distributions to noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiary
Excess of revenues and nonoperating income (loss) over expenses
attributable to noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiary
Increase (decrease) in noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiary
Increase (decrease) in total net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

See accompanying notes.

97 343
(339) -
753 1,886
26,489 (5.502)
100,986 (34,210
2,704 5,057
3,664 (3,923)
(302) (243)
372 (2,505)
(5,105)  (1,889)
(753) (1.886)
580 (5.389)
101,566 (39,599)
(140) (270)
181 227
4 (43)
101,607 (39,642)
489.705  529.347
;
$591,312  $489,705



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES -
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FL‘ows '

Years Ended September 30,2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

. 2023 2022
Cash flows from operating activities: o ‘ :
Increase (decrease) in total net assets $ 101,607 $ (39,642)
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in total net )
assets to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Contributions and pledges with donor restrictions (2,704 - (5,057)
Depreciation and amortization ‘ 127,291 28,953
Net realized and unrealized: (gams) losses on investments (46,446) 63,991
Bond premlum and issuance cost amortization - o (940)  (968)
Equity in earnings of affiliates, net - (5,012) - (4,893)
Distributions to noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiary .- 140 270
Loss on disposal of property and equipment B o 270)
Pension adjustment (26 489) 5,502
Noncash lease expense : ) 245 -
Changes in operating assets and 11ab111t1es g o v
Accounts receivable , 1 9,207 (15,805)
Supplies, prepaid expenses and other current assets . 2,389 (1,149) .
Prepaid pension and other assets ©. 1,900 (4,022)
. Due from affiliates - _ , o (278) 14
Accounts payable and accrued expenses : - (379) 3,289
Accrued compensation and related expenses : (2,280) 5,125
Accrual for estimated third-party payor seitlements . 5981 (33,795)
Accrued pensmn and other long-term liabilities ' - (5,665) (19,403}
Reserve for insurance —{2.842) (5,331 -
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities - . 65,725 (23,191)
Cash flows from investing activities: : .
Purchases of property and equipment : - (25,078)  (22,032)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment - 11,362
Purchases of investments ‘ 99,562)  (23,369)
Proceeds from sales of investments . 81,450 67,838
Equity distributions from affiliates ‘ C 4518 .. 4445
Net cash (used) provided by investing activities (38,672) 38,244
Cash flows from financing activities: -
Payments on long-term debt 4,147y  (3,020)
Bond issuance costs - (26)
Distributions to noncontrolling interest in consohdated subsidiary (140) 270)
Contributions and pledges with donor restrictions 2521 5071
Net cash (used) provided by financing activities __(1:766) 1855
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 25,287 16,908
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year : : ..54630. _.37.722 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $_79917 $_54.630

Supplemental disclosure of noncash transactions:
~ See Note 16 with respect to certain noncash
activities related to leases.

See accompanying notes.



Organization

CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

_September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

])'escrlg_v‘tion of Org anization and Summafnvzof Significant Accounting Polleies

W

lCoocOrd Hospital, Inc. (the Hospital), located in Concord, New Hampshire, is a not-for-profit acute care

hospital. The Hospital provides inpatient, outpatient, emergency care and phySician services for

- residénts within its geographic region. Admitting physicians are primarily practltloners in thé local area.
The Hospital is controlled by Capital Region Health Care Corporation (CRHC). :

 In 1985, the then Concord?Hospital underwent a corporate reorganization in which it was renamed and

became CRHC. At the same time, the Hospital was formed as a new entity. All assets and liabilities of
the former hospital, now CRHC, with the exception of its endowments and restricted funds, were
conveyed to the new entity. The endowments-were held by CRHC for the benefit of the Hospital, which
is the true party in interest. Effective October 1, 1999, CRHC transferred these funds to the Hospital.

In March 2009; the Hosp1tal created The Concord Hospltal Trust (the Trust), a separately mcorporated 4
not-for-profit organization to serve as the Hospital's philanthropic arm. In estabhshmg the Trust, the
Hospital transferred philanthropic funds with donor restrictions, including board designated funds,
endowments, indigent care funds and specific purpose funds, to the newly formed organization together L
with the stewardship responsibility to direct monies available to support the Hospital's charitable mlssmn
and reflect the spemﬁc intentions of the donors who made these gifis. .

Subsidiaries of the Hospita] are as follows:

Capital. Re'izon Health Care Develo ment_Corporation ‘?.CRHCDC -is'a not—for-proﬁt real estate
corporation that owns and operates medical office bu1ld1ngs and other propertxes

Capital Region Health Ventures Corporation (CRHVC) is a not-for-profit corporatmn that engages in

health care dehvery partnershlps and joint ventures. It operates ambulatory surgery and diagnostic
facilities mdependently and in cooperatlon with other entities.

NH Cares. ACO LLC (NHCl and Concord Hospital. ACO {CH- ACO) -are both smgle member limited
liability companies that engage in providing medical services to Medicare beneficiaries as accountable
care organizations. NHC has a perpetual life and is subject to termination in certain events. During
2022, NHC was transferred to an unrelated entity for no consideration and the Hospital formed CH-
ACO; which operates in a manner consxstent with NHC and had m1n1mal activity dunng fiscal years
2022 and 2023.

-Concord Hospital — Laconia (CH- -Laconia) is a not-for-profit corpoxauon formed to operate a 11censed

hospital provxdmg inpatient, outpatient, emergency care and physician services for residents within its

geographic region of Laconia, New Hampshire. The CH-Laconia facility includes’ 137 acute carebeds. - - -

and was designated a Rural Referral Center in 1986, and a Sole Community Hosp1tal in-2009, Adnnttmg v '
physicians are primarily practitioners in the local area.



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

ificant Accounting Policies Conﬁnuedig

Descri ption -of Organization and Sumnia'r - of Si 1

Concord Hospital — Franklin (CH-Franklin) is a not-for-profit corporation formed to operate a hcensed
hospital prov1d1ng inpatient, outpatlent emergency care and physician services for residents within its
geographic region of Franklin, New Hampshire. . The CH-Franklin facility was designated a Critical
Access Hospital effective July 1, 2004, and includes 25 acute care beds. CH-Franklin also operates a 10 -
bed designated psychlatrlc receiving facility. Admitting physicians are primarily practitioners in the
local area.

Granite Shield Insurance Exchange and Subsidiaries (GSIE) was formed on December 20, 2010, in the
State of Vermont as an industrial insured reciprocal insurance entity and unincorporated association.
GSIE commenced underwriting activities on January 1,2011. GSIE was formed to provide healthcare
professional liability, general liability and medical stop loss insurance to its subscribers through GSI
Services, LLC (GSI), the attorney-in-fact. GSI was formed in the State of Vermont as a limited liability
company on December 14, 2010, and acts as an agent to enable the subscribers of GSIE to exchange
insurance contracts. Through December 31, 2020, GSI was equally controlled by each of the subscribers
of GSIE, all of which were health systems located in the State of New Hampshire, inclusive of the

‘Hospital. EffectiveJ anuary 1, 2021, the Hospital became the sole voting member of GSIE, resulting in

all activity of GSIE being recorded within the accompanying consolidated ﬁnanclal staiements.

GSIE discontinued writing coverages effective October 1, 2022, and its current operations consist of
runoff claims for a previously withdrawn subscriber, as well as the current subsctiber, CRHC.

Concord Hospital Insurance Group, LLC (CHIG) is a Vermont domiciled single parent captive entity -
and operates in a manner and conducts activities similar to GSIE, as described above. CHIG began

operations in late 2022. GSIE entered into a loss portfolio transfer agreement with CHIG in September

2022, whereas GSIE would transfer all of its existing and future claims to CHIG, with the exception of

acts pnor to CRHC This transfer was completed prior to September 30, 2023.

Concord Endoscopy Center. LLC {CEC) is a New Hampshn‘e limited liability company that engages in
providing gastrointestinal services, including the dlagnosm and treatment of digestive and liver diseases.
CEC has a perpetual life and is subject to termination in certain events. CRHVC holds a majority interest
and control of CEC. .

Capital Region Healthcare Services_Corporation (CRHSC) is a for-profit provider of health care
services, including an eye surgery center and assisted living facility. CRHSC became a sub51d1ary of
the Hospital effective October 1, 2022. :

The Hospital, its subsidiaries and the Trust are collectively referred to as the System. The consolidated
financial statements include the accounts of the Hospital, the Trust, CRHCDC, CRHVC, NHC, CH-
ACO, CH-Laconia, CH-Franklin, GSIE, CHIG, CEC and CRHSC. All significant intercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The Hospital, the Trust, CH-Laconia
and CH-Franklin constitute the Obligated Group at September 30, 2023 and 2022 to certain debt
described in Note 7. 5



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies '-Coptinq_ed"

Principles of Consolidation

Noncontrolling interests in less-than-wholly-owned consolidated subsidiaries of the System are
presented as a component of total net assets to distinguish between the interests of the System and the
interests of the noncontrolling owners. Revenues, expenses and nonoperating income (loss) from these
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated amounts presented on the consolidated statements of
operations. Excess (deficiency) of revenues and nonoperating income (loss) over expenses attributable
to the System separately presents the amounts attributable to the controlling interest.

Noncontrolling Interests

Noncontrolling interests represent the portion of equity in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or
indirectly, to a parent. The System's accompanying consolidated financial statements include all assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses at their consolidated amounts, which include the amounts attributable
to the System and the noncontrolling interest. The System recognizes as a separate component of net
assets and earnings the portion of income or loss attnb*ltable to noncontrolling interests based on the
pomon of the entity not owned by the System.

'Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. :

Concentration of:Credit Risk

Financial instruments which subject the System to credit risk consist prxmanly of cash equivalents,
accounts receivable and investments. The risk with respect to cash equivalents is minimized by the
System's policy of investing in financial instruments with short-term maturities issued by highly rated
financial institutions. The System's accounts receivable are primarily due from third-party payors and
amounts are presented net of expected explicit and implicit price concessions, including estimated
implicit price concessions from uninsured patients. The System's investment portfolio consists of
diversified investments, which are subject to market risk. The System's investment in one fund, the
Vanguard Institutional Index Fund, exceeded 10% of total System investments as of September 30, 2023
and 2022, .

-Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include money market funds with original maturities of three months or less,
excluding assets whose use is limited or restricted. The System maintains its cash in bank deposit
accounts which, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The-System has not experienced any

losses on such accounts.

10



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

ary. of Si mficant Accountm Pohcnes Contmued ‘

Description of Organization and Summ

Supplies

Supplies are carried at the lower of cost, determined on a weighted-average method, or net realizable
value. .

Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted

Assets whose use is limited or restricted include assets held by trustees for insurance reserves, €scrows,
construction funds, designated assets set aside by the Board of Trustees (over which the Board retains
control and may, at its discretion, subsequently use for other purposes), and donor-restricted investments.

Investments and Investment ;Incomer(qus)

Investments are carried at fair value in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Investment
income (loss) (mcludmg realized gains and losses on investments, interest and dividends) and the net
change in unrealized gains and losses on investments are included in the excess (deficiency) of revenues
and nonoperating income (loss) over expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations, unless the income or loss is restricted by donor or law.

Beneficial Interest in Perpetual Trusts

The System has an irrevocable right to receive income earned on certain trust assets established for its
benefit. Distributions received by the System are without donor restrictions. The System's interest in
the fair value of the trust assets is included in assets whose use is limited or restricted and as net assets
with donor restrictions. Changes in the fair value of beneficial trust assets are reported as increases or
decreases to net assets with donor restrictions.

Investment Policies

The System's investment policies provide guidance for the prudent and skillful management of invested
assets with the objective of preserving capital and maximizing returns. The invested assets include
endowment, specific purpose and board designated funds.

Endowment funds are identified-as perpetual in nature, intended to provide support for current or future
operations and other purposes identified by the donor. These funds are managed with disciplined longer-
term investment objectives and strategics designed to accommodate relevant, reasonable, or probable
events. :

Speclﬁc purpose funds are temporary in nature, restricted as to time or purpose as 1dent1ﬁed by the donor
or grantor, These funds have various 1ntenned1ate/long-term time horizons assoclated with specific
identified spending objectives. ‘

Board designated funds have various intermediate/long-term time horizons assocmted w1th spemﬁc
spending objectives as determined by the Board of Trustees.

11



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
'NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Management of these assets is designed to increase, with minimum risk, the inflation adjusied principal
and income of the endowment funds over the long term. The System targets a diversified asset allocation
that places emphasis on achieving its long-term return objectives within prudent risk constramts

 Spending Policy-for Appropriation of Assets for Expenditure

In accordance with the Uniforin Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), the System A

considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted
endowment funds: (a) the duration and preservation of the ﬁmd; (b) the purpose of the organization and
the donor-restricted. endowment fund; (c) general economic conditions; (d) the possible effect of
inflation and deflation; (e) the expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments;
() other resources of the organization; and (g) the investment policies of the orgamzatlon

Spending pohmes may be adopted by the System, from time to time, to provxde a stream of funding for:
the support of key programs. The spending policies are structured in a manner to ensure that the
- purchasing power of the assets is maintained while providing the desired level of annual funding to the
" programas. The System has a current spending policy on various funds currently equivalent to 5% of
twelve-quarter moving average of the funds' total market value. - ~

' Agcoyn;& Receivable

Patient accounts receivable for which the unconditional right to payment exists. are receivables if the
right to consideration is unconditional and only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. Accounts receivable at September 30, 2023 and 2022 reflect the fact that any
estimated uncollectible amounts are generally considered implicit price concessions that are a-direct
reduction to- accounts receivable rather than allowance for doubtful accounts. At September 30, 2023

and 2022, estimated implicit price concessions of $26,391 and $29,203, respectively, had been recorded

as reductions to accounts receivable balances to enable the System to record revenues and accounts
receivable at the estimated amounts expected to collected.

Accounts receivable - as of September 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021 are $91 318 $110,525 and $94, 720
,respectlvely

Progergg and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost at time of purchase or at fair value at time of donation for assets
contributed, less any reductions in carrying value for 1mpamnent and less accumulated depreciation.

The System s policy is to capitalize expenditures for major improvements and charge maintenance and

repairs currently for expenditures which do not extend the lives of the related assets. Depreciation i is
computed using the straight-line method in a manner intended to amortize the cost of the related assets
over their estimated useful lives. For the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, deprec1at10n
expense was $27,291 and $28,953, respectively. v

The System has also capitalized certairi costs associated with property and equlpment not yet in service:

- Construction in progress includes amounts incurred related to major construction projects, other
renovations, and other capital equipment purchased but not yet placed in service. There was no interest
expense capitalized during 2023 or 2022.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
'NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2023 and 2022

(In thousands)

Deseription of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. (Continued)

Gifts of long-lived assets such as land, buildings or equipment are reported as support without donor
restrictions, and are excluded from the excess (deficiency) of revenues and nonoperating income (loss)
over expenses, unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of
long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used, and gifts of cash or
other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets, are reported as support with donor restrictions.
Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must be maintained,
expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed
in service.. ~

Intangible Assets

The System reviews its intangible and other long-lived assets annually to determine whether the carrying
amount of such assets is impaired. Upon determination that an impairment has occurred, these. assets
are reduced to fair value. There were no impairments recorded for the years ended September 30, 2023
or 2022.

Intangible assets are included within other noncurrent assets in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortizable intangible assets consist of the following at
September 30: ‘

2023 2022
Cost h $ 8556 $ 8556
Accumulated amortization C {2,140 (1,284)
Amortizable intangible assets, net ‘ $.6416 $.7.272

Amortization expense was $856 during the'years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022 and is recorded
within other nonoperating expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Expected amortization of intangible assets through their useful lives is as follows:

2024 | : » , § 856
2025 ' 856
2026 - 856
2027 , ’ : ' - 856
2028 o 856
Thereafter " 2,136

56416
Federal Grant Revenue and Expenditures. o

Revenues and expenses under federal grant programs are recognized as the grant expenditures are
incurred.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Description of Organization and Summary. of Significant Accountin ‘Poliéigs’ Conﬁhqedi_

Bond Issuance Costs(ergiiga{ Assue Discount or Premium

Bond issuance costs incurred to obtain financing for construction and renovation projects and the original
issue discount or premium are amortized to interest expense using the straight-line method, which
approximates the effective interest method, over the life of the respective bonds. The original issue
discount or premium and bond issuance costs are presented as a component of bonds payable.

Charity Care

The System provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy without
charge or at amounts less than its established rates (Note 12). Because the System does not pursue
collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as revenue. The System
uses an industry standard approach in calculating the costs associated with providing charity care. Funds
received from gifts and grants to subsidize charity services provided for the years-ended September 30,
2023 and 2022 were approximately $130 and $133, respectively. —

Net Assets With Donor. Restrictions

Gifts are reported as restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of
donated assets. Donated investments, supplies and equipment are reported at fair value at the date of
receipt. Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date of
receipt of the promise. When a donor restriction expires (when 2 stipulated time restriction ends or
purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets
without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of operations as either net assets released from
restrictions for operations (for noncapital related items) or as net assets released from restrictions used
for purchases of property and equipment (capital related items). Some net assets with donor restrictions
have been restricted by donors to be maintained by the System in perpetuity. e ‘

Patient Service Revenue

Revenues generally relate to contracts with-patients in which the System's performance obligations are
-to provide health care services to patients. Revenues. are recorded during the period obligations to
provide health care services are satisfied. Performance obligations for inpatient services are generally
satisfied over a period of days. Performance obligations for outpatient services are generally satisfied
over a period of less than one day. The contractual relationships with patients, in most cases, also involve
a third-party payor (Medicare, Medicaid, managed care health plans and commercial insurance
- companies, including plans offered through the health insurance exchanges) and the transaction prices
for the services provided are dependent upon the terms provided by Medicare and Medicaid or negotiated
with managed care health plans and commercial insurance companies, the third-party payors. The
payment arrangements with third-party payors for the services provided to related patients typically
. specify payments at amounts less than standard charges. Medicare generally pays for inpatient and
outpatient services at prospectively determined rates based on clinical, diagnostic and other factors.
Services provided to patients having Medicaid coverage are generally paid at prospectively determined
rates per discharge, per identified service or per coveréd member, Agreements- with commercial
insurance carriers, managed care and preferred provider organizations generally provide for payments
based upon predetermined rates per diagnosis, per diem rates or discounted fee-for-service rates.
Management continually reviews the. revenue recognition process to consider and incorporate updates
to laws and regulations and the frequent changes in managed care contractual terms resulting from

contract renegotiations and renewals.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Description of Organization and Summary.of Significant Accounting Policies ( Cgintinued) :

The collection of outstanding receivables for Medicare, Medicaid, managed care payers, other third-
party payors and patients is the System's primary source of cash and is critical to its operating
performance. The primary collection risks relate to uninsured patient accounts, including patient
accounts for which the primary insurance carrier has paid the amounts covered by the applicable
agreement, but patient Tesponsibility amounts (deductibles and copayments) remain outstanding.

Implicit price concessions relate primarily to amounts due directly from panents Estimated implicit
price concessions are recorded for all uninsured accounts, regardless of the aging of those accounts.

Accounts are written off when all reasonable internal and external collection efforts have been
performed. The estimates for implicit price concessions are based upon management's assessment of
historical write-offs and expected net collections, business and economic conditions, trends in federal,
state and private employer health care coverage and other collection indicators. Management relies on
the results of detailed reviews of historical write-offs and collections at facilities that represent a majority
of hospital revenues and accounts receivable (the "hindsight analysis") as a primary source of
information in estimating the collectability of accounts receivable. Management performs the hindsight
analysis regularly, utilizing rolling twelve-months accounts receivable collection and write-off data.
Management believes its regular updates to the estimated implicit price concession amounts provide
reasonable estimates of revenues and valuations of accounts receiveble. These routine, regular changes
in estimates have not resulted in material adjustments to the valuations of accounts receivable or period-
to-period comparisons of operations.

The System receives payment for other Medicaid outpatient services on a reasonable cost basis which
are settled with retroactive adjustments upon completion and audit of related cost finding reports.
Differences between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be
recoverable or payable are included in patient service revenues in the year that such amounts become
known. For the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, patient service revenue in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operatlons increased by approximately $4,700 and $5,100, respectively, due
to actual settlements and changes in assumptions underlying estimated future third-party settlements.

Revenues from the Medicare and Medicaid programs accounted for approximately 40% and 5% and
39% and 6% of the System's patient service revenue for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022,
respectively. Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and
subject to interpretation.

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues and Nonoperating Income (Loss) Over Expenses.

The System has deemed all activities as ongoing, major or central to the provision of health care services
and, accordingly, they are reported as operating revenue and expenses, except for contributions and
pledges without donor restrictions, the related philanthropy expenses and invesiment income which are
recorded as nonoperating income (loss).
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_ CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
'NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands) '

-.Descngtxon of Orgamzatmn and Summarv of Swmﬁcant Accounun“_ ,Pohc]es _;Contumed ‘

: The consohdated statements of operatxons also mclude excess (deﬁclency) of reveriues and nonoperatmg, .
income (loss) over expenses. Changes in net assets without donor restrictions which are excluded from -

excess (deficiency) of revenues and nonoperating income (loss) over expenses, consistent with mdustry e

practice, include the permanent transfers of assets to and from affiliates for other than goods and services, .
* pension adjustments and contributions of long-lived assets (mcludmg assets acquired using contributions
which by donor restriction were to be used for the purposes of acquiring such assets).

Estimated Workers' Compensation, Malpractice and Health Care Claims

The provision for' estimated workers' compensation, malpractice ‘and ’hea}thf care claims includes
- éstimates of the ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not reported.

Functional Expense Allocation

The costs of providing program services and other activities have been summanzed on a functional basis
- in Note 11, Accordlngly, costs have been allocated among program serwces and sapportmg services
benefitted. - ‘

Income Taxes

The Hospltal CH—Lacoma, CH-Franklin, CRHCDC, CRHVC, and the Trust are not—for—proﬁt
corporations as described in Section- 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and are exempt from
federal income taxes on related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. NHC was organized as
asingle’ member limited liability compaiy and has elected to be treated as a dlsregarded entity for federal
‘and state income tax reportmg purposes. Accordingly, all income or losses and applicable tax credits
are reported on the member’s income tax returns, with the exception of taxes due to the State of New
Hampshire. Management evaluated the System's tax positions and concluded the System has maintained
its tax-exempt status, does not have any significant unrelated business income and had taken no uncertain
_ tax positions: that require adjustment to or disclosure in the accompanying consolidated financial -
statements. GSIE, CHIG, NHC, CH-ACO, CEC and CRHSC account for income taxes in accordance
with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 740,
“Income Taxes. FASB ASC 740 is an asset and liability method, which requires the recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequernices of temporary differences
_between the tax and financial reporting basis of certain assets and liabilities. Resulting income tax -
“expense and the temporary differences between the tax and financial reporting basis are not matenal

Advei'tising Cost

The System expenses advemsmg costs as incurred, and such costs totaled $247 and $168 for the years
‘ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively: ,
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Description of: Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)
Leases

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 1ssued Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) 2016-02, Leases. The standard, including subsequently issued amendments, collectively
referred to as Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 842, Leases, established the principles that
lessees and lessors will apply to report useful information to users of financial statements about the
amount, timing and uncertainty of cash flows arising from a lease. ASC 842 did not have a significant
impact on lessor accounting. The System adopted this standard using the modified retrospective
transition approach as applied to leases existing as of or entered into after the adoption date (October 1,
2022) in fiscal year 2023. See Note 16 for a discussion of the System's adoption of this standard and 1ts
impact on the consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

At the inception of an arrangement, the System determines whether the arrangement is, or contains, a
lease based on the unique facts and circumstances present in the arrangement. A lease is a contract, or
part of a contract, that conveys the right to control the use of identified property or equipment (an
identified asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The System determines if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time. The System assesses
throughout the period of use whether the System has both of the following: (1) the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset, and (2) the right to direct the
use of the identified asset. This determination is reassessed if the terms of the contract are changed.

Leases are classified as operating or finance leases based on the terms of the lease agreement and certain
characteristics of the identified asset. Leases with a term greater than one year are recognized on the
balance sheet as right-of—use, assets and lease obligations, as applicable.

The interest rate 1mpllc1t in lease contracts is typically not readily determinable. As a result, the System
has elected to utilize a nsk-free rate as the rate to discount lease payments.

Lease liabilities are initially recorded based on the present value of lease payments over the expected
remaining lease term. Lease payments are comprised -of fixed and in-substance fixed contract
consideration. The System has made a policy election not to separate lease components, nonlease
components, and noncomponents. The right-of-use asset is based on the lease liability, adjusted for
certain items such as lease prepayments or lease incentives received. Finance lease assets are amortized
on a straight-line basis, with interest costs reported separately, over the lesser of the useful life of the
leased asset or lease term. Operating lease expense is recognized on a straight-line bas:s Variable lease
payments are expensed as incurred.

" The Systern assesses at the commencement of a lease any options to extend or terminate the lease
agreement, and will include in the lease term any extensions or renewals which it determines it is
reasonably ceftain to exercise. Assumptions made at the lease commencement date are re-evaluated
upon the occurrence of certain events, including a lease modification. A lease modification results in a
separate contract when the modification grants the lessee an additional right-of-use not included in the
original lease and when lease payments increase commensurate with the standalone price for the
additional right-of-use. When a lease modification results in a separate contract, it is accounted for in
the same manner as a new lease.

17



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES = -
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Description of Organization and Summar_‘f of Significant Accounting Policies | 'Cohtir_med_)

Risks and Uncertainties =

* On March 11; 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of coronavirus (COVID-19)

a pandemic. The COVID-19 pandemic has significantly affected employees, patients, systems,
communities and business operations, as well as the U.S. economy and financial markets. ‘Since the
declaration of the pandemic, the System has received approximately $57,885 of accelerated Medicare
payments (see Note 6), approximately $30,668 related to the Coronaviris Aid, Relzef and Economic
Security Act (CARES Act) Provider Relief Funds (PRF) and approximately $8,800 in rural payments
related to the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA). Distributions from the PRF and ARPA are not subject
to repayment, provided the System is able to attest to and comply with the terms and conditions of the
funding, including demonstrating that the distributions received have been used for healthcare-related
expenses or lost revenue attributable to COVID-19.  Such payments are accounted for as government
grants, and are recognized on a systematic and rational basis as other income once there is reasonable
assurance that the applicable térms and conditions required to retain the furids will be met. Based on an
analysis of the compliance and reporting requirements of the PRF and ARPA and the impact of the
pandemic on operating results through September 30, 2022, the System recognized approximately
$10,000 related to PRF and ARPA, and these payments were recorded within other revenue in the
accompanying consolidated statements. of operations for the year ended September30, 2022. No
amounts related to PRF or ARPA were recognized within other revenues during the year ended
September 30, 2023. The remaining funds were recognized within other revenues during previous years.

The CARES Act also provides for a deferral of payments of the employef portion of payroll tax incurred -
during the pandemic, allowing half of such payroll taxes to be deferred until December 2021, and the

- remaining half until December 2022. At September 30, 2022, the System had deferred balances of

payroll taxes totallng $4,646 whlch were recorded within accrued compensation and related expenses on.
the accompanying 2022 consolidated balance sheet. Amounts were fully repaid- durmg the year ended
September 30, 2023,

The System will continue to monitor compliance with the terms and conditions of the PRF, ARPA and
other potential assistance programs and available grants, and the impact of the pandemic on revenues
and expenses. If the System is unable to attest to or comply with current or future terms and condltlons,
the System's ability to retain some or all of the distributions recelved may be 1mpacted

Reclasszizcattons

Certain 2022 amounts have been reclassified to, permnt comparxson w1th the 2023 consohdated financial
statements presentation format.

Subsequ 'ueni Lvents

Management of the System evaluated events occurring between the end of the System's fiscal year and :
December 8, 2023, the date the consolidated financial statements were avaxlable to be issued.
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CONCORD'HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
' NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30,2023 and 2022
‘ (In thousands)

Transactions With Affiliates

The System provides funds to CRHC and its affiliates which are used for a variety of purposes. The
System records the transfer of funds to CRHC and the other affiliates as either receivables or directly
against net assets, depending on the intended use and repayment requirements of the funds. Generally,
funds transferred for start-up costs of new ventures or capital related expenditures are recorded as
charges against net assets. For the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, transfers received from
affiliates were $97 and $343, respectively.

Amounts due the System, primarily from joint ventures, totaled $1,910 and $1,632 at September 30,
2023 and 2022, respectively. Amounts have been classified as current or long-term depending on the
intentions of the parties involved. Beginning in 1999, the Hospital began charging interest on a portion
of the receivables ($467 and $533 at September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively) with principal and
interest (6.75% at September 30, 2023) payments due monthly. Interest income amounted to $34 and
$52 for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. :

A brief description of CRHC's éfﬁiiéted entities is as follows:

»  Granite VNA (formerly Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Associaﬁon, Inc. and Subsidiary) provides
home health care services.

* Riverbend Cor'hmunity Mental Health, Inc. provides behavioral health services.

Contributions to affiliates and other community organizations from net assets with donor restrictions
were $302 and $243 in 2023 and 2022, respectively.

anapgi’ql_r Assets and nguldlw Resources

Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, such as
operating expenses, scheduled principal payments on debt, and capital construction costs, consisted of
the following at September 30, 2023:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 79,917
Short-term investments 46,394
Accounts receivable 91,318

Funds held by trusiee for insurance reserves, '
debt service and construction costs : 18.380
$236.000
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2023 and 2022

(In thousands)

Financial Assets and. Liquidity Resources (Continued)

To manage liquidity, the System maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalent balances to support daily
operations throughout the year. Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments include bank
deposits, money market funds, and other similar vehicles that generate a return on cash and provide daily
liquidity to the System. In addition, the System has board-designated assets without donor restrictions
that can be utilized at the discretion of management to help fund both operational needs and/or capital
projects. As of September 30, 2023, the balance of liquid investments in board-designated assets was
$343,827. . :

!

Investmeht_s»and .Agsets ,Wh_n):sg; U se IS Limited’ or Restk‘icted

Short-term investment$ totaling $46,394 and $15,322 at September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, are
comprised primarily of cash and cash equivalents. Assets whose use is limited. or restricted are carried
at fair value and consist of the following at September 30:

Board designated funds: _ ' :
Cash and cash equivalents $ 25295 § 2,771
Fixed income securities 22,124 21,839
Marketable equity and other securities . , 326,500 301,116
Inflation-protected securities - _14.386 14,332

388,305 340,058

~

Held by trustee for workers' compensation reserves: ‘,
Fixed income securities ’ 2,967 2,501

Self-insurance escrows and construction funds: , ’
Cash and cash equivalents - 1,255 8,648

Fixed income securities ) 13,357 - 24,074 |
Marketable equity securities _ 17.381 - _14.895

31,993 47,617

Donor-restricted funds and restricted grants:

Cash and cash equivalents : - 5,857 7,553
Fixed income securities L3720 1,606
Marketable equity securities 24,965 23,091
Inflation-protected securities : 1,100 1,020
Trust funds administered by others 10,208 9,836

Other ' 592 408
: 44,094 43,514

$467.359 $433.600
Included in marketable equity and other securities above are $205,295 and $203,040 at September 30,

2023 and 2022, respectively, in so called alternative investments and collective trust funds. See also
Note 15. , ’ :
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES . -
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCLAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

- Investments ar and Asseté Whose Use is Limited or, :Restricted »(Continued,} '

Investment income (loss), net reahzed gains and losseés and net unreallzed gains and losses on assets
whose use is limited or restricted, cash and cash equivalents, and other mvestments are as follows at

September 30:

- g 2023 2022.
Net assets without donor restrictions: : .
Intérest and dividends - $ 7,904 $ 7,099
Investment income from trust funds administered by others - 541 599
Net realized gams on sales of investments . 5,383 4,079

Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 37459  (61,177)
_ : 51,287  (49,400)

Net assets with donor restrictions: :
. Interest and dividends o . 432 465

. Net realized gains on sales of investments , 395 608
Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments - » ' 3,209 (7.501)

' ' : s 4,’036 ‘ __(,_Q‘,.428)

$M $=(£.i2§

In comphance with the System's spending policy, portions of investment income and related fees are

_recognized in other operatmg revenue on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Investment income reﬂected in other operating revenue was $1,767 and $2,300 in 2023 and 2022,
respecnvely :

Investment management fees expensed and reﬂected in mvestment income (loss) and other were $857
and $922 for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, respect1vely

Retn‘ement Plans

The System sponsors a defined contnbutlon plan qualified under Section 403(b) of the U.S. Internal
Revenue Code (IRC) covering eligible employees of the System. Participants-are allowed to make pre-
tax or post-tax Roth 403(b) contributions, or a combination of the two. The System does not make -

- matching contributions. Effective January 1, 2024, the System elected to amend this plan to.institute

employer nonelective. and matching contnbutlons, based on certain eligibility reqmrements, as well as
1mplementmg an automatic deferral arrangement equal to 3% of eligible compensatlon as further defined
in the amendment.

The System sponsors two noncontributory defmed benefit retirement plans (the Retu'ement Plan for
Emp]oyees of Concord Hospital (CH Plan) and the Retirement Plan for Employees of Concord Hospital —

Laconia (CH-Laconia Plan)), (collectively, the Plans), which cover substantlally all employees of the
System. The Plans provide benefits based on an employee § years of service, age and compensation over
those years. The System's funding policy for the plans is to contribute annually the amount needed to
meet ot exceed actuarially determined minimum funding requirements of the Employee Retirement
Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA).
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
' NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

* Retirement Plans (Continued)

The System accounts for its defined benefit pension plans under ASC 715, Compensation Rezireme(it
Benefits, which requires entities to recognize an asset or liability for the overfunded or underfunded
status of their ‘beneﬁt plans in their financial statements.

On September 26, 2022, the Plans were amended to offer certain participants age 62 and older the option
to receive a lump-sum distribution as payment for grandfathered benefits. The ehglble participants had
180 days to elect this benefit, beginning October 1, 2022. o

During ﬁscal year 2022, the CH-Laconia Plan incurred a settlement charge due to lump sums paid in
excess of the settlement threshold for the Plan year. The settlement charge totaled $450 and is reflected
as a component of net periodic benefit gain, other than service cost. .

On October 24, 2022, the Board of Trustees approved a merger of the CH Plan into the CH-Laébma ,
Plan. The merger of the Plans was effective December 31, 2022 and the surviving plan was named the
Retirement Plan for Employees of Concord Hospital: (Concord Hospital Plan) :

Effective January 1, 2024, the Board of Trustees elected to amend the Concord Hospital Plan to
discontinue future participation in the Plan by any employees whe are hired or rehired after

- December 31, 2023, as further defined in the amendment.

The following table summarizes the Plans' funded status at Sgaptember 300

Funded status:
~ Fair value of plan assets $343,471 -$ 319,496
Projected benefit obligation 7 - (319.529)  (329.477)
Activities for the year consist of: v
Benefit payments and administrative oot ‘ ’
expenses paid ~$ 33965 $ 19,314
Net periodic benefit cost - 8,565 15,198

The table below presents details about the Plans, including the funded status components of net penodlc
benefit cost, and certain assumptions used in determining the funded status and cost:

2023 2022
Change in benefit obhgatlon e o
Projected benefit obligation at begmnmg of year $329,477 $392,275
Service cost 7 A © 13,298 16,519 -~
Interest cost © 18,596 13217
Actuarial gain ' (7.877)  (69,169)
Benefit payments and administrative expenses paid ©(33,965)  (19313)
Settlements and plan amendments S - (4.052) -
Projected benefit obligation at end of year : 0 $319,529 $329.477
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES -
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Reﬁremgntrl’l?ns (antin@gdi)"

2023 2022
Change in plan assets: A
Fair value of plan assets at begmnmg of year $319,496 $375,094
Actual gain (loss) on plan assets 41,940  (59,286)
Employer contributions : 16,000 - 27,900
Benefit payments and admmlstratxve expenses : (33,965) (19,313)
Settlements - (4.899)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year ' $343,471 $319.496
Funded status and amount recognized in . v
noncurrent assets (liabilities) at September 30 $.23942 $_(9.981)

Amounts i'eco‘gnizéd as a change in net assets without donor resnictions during the years ended
September 30, 2023 and 2022 consist of:

2003 2022
Net actuarial (gain) loss $(23,273) '$ 15,858
Net amortized loss (3,372) (10,149)
Prior service credit amortization 156 243
Impact of settlement : ) = (450)
Total amount recognized © $(26,489) $_ 5,502

Pension Plan Assets

The fair values of the Plans' assets as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, by asset category are as follows
(see Note 15 for level definitions). In accordance with ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements, certain
investments that are measured using the net value per share practical expedient have not been classified
in the fair value hierarchy.

| 208 202
Short-term investments (Level 1):
Money market funds $ 12804 % 4,114
Equity securities (Level 1) : .
Mutual funds — domestic 145825 - 115,233
Mutual funds — intemnational ) o= 10,302
Mutual funds — inflation hedge 12,946 - 12,909
Fixed income securities (Level 1): C .
Mutual funds — fixed income 37.877 _45.965

209,452 188,523
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022

. (In thousands)
Retiremg_]it Plans (Continued)
Funds measured at net asset value:
Equity securities: - : :
Funds-of-funds - $ 81,170 § 81,961
Collective trust funds:’
Equities - . 46,327 40,727
Fixed income . _ 6,522 __8.285
52849 49012
Total investments at fair value | | $343471 $319.496

The Concord Hospital Plan's target asset policy guidelincs include total short-term investments between
0% and 20%, total equity securities between 40%-80%, total fixed income securities between 5% and
80%, and other strategies between 0% and 30%. The CH Plan's target asset policy guidelines, prior to
the merger of the Plans described above, included total short-term investments between 0% and 20%,

_ total equity securities between 40%-80%;, total fixed income securities between 5% and 80%, and other

strategies between 0% and 30%. The CH-Laconia Plan’s target asset policy guidelines, prlor to the
merger of the Plans descnhed above, included total equity securities of 50% and total fixed income

securities of 50%.

The Plans’ asset allocations by asset category are as follows as of September 30:

2023 2022
Short-term investments 4% ) 1%
Equity securities ' 70% 69%
Fixed income securities : 13% 17%
Other : : _ 13% 13%

\\ - .
The funds-of-funds in the Concord Hospital Plan are invested . with various investment managers and

have various restrictions on redemptions. One manager holding amounts totaling approximately
$19 million at September 30, 2023 allows for semi-monthly redemptions, with 5 days' notice. One
manager holding approximately $9 million at September 30, 2023 allows for monthly redemptions, with
15 days' notice. Four managers holding amounts tota]mg approximately $34 million at September 30,
2023 allow for quarterly redemptions, with notices ranging from 45 to 65 days. Two managers holding
amounts totalmg approximately $16 million at September 30, 2023 allow for annual redemptions, with
notices ranging from 60 to 90 days. One manager holding amounts totaling approximately $3 million at
September 30, 2023 allow for redemptions on a semi-annual basis, with a notice of 60 days. The
collective trust funds allow for daily, weekly or monthly redemptlons, with notices ranglng from 6 to 10
“ days. Certain funds also may include a fee estimated to be equal to the cost the fund incurs in converting:
investments-to cash, limit the percent of the investment that can be redeemed each redemptmn period,
or are subject to certain lock periods.

The System considers various factors in estimating the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets.
Among the factors considered include the historical long-term returns on plan assets, the current and
expected allocation of plan assets, input from the System's actuaries and investment consultants, and
long-term inflation assumptions. The System's expected allocation of plan assets is based on a
diversified portfolio consisting of domestic and international equity securities, fixed i income securities,

* and real estate.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Retiremient Plans (Continued)

The System's investment policy for its pension plans is to balance risk and returns using a diversified
portfolio consisting primarily of high quality equity and fixed income securities. To accomplish this
goal, plan assets are actively managed by outside investment managers with the aobjective of optimizing
long-term return while maintaining a high standard of portfolio quality and proper diversification. The
System monitors the maturities of fixed income securities so that there is. sufficient liquidity to meet
current benefit payment obligations. The System's Investment Committee provides oversight of the
~ Plans' investments and the performance of the investment managers. :

Amounts included in expense consist of the following for the years ended September 30:

Components of net periodic benefit cost: v
Service cost ) $ 13,298 $ 16,519
Interest cost ' 18,596 13,217
Expected return on plan assets _ (26,545) (24,894)
Amortization of prior service credit and loss 3,216 9,906
Settlements = 450
Net periodic benefit cost $_ 8565 $_15,198

The accumulated benefit obligation for the Plans at September 30, 2023 and 2022 was $3i3,562 and
$315,168, respectively. :

‘Weighted average assumptions to determine benefit obligation:
Discount rate T 6.11% 5.63%
Rate of compensation increase 3.00% 3.00%
Weighted average assumptions to determine net periodic benefit cost: :
Discount rate ' ' 5.63% 3.33%
Expected return on plan assets 7.60% 6.50% - 7.75%
Cash balance credit rate » 3.00% - 5.00% 5.00%
Rate of compensation increase : 3.00% 2.50% - 3.00%

In selecting the long-term rate of return on plan assets, the System considered the average rate of earnings.
expected on the funds invested or to be invested to provide for the benefits of the plans. This included
considering the plans' asset allocation and the expected returns likely to be eamed over the life of the
plans, as well as the historical returns on the types of assets held and the current economic environment.

The System funds the pension plans and no contributions are made by employees. The System funds
the plans annually by making a contribution of at least the minimum amount required by applicable
regulations and as recommended by the System's actuary. However, the System may also fund the plans .
in excess of the minimum required amount. :

{
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
September 30, 2023 and 2022

(In thousands)

Retirement Plans (Continued)

Cash contributions in subsequent years will depend on a number of factors including performance of
plan assets. However, the System expects to fund $16,000 in cash contributions to the Concord Hospltal
Plan in 2024.

Benefit payments, whlch reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid-as
follows:

Year Ended September 30

2024 ’ ' . $ 27,172
2025 ' ’ ' © 24447
2026 . 126,747
2027 28,696
2028 28,774
2029 —2033 147475

Estimated Third-Party Payor Settlements

- The System has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the System at amounts
~ different from its established rates. A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party
payors follows:

- Medicare
" Inpatient and outpatient services rendered to Medicare program beneﬁclarles are primarily paid at

prospec’uvely determined rates. These rates vary according to a patient classification system that is
based on clinical diagnosis and other factors. In addition to this, the System is also reimbursed for

medical education and other items which require cost settlement and retrospective review by the fiscal.

intermediary. Accordingly, the System files an annual cost report- with the Medicare program after the

completion of each fiscal year to report actmty applicable to the Medicare program and to determine
_any final settlements. ‘ .

The physician practices are reimbursed on a fee sehedule basis.

Medzcatd Enhancement Tax and Dlsproportzonate Share Pavment

Under the State of New Hampshire's (the State) tax code, the State imposes a Medicaid Enhancementl
Tax (MET) equal to 5.40% of net patient service revenues in State fiscal years 2023 and 2022. The
amount of tax incurred by the System for 2023 and 2022 was $32,647 and $32,035, respectlvely

In the fall of 2010, in order to remain in compliance with stated federal regulations, the State of New

Hampshire -adopted a new approach relaied to Medicaid disproportionate share funding (DSH)
retroactive to July 1, 2010. Unlike the former funding method, the State's approach led to a payment
_that was not directly based on, and did not equate to, the level of tax imposed. As‘a resuit, the leg1slat10n
created some level of losses at certain New Hampshire hospitals, while other hospltals reahzed gains.
- DSH payments from the State are recorded within revenue without donor restrictions and other support
and amounted to $30,212 in 2023 and $29,744 in 2022, net of reserves referenced below.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2023 and 2022

(In thousands)

Estimated Third-Party Payor Séttlém_entS { "Con_tinued)

The Centers for Medicére and Medicaid Services (CMS) has completed audits of the: State's program
and the disproportionate share payments made by the State from 2011 to 2019, the first years that those
payments reflected the amount of uncompensatedcare provided by New Hampshire hospitals. It is

possible that subsequent years will also be audited by CMS. The System has recorded reserves to address.

its potential exposure based on the audit results to date or any future redistributions.

Subsequent to year end, the HOSpita] filed suit against the NH Department of Health and Human Services
over their plan for the redistribution of DSH payments from 2011 to 2017. All amounts related to the

redistribution plan have been fully reserved for as of September 30, 2023.

Medicaid

Inpatient services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries are paid at prospectively determined rates
per discharge. Outpatient services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries are reimbursed under
fee schedules and cost reimbursement methodologies subject to various limitations or discounts. The
System is reimbursed at a tentative rate with final settlement determined after submission of annual cost
reports by the System and audits thereof by the Medicaid program.

The physician practices are reimbursed on a fee schedple basis.
Other

The System has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers and
health maintenance organizations. The basis for payment to the System under these agreements includes
prospectively determined rates per discharge, discounts from established charges, fee schedules, and
prospectively determined rates. '

-

The accrual for estimated third-party payor settlements reflected on the accompimying consolidated -

balance sheets represents the estimated net amounts to be paid under reimbursement contracts with the
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (Medicare), the New Hampshire Department of Welfare
(Medicaid) and any commercial payors with settlement provision. Settlements for the Hospital have
been finalized through 2018 for Medicare and 2017 for Medicaid. Settlements for CH-Laconia have
been finalized through 2019 for Medicare and Medicaid. Settlements for CH-Franklin have been
finalized through 2021 for Medicare and 2019 for Medicaid. :

During fiscal yeér 2020, the System requested accelerated Medicare payments as provided for in the
CARES Act, which allowed for eligible health care facilities to request up to six months of advance

Medicare payments for acute care hospitals or up to three months of advance ‘Medicare payments for -

other health care providers. One year from the date of receipt of the advance payments (beginning April
2021) 25% of the advances were recouped in the first eleven months. An additional 25% of'the advances
were recouped in the next six months, with the entire amount repayable in 29 months. Any outstanding
balance after 20 months was repayable at a 4% interest rate. During the third quarter of fiscal 2020, the
System received $57,885 from these accelerated Medicare payment requests. At September 30, 2022,
the current portion due within a year, totaling $248 was recorded under the caption "accrual for estimated
third-party payor settlements" in-the accompanying 2022 balance sheet. Amounts were repaid in full
during the year ended September 30, 2023. : '
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Long -Te_nj; Debt
Long-term debt consists of the following at September 30, 2023 and 2022:

1 ]
N
(53]
o
k=
|38 ]

New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority (NHHEFA)

Revenue bonds, Concord Hospital Issue, Series 2021A; interest

ranging from 3.0% to 5.0% per year and principal payable in

annual installments ranging from $1,685 to $3,095 through

October 2042, including unamortized original issue premium

of $6,219 in 2023 and $6,950 in 2022 : $ 46,280 § 48,610
2020A note payable to a bank, due October 1, 2026, interest at 1,57% '

per annum, payable in monthly and annual principal payments

ranging from $2,469 to $2,580 / E 10,093 12,520
2020B note payable to a bank, due October 1, 2035 (lender has the .

option to extend the maturity date through October 1, 2043), interest

-at 2.26% per annum, payable in monthly and annual principal

payments ranging from $991 to $2,942 beginning October 2023.

Final balloon payment of $10,157 due October 1, 2035, if the

maturity date is not extended by the lender. This note converted into

tax-exempt revenue bonds effective July 6, 2022. As a result of the ‘ .

conversion, the interest rate was reduced to 1.84% 36,582 36,582
NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Concord Hospital Issue, Series 2017; interest

of 5.0% per year and principal payable in annual installments.

Installments ranging from $2,010 to $5,965 beginning October 2032,

including unamortized original issue premium of $5,923 in 2023

and $6,249 in 2022 60,012 _60.459

. _ ‘ 152,967 158,171
Less unamortized bond issuance costs N - (1,298) (1,415)
Less current portion / - _(6,144) (4,147)
$145,525 $152,609

In March 2020, the Hospital entered into a $12,520 note payable agreement (2020A note) with a lender
to advance refund $11,780 of the Series 2011 NHHEFA Hospital Revenue Bonds. No amounts of the
Series 2011 advance refunded bonds remained outstanding as of September 30, 2023 and 2022.

In March 2020, the Hospital entered into a $36,582 note payable agreement (2020B note) with a lender
to advance refund the Series 2013A NHHEFA Hospital Revenue Bonds. As of September 30, 2022
$33,785 of the Series 2013A advance refunded bonds, which were considered extinguished for purposes
of these consolidated financial statements, remained outstanding. No amounts of the Series 2013A
advance refunded bonds remained outstanding as of September 30, 2023. In conjunction with the
issuance of the 2020B note, in order to further reduce debt service obligations, the Hospital, NHHEFA
and the lender entered into a forward purchase agreement Under the forward purchase agreement, the
Hospital had the option to request NHHEFA to issue tax-exempt revenue bonds on or after July 3, 2022
to refinance the 2020B note. The Hospital exercxsed this option on July 6, 2022, which resultéd in the
interest rate decreasing from 2.26% to 1.84%.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

" Long-Term Debt (Continued)

In December 2017, $62,004 (including an original issue premium of $7,794) of NHHEFA Revenue
Bonds, Concord Hospital Issue, Series 2017, were issued to pay for the construction of a new medical
office building. In addition, the Series 2017 Bonds reimbursed the Hospital for capital expenditures
incurred in association with the construction of a parking garage and the construction of a medical office
building, as well as routine capital expenditures. ‘

Substantially all the property and equipment relating to the aforementioned construction and renovation
projects, as well as subsequent property and equipment additions thereto, are pledged as collateral for
all outstanding long-term debt. In addition, the gross receipts of the Hospital, CH-Laconia and CH-
Franklin are also pledged as collateral for all outstanding long-term debt. CH-Laconia and CH-Franklin
also pledge gross receipts as collateral for the outstanding Series 2021A Revenue Bonds. The most
restrictive financial covenants require a 1.10 to 1.0 ratio of aggregate income available for debt service
to total annual debt service' and a day's cash on hand ratio of 75 days. The System was in compliance
with its debt covenants at September 30, 2023 and 2022.

The obligations of the Hospital under the above bond indentures are guaranteed by the Hospital, CH-
Laconiz and CH-Franklin and are not guaranteed by any of the subsidiaries or affiliated entities.

Interest paid on long-term debt amounted to $5,215 and $5,531 for the years ended September 30,2023
* and 2022, respectively. ' '

The aggregate principal payments on long-term debt for the next five fiscal years ending September 30

- and thereafter are as follows: ;

2024 | | $ 6,144
2025 - | 4455
2026 ‘ , 5,181
2027 6,949
2028 4516
Thereafter 113,580

5140825

\
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CON CORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Commitments and Contmgencles

Malpractice Loss Contingencies

The Systém insures its medical malpractice risks through GSIE, a multipfovider captive insurance
company. As discussed in Note 1, during 2022, GSIE began the process of winding down operations
and was replaced with CHIG.

GSIE and CHIG provide claims-made medical stop loss coverage to their subscriber health systems.
Subsequent to December 31; 2020, the System is the sole remaining subscriber of GSIE. The System is
also the only subscriber of CHIG. GSIE and CHIG purchase reinsurance from three reinsurers to limit
potential exposure to the System. The reinsurance policies in place are subject to renewal on January 1,
2024, and, afer the System's primary retained layer of $2 million (GSIE) and $3 million (CHIG) per
occurrence and $12 million aggregate, cover up to $25 million per occurrence and aggregate per annum.
The failure of reinsurers to honor their obligations could result in additional losses to GSIE and CHIG,

“and those losses could be significant to GSIE, CHIG and the System.

The reserve for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses and the related reinsurance recoverables
includes case basis estimates of reported losses, plus suyplemental reserves for incurred but not reported
losses (IBNR) calculated based upon less projections utilizing historical and industry data. An
independent consulting actuary is involved in establishing this reserve and the related reinsurance
recoverables. Management of the System believes that GSIE's and CHIG's aggregate reserve for unpaid
losses and loss adjustment expenses and related reinsurance recoverables at year-end represent its best
estimate, based on the available data, of the amount necessary to cover the ultimate cost of losses;
however, because of the nature of the insured risks and limited historical experience, actual loss
experience may not conform to the assumptions used in determining the estimated amounts for such
liability and corresponding asset at the consolidated balance sheet date. Accordingly, the ultimate
liability and corresponding asset could be significantly in excess of or less than the amount indicated in
these consolidated financial statements. As adjustments to these estimates. become necessary, such
adjustments are reflected in current year operations. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers have been
reduced to their net realizable value.

At September 30, 2023, there were no known malpractice claims outstanding for the System, which, in
the opinion of management will be settled for amounts in excess of insurance coverage, nor were there
any unasserted claims or incidents which require loss accruals. The System has established reserves for
unpaid claim amounts for Hospital and Physician Professional Liability and General Liability reported
claims and for unreported claims for incidents that have been incurred but not reported. The amounts of
the reserves total $17,690 and $20,253 at September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and are reflected
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets within reserves for insurance. The possibility exists,
as a normal risk of doing business, that malpractice claims in excess of insurance coverage may be
asserted against the System.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
‘NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Commitments and. Contingencies { Continued)

In accordance with ASU No. 2010-24, "Health Care Entities" (Topic 954): Presentation of Insurance
Claims and Related Insurance Recoveries, at September 30, 2023 and 2022, the System recorded a
liability of approximately $3,100 and $3,300, respectively related to estimated professional liability
losses. ‘At September 30, 2023 and 2022, the System also recorded a receivable of $3,100 and $3,300,
respectlvely, related to estimated recoveries under insurance coverage for recoveries of the potential
losses. These amounts are included in reserve for insurance ($3,100 at September 30, 2023 and $3,300
at September 30, 2022), and other assets ($3,100 at September 30, 2023 and $3,300 at September 30,
2022), respectively, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Workers' Compensation

The System maintains workers' compensation insurance under a self-insurance plan. The p]an offers,
among other provisions, certain specific and aggregate stop-loss coverage to protect the System against
excessive losses. The System has employed independent actuaries to estimate the ultimate costs, if any,
of the settlement of such claims. Accrued workers' compensation losses of $4,061 and $3,888 at
September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, are recorded within accounts payable and accrued expenses
in the accompanymg consolidated balance sheets and have been discounted at 3% (both years) and, in
managementis opinion, provide an adequate reserve for loss contingencies. A trustee held fund has been
established as a reserve under the plan. Assets held in trust totaled $2,967 and $2,501 at September 30,
2023 and 2022, respectively, and are included in assets whose use is limited: or restricted in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. '

Litigation

The System is involved in litigation and regulatory investigations arising in the ordinary course of
business. Afier consultation with legal counsel, management estimates.that these matters -will be
resolved without material adverse effect on the System's financial position, results of operations or cash
flows.

Health Insurance

The System has a self-funded health insurance plan. The plan is administered by an insurance company
which assists in determining the current funding requirements of part1c1pants under the terms of the plan
and the liability for claims and assessments that would be payable at any given point in time. The System
recognizes revenue for services provided to employees of the System during the year. The System is
insured above a stop-loss amount of $550 on individual claims. Estimated unpaid claims, and those
claims incurred but not reported at September 30, 2023 and 2022, have been recorded as a liability of
$13,631 and $13,286, respectively, and are reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
within accounts payable and accrued expenses.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

~ - September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes at September 30:

, 2023 2022
. Purpose restriction: ' .
~ Health education and program services $18,770 $18,991
- Capital acquisitions ' 441 610
Indigent care 83 116
Pledges receivable with stipulated v
purpose and/or time restrictions o 575 391
19,869 20,108
Perpetual in nature: o ‘ v
Health education and program services 20,859 20,225
Capital acquisitions . 803 803
Indigent care , 2,105 2,105
Annuities to be held in perpetuity 458 __273
: 24,225 23.406
Total net assets with doner restrictions T 844094 $43.514

Patient Service Revenue

‘An estimated breakdown of patient service revenue for the System by major payor sources is as follows

for the years ended September 30:

L
Private payor (includes coinsurance and deductibles) $388,492 $391,300
‘Medicare : v 282,111 276,967
Medicaid ' 34,880 40,340

Self-pay " __ 275 789

$705.758 - $709.396

'
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September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Functional Expenses

The System i)rovides general health care services to residents within its geographic location. Expenses
related to providing these services are as follows for the years ended September 30:

Health . General and Fund-

Services Administrative  raising Total

Salaries and wages ¥ $316,143 $ 60,492 $ 574 $377,209
Employee benefits ’ 68,381 13,086 - 124 81,591
Supplies and other 131,206 21,241 188 152,635
Purchased services 37,677 19,896 223 . 57,796
Professional fees : 17,021 = - 17,021
Depreciation and amortization 18,310 8,692 289 27,291
Medicaid enhancement tax 32,647 - - 32,647
Interest 2.868 1.362 45 4275

$624,253 $124,769 $1443  $750.465
2022
Salaries and wages ’ $320,669 $ 59,597 $ 580 - $380,846
Employee benefits 717,767 14,455 141 92,363
Supplies and other- 135,008 21,486 ' 180 156,674
Purchased services : 33,227 17,988 177 51,392
Professional fees . . 16,495 3 - . 16,498
Depreciation and amortization A 19,424 9,222 307 . 28,953
Medicaid enhancement tax ' 32,035 = - 32,035
Interest ' ’ 3.065 1,455 48 4,568

$637.600  $124206  $1433  $763.320

The consolidated financial statements report certain expense categories that are attributable to more than -
one healthcare service or support function. Therefore, these expenses require an allocation on a

reasonable basis that is consistently applied. Costs not directly attributable to a function, such as

depreciation and interest, are allocated to a function based on square footage. Supporting activities that

are not directly identifiable with one or more healthcare programs are classified as general and

administrative. If it is impossible or impractical to make a direct identification, allocation of the

expenses .were made according to management's estimates. Employee benefits are allocated in

accordance with the ratio of salaries and wages of the functional classes. Specifically 1dent1ﬁable costs
are assigned to the function which they are identified to.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Charity Care and Community Beqreirirtsr.{Unau.(lirtedai

The System maintains records to identify and monitor the level of charity care it ~provides. The System
provides traditional charity care, as well as other forms of community benefits. The estimated cost of
all such benefits provided is as follows for the years ended September 30: ’

2023 2022
Government sponsored healthcare $35,353. $36,515
" Community health services 1,507 1,281
Health professions education 2,801 2,038
Subsidized health services 52,622 50,929
Research 306 131
Financial contributions 1,405 1,440
Community benefit operations , 68 89
Community building activities - 786 414
Charity care costs (see Note 1) _ 3465 3.389
- 398,313 $96.226

The System incurred estimated costs for services to Medicare patients in excess of the payment from this
program of $82,230 and $78,563 in 2023 and 2022, respectively.

" Concentration of Credit Risk

The System grants credit without cdllateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents of southern
New Hampshire and are insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of gross receivables from
patients and third-party payors as of September 30 is as follows:

2023 2022
Patients " 9% 8%
Medicare 38 42
Anthem Blue Cross ‘ 19 18
Cigna 3 3
Medicaid 10 11
Commercial 19 16
Workers' compensation 2 _2

100%  100%
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September 30, 2023 and ;202,2.
(In thousands)

Volunteer Services (Unaudited)

Total volunteer service hours received by the System were approximately 25,000 and 23,000 in 2023
and 2022, respectively. The volunteers provide various nonspecialized services to the System, none of
which has been fecognized as revenue or expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations. - ' ' ‘

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value of a financial instrument is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In
determining fair value, the System uses various methods including market, income and cost approaches.
Based on these approaches, the System often utilizes certain assumptions that market participants would
use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and or the risks inherent in the
inputs to the valuation technique. These inputs can be readily observable, market corroborated, or
generally unobservable inputs. The System utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. Based on the observability of the inputs
used in the valuatior techniques, the System is required to provide the following information according
to the fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy ranks the quality-and reliability of the information
used to determine fair values. Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value will be classified and.
disclosed in one of the following three categories: T

Level 1 — Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in active exchange markets, such as the New .

York Stock Exchange. Level 1 also includes U.S. Treasury and federal agency securities and federal

agency mortgage-backed securities, which are traded by -dealers or brokers in active markets.,

Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market transactions involving
" identical assets or liabilities. ' o

Level 2 — Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in less active dealer or broker markets.
Valuations are obtained from third party pricing services for identical or similar assets or liabilities.

Level 3 — Valuations for assets and liabilities that are derived from other valuation methodologies,
including option pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques, and not based.
on market exchange, dealer or broker traded transactions. Level 3 valuations incorporate certain
assumptions and projections in determining the fair value assigned to such assets or liabilities.

In determining the appropriate levels, the System performs a detailed analysis of the assets and liabilities. . -
There have been no changes in the methodologies used at September 30, 2023 and 2022. In accordance
with ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements, certain investments that are measured using the net value per
share practical expedient have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy. ‘
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Fair Value Measurements (Continued)
: ] 7 :
The following presents the balances of assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at September 30:-

Levell Level2 Level3  Total

2023

Cash and cash equwalents S $ 7881 & - & - § 78801
Fixed income securities 25471 10,177 . - 35,648
Marketable equity and other securities 163,551 -~ - 163,551
Inflation-protected securities and other 16,078 - - 16,078
Trust funds administered by others - = 10,208 10,208

$283.901 $10,177 $10.208 304,286

Funds measured at net asset value:

Marketable equity and other securities T ’ 205.295
- $509,581
2022
Cash and cash equivalents . $34294 § - § - §$ 34294
Fixed income securities’ 35,203 . 10,645 - 45,848
Marketable equity and other securities 136,062 - - 136,062
Inflation-protected securities and other 15,760 - = 15,760
Trust funds administered by others - - 9.836 9.836

$221.319 $10,645 $_9,.836 - 241,800

Funds measured at net asset value:
Marketable equity and other securities 203,040

$444.840
{

In- addition, for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, there are cenam investments totaling
$4 172 which are appropriately being carried at cost.

The System's Level 3 investments consist of funds administered by others. The fair value measurement
is based on significant unobservable inputs. :

- Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit and overall market

volatility. As such, it is reasonably possible that changes in the fair value of investments will occur in
the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets and statements of operations.
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15.

CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
- NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Fair Value ‘Measurgmengf Continued)

A reconciliation of the fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) is as

follows for 2023 and 2022:

Trust Funds
Administered
Balance at September 30, 2021 : ' $12,341
Net realized and unrealized losses (2.505)
Balance at September 30, 2022 , 9,836
Net realized and unrealized gains ‘ 372
Balance at September 30, 2023 $10,208

The table below sets forth additional disclosures for investment funds (other than mutual fands) valued
based on net asset value to further understand the nature and risk of the investments by category:

Unfunded "~ Redemption
Fair Commit- Redemption Notice
Value -ments. Frequency _ Period
September 30, 2023: A '
Funds-of-funds $22,628 $8 - Semi-monthly 5 days
Funds-of-funds 12,007 - Monthly 15 days
Funds-of-funds 44,264 - Quarterly 45 — 65 days**
Funds-of-funds 13,621 - Annual 60 - 90 days
Funds-of-funds 4,657 —  Semi-annual 60 days*
Funds-of-funds 47,870 32,327 Iliquid N/A
Collective trust funds 7,032 - Daily ’ 10 days
Collective trust funds : 7,641 - Weekly 10 days
Collective trust funds 45,575 - Monthly 6 — 10 days
September 30, 2022:
Funds-of-funds $18489 $ - Semi-monthly 5 days
Funds-of-funds 9,645 - Monthly 15 days
Funds-of-funds 53,791 - Quarterly 45 - 65 days**
Funds-of-funds 10,329 - Annual -~ 90 days
Funds-of-funds - - 8,250 .= Semi-annual 60 days*
Funds-of-funds 42,296 25,854 Iliguid o N/A
Collective trust funds 12,582 - Daily 10 days
Collective trust funds 7,008 - Weekly 10 days
Collective trust funds ’ 40,650 - Monthly 6~ 10 days

* Limited to 25% of the investment balance at each redemption. A full redemption of this fund is in
progress as of September 30, 2023.
** One investment has a one-year lock period and redemption of one investment is limited to 12.5% of

the investment balance at each redemption.
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15.

CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2023 and 2022

(In thousands)

Fair V alue Measull'emen:tsy_‘ Continued}

Fixed Income Securities

‘The primary purpose of fixed income investments is to provide a highly predictable and dependable

source of income, preserve capital, and reduce the volatility of the total portfolio and hedge against the
risk of deflation or protracted economic contraction.

:M_arketable quit\‘{ and Other Secu;itigs

The primary purpose of marketable equity investments is to provide appreciation of principal and growth
of income with the recognition that this requires the assumption of greater market volatility and risk of
loss. The total marketable equity portion of the portfolio will be broadly diversified according to
economic sector, industry, number of holdings and other characteristics including style and
capitalization. The System may employ multiple equity investment managers, each of whom may have
distinct investment styles. Accordingly, while each manager's portfolio may not be fully diversified, it
is expected that the combined equity portfolio will be broadly diversified.

The System invests in other securitics that are considered alternative investments that consist of limited
partnership interests in investment funds, which, in turn, invest in diversified portfolios predominantly
comprised of equity and fixed income securities, as well as options, futures contracts, and some other
less liquid investments, Management has approved procedures pursuant to the methods in which the
System values these investments at fair value, which ordinarily will be the amount equal to the pro-rata
interest in the net assets of the limited partnership, as such value is supplied by, or on behalf of, each
investment from time to time, usually monthly and/or quarterly by the investment manager. Collective
trust funds are generally valued based on the proportionate share of total fund net assets.

System management is responsible for the fair value measurements of investments reported in the
consolidated financial statements. Such amounts are generally determined using audited financial
statements of the funds and/or recently settled transactions and is estimated using the net asset value per
share of the fund. Because of inherent uncertainty of valuation of certain alternative investments, the
estimate of the fund manager or general partner may differ from actual values, and differences could be
significant. Management believes that reported fair values of its alternative investments at the balance
sheet dates are reasonable. ’

The System has committed to invest up to $73,183 with various investment managers, and had funded

$33,856 of that commitment as of September 30, 2023. As these investments are made, the System
reallocates resources from its current investments resulting in an asset allocation shift within the
investment pool.

Inflation-Protected Securities

The primary purpose of inflation-protected securities is to provide protection against the negative effects

_of inflation.
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16.

CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Fair Value of Other Financial Instruments

Other financial instruments consist of accounts and pledges receivable, accounts payable and accrued
expenses, estimated third-party payor settlements, and long-term debt and notes payable. The fair value
of all financial instruments other than long-term debt and notes payable approximates their relative book
values as these financial instruments have short-term maturities or are recorded at amounts that
approximate fair value.

Leases

Adoption of ASC Topic 842, Leases (4SC 842)

The System has various leases relative to its office and offsite locations. ASC 842 became effective for
the System on October 1, 2022 and was adopted using the modified retrospective method for all leases
that had commenced as of the effective date, along with certain available practical expedients. The
System elected to recognize any effects of applying the new standard as a cumulative-effect adjustrent
to the opening balance of net assets in the period of adoption, which there were none. In addition, the
System elected to adopt the package of practical expedients permitted under the transition guidance
within the new standard. The practical expedient package applied to leases that commenced prior to the
effective date of the new standard and permits a reporting entity not to: i) reassess whether any expired
or existing contracts are or contain leases, ii) reassess the historical lease classification for any expired
or existing leases, and iii) reassess initial direct costs for any existing leases. The reporting results for
fiscal year 2023 reflect the application of ASC 842 guidance while the historical results for fiscal year
2022 were prepared under the guidance of ASC 840. The adoption of the new standard did not have a
significant impact upon the System's consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets and
cash flows. The adoption of the new standard resulted in the following impact: the recording of right-
of-use assets and corresponding lease liabilities pertaining to the System's operating leases on the
accompanying 2023 consolidated balance sheet.

Operating lease right-of-use assets and operating lease liabilities are reported in the System's 2023
consolidated balance sheet as follows:

Operating lease right-of-use assets $26,252
Current portion of operating lease liabilities $ 5,406
Operating lease liabilities, less current portion 21.091
Total operating lease liabilities $26,497

During the year ended September 30, 2023, the total lease cost associated with the System's operating
leases was $6,319.
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' KEY PERSONNEL

Danny Turmel, RTR (CT) - ‘
Director of Radiology at Concord Hospital--Concord, Laconia, Franklin

Dan has been in the field of Radiology for 29+ years. He holds a Bachelors Degree in Healthcare
Administration. He has 17+ years in a direct leadership role in hospital based settings, with 8 of those
years serving as the Director of Radiology in two different institutions. Dan has been the Director of
Radiology at Concord Hospital since May of 2021. He focuses on continuous improvement that drives
‘productivity, operational efficiencies and financial stewardship with the aim of positive customer service.

Dan Turmel RTR (CT)
Director of Radiology
603-227-7000 ext. 7262
Concord Hospital

250 Pleasant St.
Concord, NH 03301
dturmel@crhc.org

Debra Willey, MBA, MT(ASCP)

Director of Laboratory Services, Concord Hospital - Concord :

Debra Willey started working at Concord Hospital in 1989 as a new graduate from the Umversnty of New Hampshire,
Since then, Debra has held multiple leadership roles in the Laboratory, including Director, since 2008.- The Laboratory
has serviced Nursing Homes, Acute Care Facilities and Rehabilitation Facilities actively since 1997 and prides itself on
its strong commitment to customer service.

Debra Willey, MBA, MT(ASCP)
Director of Laboratory Services
Concord Hospitat / Concord
603-227-7000 x 4614

dwilley@crhc.org

Kerri Scribner OTR/L, MBA
Director of Inpatient Rehabilitation Services and Outpatient Speech Language Pathology at Concord
Hospital-Concord/Laconia/Franklin

Kerri has served as the Director of Rehabilitative Services at all 3 hospitals in the Con‘cord Hospital Health
System since 2020 and has been with Concord Hospital since 2012. She has been a practicing
Qccupational therapist for 27 + years earning a BS in Science/Occupational Therapy from University of
New Hampshire in 1997 and a MBA from New England College in 2012. An experienced and visionary
leader in acute care PT, OT and SLP as well as leading Outpatient Adult and Pediatric SLP who thrives in a
fast-paced environment that values high quality patlent care and system thinking. '

250 Pleasant St Suite 5073

Concord, NH 03301

603-227-7000 ext.2631

kscribne@crhc.org




New Hampshire Veterans Home

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions are not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Concord Hospital. Inc.. Conbord Hospital — Laconia & Concord Hospital - Franklin

NAME

JOB TITLE

ANNUAL
AMOUNT
| PAID FROM

_ THIS

ANNUAL |
SALARY ||

| CONTRACT

[Danny Turmel | Director of Radiology | $0.00 | __ $180,000]
' , | Director of Inpatient Rehabilitation and =~ |- o C o
Kerri Scribner | Outpatient Speech Language Pathology $0.00 ~ $143,000;

| Director of Laboratory Services

| Debra Willey '

_$000)

$163,0001




FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 2/23/2023)

| Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any informiation that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be ciear]y identified to the agency and agreed toin wnnng pnor 1o signing the contract .

AGREEMENT
’l‘he State of New Hamps‘mre and the Contractor hereby mutuaﬂy agree as follows:
. GENERAL PROVISIONS
“1.] State Agency Name - : _ 1.0 State Agency Address o ' i
| New Hampshire Veterans Home 1139 Winter Street, Tilton, NH- 03726 |
13 Conwactor Name ‘ TG ContractorAddress )
Concord Hospital - Laconia ¢ 80 Highland Street, Lacoma NH 03246
| .5 Contractor Phone | 1.6 Avcouni Unitand Class | 1.7 Completion Dais™ | 1.8 “Price Limiation |
' Number 1 010-043-53590000-101- | 6/30/2029 $150,000.00
1(603)524-3211 1500729 - [ ‘ :
19 Contracting Officer for State Agency | 110 Stale Agency Telophons Number
| Kimberly MacKay | 603-527-4400
i 1.11 Contractor Emiéﬁavﬁi;é\ T mi;;'m‘ i3 Name and Title of Contraclor ngnatory .
‘//)/(’; /d’ . Date: o‘g/%/gc'a\( ' Robeat P Qe:dme/en p{e,su!evk-bcfﬁ ,
1 13 Sta(e Agency S)gnamre '- o T 1.14 Name and T;tle of State Agency §1gnatory S
i Kimberly Mackay, MS NHA
. . - Date: 5]2«‘202&}  Commandant o
1 1 ]5 Approval ’by tthH Du‘isarfmentuf Admm:stratlon Division of Personncl GF applmab)e} T
By: e ‘ ' Director, On: v g ’ o
[ 116 Approval by the Atioriey General (Form, Substance and Exeoution) (§ pplicable) - T
By: ,@,5/,,,4 %“‘”““ Coom /1124 o
1 I’? Appmval by the Governér and Executive Covnell @ if app[mab!e) T T
G&C Ttem number: ‘ - G&C Meeting Date:
~

! : - Page 1 of 4 » . N :
' ' ' . . Contractor Initials j .
. Date 24



2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
(*State™), engages contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Coniractor™)

to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of

goods, or both, identified and more particularly described in the
“attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by. reference
(“Services™). ’

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLEXION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and: subject {o the approval of the Govemor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Govemnor and Executive Council
approve this Agreement, umless no such approval is required, in
which case the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block 1.13
{“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effective
Date, all. Services- performed by the Contractor prior to the
Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor,
and in the event that this Agreement does not become effective, the
State -shall have no liability to the Contractor, including without
timitation, any oblipation to pay the Contractor for any costs

" incurred or Services performed.

3.3 Contractor must complete all Semces by the Compleiion Dale
speoified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITI(_)NAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithistanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary,
" all obligations of the State hereunder, including, without limitation,

the continvance of payments heretnder, are contingent upon the-

availability and continued appropriation of funds. In no event shall
" the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such

available appropriated fonds. In the event of a reduction or .
termination of appropriated funds by any state or federal legistative .

ar executive action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies
the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or int part,
the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this- Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination. The
State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
or source 1o the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds
in that Account are reduced or uuavaﬂable

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATIOM PAYMENT.
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment.
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.

'52 Notwithstanding any provision- in this Agreemem to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shal] the total of all payments guthorized, or actually made
heréunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. The
payment by the State of the contract price shall be thie only and thie
complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all expenses, of
whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the performance
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hergof, and shal be the only and the comp!ete compensanon to the

Contractor for the Services. . .
5.3 The State reserves the ngm to offset from any amounts

otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those

liguidated amounts reqmred or pemmitted by N.H. RSA §(:7

through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law,

5.4 The State’s liability under this Agreement shall be limited to

monetary damages not to exceed the total fees paid, The Contractor

- agrees that it has an adequate remedy: at law for any breach of this

Agreement by the State and hereby waives any right to-specific
performance or other equitable reredies against the State.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND °
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT

OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 In comnection with the perfonnance of 1.he Services, the -
Contractor -shall comply with all- applicable statutes, laws,

“repulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal

authorities. which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportumty laws and the Governor’s order on Respect
and Civility in the Workplacc, Executive order 2020-01. In
addition, if this Agreement is funded in any-part by monies of the
United Stdtes, the Contractor shall comply with all federal

- execalive orders, fules, regulations and statutes, and with any rules,

regulauom and guidelines as the State orthe United Siates issuc to
implement thiese regulations. The ‘Contractor shall also comply
with all applicable intellechial property laws. :
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or -applicants for _employment
because of age, sex, sexual orientation, race, coler, marital status,
physical or mental disability, religious creed, national origin,
gender identity, or gender expression, and will take affirmative
action to preveat such discrimination, unless exempt by, state or
federal law. The Contractor shall ensure any subcontmcmrs
comply with these nondiscrimination requirements. :
63 No paymems or transfers of value by Contractor or its
representativés in-connection with this Agreement have or shall be
made which have the purpose or effect of public or commercial

 bribery, or acceptance “of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks,

or other unlawful or improper means of obtaining ‘business.

6.4. “The Contractor agrees.to permit the State-ot United States
atcess to any of the Contractor’s books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance thh this Agreement and
all rules, regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms

- and conditions of'this Agreement

7. PERSONNEL. :
7.1 The Contracior shal[ at its own expense provxde all personnel

“ necessary 10 perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that all
_ personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform the
-Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise anthorized

1o do so under all applicable ] laws, -
7.2 The Contracting Officer spevified in- block 19 or any
successor, shall be the State s point of contact periaining to. this

Agreement.
Contractor Imua]s /
Date_ i



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constifute an event of default hereunder (“Event
of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on schedule;
$.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or

8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement,

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:

8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Defauit and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser specification of time; thitty (30) calendar days
from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely
cured, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) calendar days
after gwmg the Contractor notice of tefmination;

8.2.2 give the Contracter a writien notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments 0 be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price which
would otherwise accrue to the Contractor uring the period from
the date of such notice until such time as the State determines that
the Contractor has cured the Event of Default shall nevér be paid
to the Contractor;

8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice speclfymg the Event of
Defanit and set off against any other obligations the Staté may owe
to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reasen of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, tenninate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9, TERMINATION,

9.1 Notwithistanding paragraph 8, the Statc may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agresment for any reason, in whole.or in
part, by thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the Contractor
that the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any
reason other than the completion of the Services, the Contractor
shall, at the State’s discretion, deliver to the Contracting Officer,
nol later than ffteen (15) calendar days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report*) describing in detail
all Servicés performed, and the contract price earned, to and
including the date of termination. In addition, at the State’s
discretion, the Coniractor shall, within fifteen (15) celendar days
of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the Statc a
transition plan for Services under the Agreement.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “Property” shall mean
all data, information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether finished or
unfinished.
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10.2 All. data and any Property which has been received from the
State, or puschased with funds provided for that purpose 1 under this
Agreement, shail be the property of the State, and shall be retumed
to the State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement
for any reason.

10.3 Disclosure of data, information and other records shall be
governed by N.H. RSA chapier 91-A and/or other applicable law.
Disclosure requires prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects an
independent contractor; and is neither anagent nor an employee of
the State. Neithier the Contractor ror afty of its officets, employm,
agents or members shail have authority 10 bind the State or receive
any benefils, workers’ compensation or other emotumems
provided by the State to its employees.

12, ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATIONSUBCONTRACTS ‘
12.1 Contractor shall provide the State written notice at least fifieon
(15) calendar days before any proposed assignmeny, delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in- this Agreement. No such
assignment, delegation, or other transfer shall be effective without
the written consent of the State.

12.2. For purposes of paragraph 12, a Change of Control shall
constitute assighment. “Change of Contral” means (&) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or serics of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the direct
or indirect owner-of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting
shares or similas. equity interests, or combined voting power of the
Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of
the Contractor.

12.3 None of the Services shall be snbcontmctcd by the Contraclor
without prior written notice and consent of the State.

124 The State is entitled -to copies of all subcontracts and
assigument agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions
contained in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it
is not a party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shail indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the State, its officers, and employees
from and against all actions, claims, damages, demands,
judgments, fines, liabilities, losses, and other- expenses, including,
without limifation, reasonable attomeys’ fees, arising out of or
relating lo this Agreement directly or indirectly arising from death,
personal  injury, proporty damags, intellectual property
infringement, or other claitns asserted against the State, its officers,
or employees caused by the acts or amissions of negligence,
reckless or willful misconduet, or fraud by the Contractor, its
employees, agents, or subcontractors. The State shall not be liable
for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under this
paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the State’s
sovereign 1mmumty, which immunity is hexéby reserved to the
State: This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survivé the termination
of this Agreement.

Contractor Initials z j /
Date /4 g/




14. INSYYRANCE.
14.1 The Contraotor shall, at its sole expemc obtain and
contimuously maintain in force, and shall requwe any subcontractor
- or assignée to obtain and mamtam in force. the f'ull()ng
insurance; _
14.1.1 commercial gencral liability insurance agamst all claims of
bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than
$1,000,000. per oceurrence and $2,000,000 apgregate Or excess;
and
14.1.2 specla] cause of 1oss coverage form covering all Property
- subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the Property. .
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State of
~ New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued
by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire,
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or any successor; a certificate(s) of
insurancoe for all insurance required under this Agreement. At-the
request of the Contracting Officer, or any successor, the Contractor
_shall provide certificate(s) of imsurance for all renewal(s) of
insurance required under this Agreement. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated hetein by reference.

15. WORKERS® COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warranis that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from;
the requireménts of N.H, RSA chapter 281-A (“Workers’
Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
MN.I. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and require
any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain, payment of
Workers® Compensation in connection with activities which the
person proposes fo underiake pursuant to this Agreement, - The
Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block
1.9, or any successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the
mannet described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are incorporated
herein by reference, The State shall not be responsible for payment
of any Workers' Compensation preminms or for any other claifn or
benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of.
Contractor, which might arise under applicable .State of New
Hampshire Workers’ Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agresment.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A State's failure to enforce its rights
with respect (o any single or continuing breach of this Agreement
shall not act as a waiver of the right of the State to later enforce any
such rights or to enforce any other or any subseguent breach.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall
be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time of
mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in-a United States Post
Office addressed to the patties at the addresses given in blocks 1.2
and 1.4, herein. -
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18. AMENDMENT. This Agrecmem may be amended, waived or
discharged only by an instrument in writing sigoed by the pames

hereto and only afier approval of such amendment, waiver or -

discharge by the Govemor and Executive Council of the State of
New Hampshire unless no such approval is required under the
circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.

19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of New Hampshire except
where the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The

wording used in this Agreement is the wording chosen by the

parties to express their mutual intent, and no mle of con':trucuon
shall be applied against or in favor of any party.

19.2 Any acfions arising out of this Agrcement, mcIudmg uxe
breach or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted to binding
arhitration, but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the
Merrimack County Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall
have exclusive jurisdiction thereof. .

20, CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of 2 conflict between .

the tesms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT A) and agy

other portion of this Agreement including any atiachments thereto,
the terms of the P-37 {as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

21. THIRD PARTIES. This Agreement is being entered inlo for
the sole benefit of the parties hereto, and nothing herein, express or
implied, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature upon any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are for
reference purposes only, and the words contained therein shall in
no way be held 1o explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this

Agreement, _
23. SPECIAL PROVIS]ON_S. Additional or - ‘modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference. . ’

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The. Contractor, along wnh its

agents and affiliaies, shall, at its own cost and expense, execute any

additional documents and take such further actions as may be
reasonably required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement
and givé ¢ffect to the transactions contemplated hereby. |

25, SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are héld by a couri of competent junsdlcnon fo be
conirary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in fall force and effect.

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreemcnl, which may be

executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entirc apreement and
understanding between the - pariies, and supcrsedes all prior
agreements and understandings with réspeat to the subject matter
hereof.

Contractor Initials /f A7
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS
1. Revisions to Form P-37, General lsi‘ovisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completmn of Services, is amended by deletmg subparagraph 33
in its entirety and replacing it as follows: :

bl

3.3. Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date spec1ﬁed in block 1.7.
The parties may extend the Agreement for up to four (4) additional years from the
Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties, and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

-

I
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New Hampshire Veterans Home

Exhibit B

,Scop’e of Services

1. Regulation and Purpose -

).1. The New Hampshire Veterans Home is a certified State Veierans Home (SVH). State veteran v
homes that provide nursing home care to eligible veterans are recognized and certified by the U.S.
Department of Veterans Affairs (VA).. As such, there are regulations, requlrements, and

procedures that the state veierans home must abide by to be in compliance with provision of -

services (o the res:dents by the state home as follows:

1.1.1.

Speclahzed rehabilitation services, per 38 CFR 51.160 regulatlon guidance, such as but not
limited to, physical therapy, speech therapy, occupational therapy, and mental health
services for mental illness are required in the resident's comprehensive plan of care, the
NH Veterans Home must provide the required services; or obtain the required services

from an outside resource, from a provider of specialized rehabilitative services.

Radiology and other diagnostic services, per 38 CFR 51.120(n) regulation guidance:
Accordmgly, the NH Veterans Home must provide or obtair: radiology and other diagnostic -
services to meet the needs of its residents. If the state home does not prcmde its own
diagnostic services, it must have an agreement to obtain these services. The servnces must
meet all apphcable certification standards, statutes, and regulatmns

1.2. This contract serves as a coordinated effort between the New Hampslure Velemns Home and
Concord Hospital - Laconia to ensure that the veterans are receiving these semc&c -

2. Statement of Work

2.1. The Contractor, will prowde the following pzowsmn of servite to the residents of the New
Hampshire Veterans Home, as described in U.S. Depariment of Veferans Affaus (VA) CFR 38

Part 51, such as, but not limited to:

2. 2 Specialized Rehahlhtntlve Services: As defined in 38 CER 51. 160, these mclude but are ot B

limited to:

(2}
(®)
(c)
(d
&

Concord Hospital - Laconia Page 1 0f2

Physical Therapy;

Speech Therapy;

_Occupational Therapy, and

Mental health services for mental illness.

These services must ‘be provided under the written order of a physician by qualified
personnel. - “Qualified Persorme)” means a physical therapist, occupahonal therapist,
respiratory therapist, speech-language pathologist, physician, nurse practitioner, clinical
nurse specxahst or physician’s assistant, who is licensed or certified by the state to furnish
therapy services. Qualified personnel may also include a physxcal theraplsl assistant (PTA),

Contractor lniﬁais,ﬁ. 1t
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New Hampshire Veterans Home

Exhibit B

3.

_ oran occupational therapy assistant (OTA) when furnishing services under the: supem sion

of a qualified therapist.

2,3. Radiology and other diaguostic services: As defmed in 38 CFR 51.210 (n), the Contractor
will provide radiology and other dlagnoshc services to meet the needs of NHVH residents, -
Radiologic and other diagnostic services must be available 24 hours a day, seven days a week.

Reporfing
3.1. The Contractor shall maintain records pertaining to contract activities.

3.2, The Contractor shall provide the Department with reports and/or documentation as requested
by the Department.

By signing this contract, the Contractor is attesting to the fact that their corporation and individnals
within their corporation have never been excluded from participating in United States Government

federally funded, including VA funded, programs or services.

By signing this contract, the Contract is attesnng tothe fact that their corporation and individuals within
their corporation are not currently excluded from participating in United States Government federally

funded, including VA funded, programs or services.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that fundmg under this contract
may be withheld, in whole, or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any State or Federal law, rale
or regnlation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have not been compieted in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes hmlted to adjustmg

encumbrances between State Fiscal Years may be made by wrilten agreement of both parties and may
be made without further approval of the Governor and Executive Comneil, if needed and justified.

Contractor Inmals // / /
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Method and Condmons Precedent to Pavment

1. The State sha11 pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37 General Prowsmns, Price
Limitation, Block 1.8, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Ex]nbxt A, Scope of
Services. ‘
1.1. This Agreement is one (1) of multiple Agreements that will provide Department of Veteran Affairs

(VA) required specialized rehabilitative services and radiology and other diagnostic services, to
Veteran residents, per 38 CFR part 51, when the State Veterans Home does not prowde the
services in house. No maximum or minimum service volume is guaranteed Accordmgly, the price
limitation among all Agreements is identified in Form P-37, General Prowsxons B!ock 1.8, Price
Limitation. ‘

1.2. The State shall pay the Contractors among all agreements an amount not to exceed $30 000 for
State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2025; $30,000 for SFY 2026; $30, 000 for SFY 2027; $30, 000 for SFY
2028; and $30,000 for SFY 2029, for the services provided by the Contractors pursuantto . -
Exhibit B, Scope of Services, for a total contract value listed on the Form P-37, Block 1.8, Pnce ,
Limitation of $150,000, with consideration for paragraph 1.1 of this Exhibit C.

2 The Contractor agrees to prowde the services in Exhibit B, SCOpe of Semoes in complxance with
funding requirements.

3 The NHVH w1ll devise a mechanism to notify the Contractor if the md1v1dual isa prevaﬂmg, basxs, or
no rate individual.

4. The Veteran res1dents at New Hampshire Veterans Home, fall into one of three ehglbllxty categones
that determine the Contractors billing for services rendered: :

4.1. Veteran res1dents, with 0% up to 69% Serwce-Connected (8C) dlsabzhty, for whom the
‘Departiment of Veterans Affairs pays the New Hampshire Veterans Home a basic per diem rate:
4.1.1. . The Contractor shall first bill the resident’s insurance for services rendered,
4.1 .2._ _If there is a balance remaining, after i insurance reimburses the Contractor, the Contractor
will bill the resident. : :

42, Veteran residents, with 70% up to 100% SC dxsablhty, for whom the Department of Vctcrans
- Affairs pays the New Hampshire Veterans Home a prevailing per diem rate:
4.2.1. . The Contractor shall bill the New Hampshire Veterans Home for all services rendered
4.2.2, The Contractor cannot bill the resident’s insurance for services rendered

4.3. Veteran resident for whom the New Hampshire Veterans Home receives no per dnem rate
43.1. The Contractor shall first bill the resident’s insurance for services rendered.
4.3.2.  Ifthere is a balance rematning, after insurance reimburses the Conu-actor the

‘Contractor will bill the resident. Lo

Exhibit C ' Contractor!niﬁals. ) // -
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' Exhibit C

v

The Contractor wﬂl be solely responsxble for billing third party payers for | services rendered by the
Contractor, except for 70% SC Veterans or'prevailing rate Veterans, as listed in 4.2 above.. The New

‘ Hampshire Veterans Home shall reimburse the Contractor for services rendered to SC Veterans not to

exceed the Medicare Fee Schedule, of the year in whwh the service is prov1ded, for the procedure code
of the service provided.

The Contractor will submit an invoice to NHVH no later than 30 days after the service is rendered, per |
Exhibit B, fo the following:

6.1. Email; Accounts Payableta;nhvh nh FOV
6.2.. Mail: NH Veterans Home
139 Wiater Street

Tilton, NH 03276
ATTN: ,Businéss Office

NHVH has up to 30 days to pay the Contractor, per invoice submission, 4

“The Contractor is responsxble for paying thcn' owi hcense taxes and i insurance cosis

Notwﬂhstandmg anythmg to thc contrary herein, the Contractor agrees | that ﬁmdmg under thls contract
may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncomphancc with any State or Federal law, rule -
or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have not been completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Notw1thstandmg paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjustmg amounts
between budget line items, related items, amendments of related ‘budget exhibits within the price
limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may. be made by written
agresment of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive
Council. :

f

Exhibit C




New Hampshire Veterans Home
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of lhc General Provisions execute the following

Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICA'I'.ION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (conlract) the prospective primary partlmpant is providing the

cemﬁcauon set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provxde the certification required below will not necessarily resull in denial
of participation in this covered transaction, If necessary, the prospective participant shall submiit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The. certification -or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Veterans Home (NHVH) determination whether, to enter into
this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or en
explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in this transaction. -

3. The cestification in this clause is 2 material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when NHVH determined to enter into this fransaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, NHVH may terminate this ttansaction for cause or default.

4. The prospecnve primary participant sha]l provide immediate written notice to the NHVH agency to
‘whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primaty participant leams
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed

circumstances.

5. The terins “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal * “proposal,” and -
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Exccutive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the

attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submxttmg this proposal (comract) that, should the
proposed-covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from patticipation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by NHVH.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submmmg this proposal that it wx!l include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debamment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
~ Lower Tier Covered. Transactions,” provided by NHVH, without modifi ication, in all iower tier
covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. .

Exh!blt D ~ Certification Regardmg Debarment, Suspension and Other ReSpOHSIbIIIt\/ MattErs
- Vendor Inmals '%//
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8. A partmpam in a-covered transaction may fely upon a certification of a prospective participant ina
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, mehglble, or mvoluntanly exc]uded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may .
decide the method and frsquency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Bach
participant may, but is not required to, check the Office of Inspector General Exclusion Daiabase;

 hitps://exclusions ojg hhs,vov/

9 Notlnng contained in the. foregomg shall be construed to require establishment of a system of' records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
information of a participant is not reqmred to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dcaimgs

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these mstmctwns, ifa partlcxpant ifia
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is -
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this fransaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, NHVH may tcrmmate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary partlclpant certifies to the best of its knowledge and behuf that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposcd for debarment, declared ineligible, or
vohuntarily excluded from covered transactions by eny Federal depattment or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal {contract) been convicted of or had
a civil | judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with cbtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or. Iocal)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, 1heﬁ, forgery, bribery, falslﬁcauon, or destruction-of
records, making false statements, or recelving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicied for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental cntlty
(Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in pamgraph O
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal State, or local) terminated for cause or default.

T2, Where the prospeciive primary participant is unable to ccrt]@ to any of the statemcnts in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an cxplanation to this proposal (contract)
LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS.

13. By signing and. submlttmg this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier parhcxpant as -
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspendcd proposed for debarnient, declared ineligible, or-

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or a gency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal {(contract). ’

14. 'The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
Exhibit D - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters
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include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, .Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier.
covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. :

7 - Vendor Name:
Date N'ame: “Roboad P. & '.p)‘d mey €L
Title:  Drog demt 4 e

Exhibit D — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters
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New Hampshlre Veterans Home
Exhibit E: Business Associates Agreement

This Business Associate Agreement herein, “Agreement”, effective as of this 1% day of Japuary 2024
herein, “Effective Date”, is entered into by and between Concord Hospital - Laconia herein, “Business
Associate”, located at 80 Highland Street. Laconia. NH 03246 and State Agency, New Hampshire-
Veterans Home herein, “Covered Entity” located at 139 Winter Street. Tilton. NH 03276,

). HIPAA. The Business Associate agrees to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the Standards for Privacy and Security of
Iridividually Identifiable Health lnformation, 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. : ,

(1) Defin Deﬁnitions

a. “Desivnated Record Set » shall have the same mean ing as the term “designated record set” in45
* CFR Section 164.501. .

b. “Data Appreeation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501. '

¢. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operahons in 45
CFR Section 164.501, .

d. “HIPAA™ means the Health Insurance Pontability and Accountability Act of 1 996, Public Law
104-191.

e “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501
- and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR

Section 164.501 (g}

lnformauon at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States Department
of Health and Human Services.

g. “Protected Heslth Information” shall have the same meaning as the terin “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the informatjon created or réceived by Business

Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entlty

h. “Required by Law™ shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164 501.

i. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Depaltment of Health and Human Services: or his/her
designee,

3. “Securiiy Rule” shall méan the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
I-Iealth Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto,

k. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning estabhshed

under 45 C.FR. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time.

(2) Use and Disclosure of Protected Henlth,_lnformation.

v Business Associate initials éfﬁ?/} ' ,
Concord Hospital - Laconia . Pagelof6 : Date 11&/,5_‘ o



New Hampshlre Veterans Home
Exhibit E: Busmess Assocnates Agreement

a. Busmess Assoo:atc shall ot use, disciose, mamtam, or transmit Protected Health Inf‘ormat:on
(PHI) except as reasenably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the
Agreement. Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall énsure that its directors, officers, -
employees, and agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would
constitute a violation of the anacy and Secusity Rule.

b. Busmess Assoclate may use or disclose PHI:
(i) for the proper management and admlmsn'anon of the Business Associate;
(i) as required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or -
(iif) for data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

¢. To the extent Business Associate is perinitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to-a third
party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasopable assurances
fromn the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further disclosed only as -
required by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party; and (if) an agrecment
from such third party to immediately notify Business Associate of any breaches of the confi dentla]lty of
the PHI, to the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach.’

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably neccssary to provxde
services under Exhibit A of the Agreement disclose any PHI in response to a request for disclosure on '
the basis that it is required by law, without first netifying Covered-Entity so that Covered Entity has an
opportunity to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief, If Covered Entity objects to such
disclosure, the Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has -
exhausted all remedies. .

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound
by additional restrictions on the vses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI pursuant to the
Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such additional Testrictions and
shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional

security safeguards,

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate,

a. Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing,
any use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident involving
Covered Entity data, of which it becomes aware, within two (2) business days of becoming aware of
such unauthorized use or disclosure or security incident,

* b. Business Associale shall use administrative, pltysical and technical safeguards that reasonably

and appropriately protect the confidentialily, integrity and availability of protected health jnfo‘rmation,
in electronic or any other form, that it crcates, receives, maintains or transmits under this Agreement, in
accordance with the Privacy and Security Rules, to prevent the use or disclosure of PHI other than as

perm1tted by the Agreement.

c. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and
records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the Business
Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining Covered Entlty s
compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule,

- 4
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d. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to

PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing o adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on the
use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided
under Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct third party
beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’s intended business

- associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and.
indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by standard provision #13 of this
Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected health information.

e. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a writien request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books,
agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity,
for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’s complience with the terms
of the Agreement. ‘

f. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as directed
by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a wiitten request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the Business
Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and.incorporate any such
amendment 10 enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

h. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such
disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

1. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for
an acconnting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity such
information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting of
disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

j. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from
the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such request
to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to forwarded requests.
However, if forwarding the individual’s request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the
Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall
instead respond Lo the individual’s request as required by such law and notify Covered Entity of such
response as soon as practicable. .

k. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
Associate shall retum or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI reeeived from,-or created or
received by the Business Associate in connection with the Agréément, and shall nof retain any copies
or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI bas
been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections
of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those purposes

Business Assaciate Initials 42';; / Z
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that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains such PHI. If
Covered Entily, in its sole discretion, requires that the Rusiness Associate destroy any or all PHI, the
Business Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Oblizations of Cavered Entity

a. Covered Entily shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of
Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the
extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall-promptly noiify Business Associate of any changes i, or révacation of
permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section
164.508, '

¢. Covered entity shal] promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, fo the
extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

() Term and Termination for Canse

a. Term. The Term of this Agreement shall be effective as of the Effective Date first set forth above
and shall continue in efféct until terminated hereunder.
b. Termination by Agreement.. This Agreement may be terminated at any time by mutual
agreement of the parties.
¢. Automafic Termination. This Agreement shall terminate upon tennmatmn of thc busmcss
 relationship between the partics.
d. Termination for Caunse. Upon Covered Enmy’s know]edge of a material breach by Business
Associate, Covered Entity may at its sole discretion:
1. Terminate this Agreement after providing opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
breach or end the violation within the time specified by Covered Entity; or
2. Terminate this Agreement immediately if Businéss Associate has breached a material term of
this Agreement; or

If neither termination nor cure are feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the Secretary.

e. Effect of Termination, ‘

1. Ifthis Agreement is terminated for any reason, the Covered Entity may simultaneously
terminate any business relationship without penalty. Ifthere is a conflict between the
underlying sefvice agrecment and this Agreement with respect to termination, this Agreement
shall prevail. '

2. Excéptas prowded in paragraph (3) of this Section V1. E upon tanmnatmn of this
Agreement for any reason, Business Associate shall return to Covercd Entity or, if agreed to
by Covered Entity, destroy all protected health information received from Covered Entity, or
created, maintained, or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity, that the
Business Associate maintains in any form. Business Associate shall rétain no copies of the

protected health information.
Business Associate [nitials Zéz,{é
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New Hampshire Veterans Home
Exhibit E: Business Associates Agreement

3. Inthe event that Business Associate determines that returning or destroying the protccted health
information is infeasible, Business Associate shall provide to Covered Entity notification of
the conditions that make return or desiruction infeasible. In such event, Business Associate
shall extend the protections of this Agreement to such protected health information and limit
farther uses and disclosures of such protected health information to those purposes that make
the retam or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains such protected
health information.

4. The provisions of this Section VI.E shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall have
the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, as amended from time to time. A
reference in the Agreement, as amended 1o include this Exhibit I, 10 a Section in the Privacy and
Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to
amend the Agreement, from time to lime as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the
changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and

state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associale ackndwledgcs that it has no ownership rights with
respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation, The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule. \

¢. Seoregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any person(s}
or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which can
be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of this
Exhibit I are declared sevarable.

f. Suryival, Provisions in this Exhibit 1 regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, retum or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and .
indemmnification provisions of section 3 d and g. below, shall survive the termination of the

Agreement.

g. Indemnification. To the extent penmitted by law, each party (the “Indemnifying Party”) shall
indemnify and hold harmless the other party (the “Indemnified Party”), its officers, directors,
employees and agents, from and against, and, at the Indernnified Party’s request, defend the
Indemnified Party against, any and all claims, damages, losses, liabilities, costs and expenses
(including reasonable attorney’s fees) arising out of or resulting from the grossly negligent or the
intentional acts or omissions of the Indemnifying Party, its employees and its agents under the
Agreement. Each Indemnified Party shall fully cooperate with the Indemnifying Party in all
malters within the scope of this section.

, 5 Business Associate Initials ZA 42
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Tfué't‘ees
Concord Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Concord Hospital, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the System),
which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, the related consolidated
statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes -
to the consolidated financial statements (collectively, the financial statements). ' ) '

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the System as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, and the results of its operations, changes in its net

“assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United) States of
America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors'
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are tequired to be
independent of the System and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
approptiate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the System adopted the provisions of Accounting Standards
- Update (ASU) 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), and all subsequent ASUs that modified Topic 842, effective
October 1, 2022. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. o :

Responsibilities of Managemeﬁt for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud orerror.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the System's ability to continue as a
going concern within one year after the date that the fihancial statements are issued or available to be issued.



The. Board of Trustees
Concord Hospital, Inc. and Subsndlanes

Auditors' Respon_sibi]ities for the Audit of the Fihainéi‘al Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and thereforeisnota
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material mlsstatement when
it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually
or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In perfonnihg an audit in accordance with G_AAS:, we:
. Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughou't the audit.

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the ﬁnanc1a1 statements whcther due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the-amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. :

. Obtam an understandmg of internal control relevant to the audit in oider to de51gn audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressmg an opinion on the
effectlveness of the System s 1nternal control. Accordmgly, no such opmlon is expressed.

+  Evaluate the appropnateness of accountmg policies -used and the reasonableness of 31gn1ﬁcant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentatlon of the
financial statements.

. Conclude whether in our Judgment there are condmons or events, cons1dered in the aggregate that
raise substantial doubt about the System's ability to continue as a gomg concern for a reasonable
period of time: - :

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regardmg, among other matters, the =
planned scope and timing of the audit; significant audit findings, and certain internal control—related matters -
that we identified durmg the andit. : '

Ruser Newrmn¢ Nt’zjes LC
Manehester, New Hampshire '
December 8, 2023



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

September 30, 2023 and 2022

ASSETS
(In thousands)
-Current assets: -~ - v
. Cash and cash equivalents S . 8§ 79917 § 54,630 -
Short-term investments _ . 46,394 15322
Accounts receivable : , 91,318 110,525
Due from affiliates o 1,443 1,099
Supplies 4,744 6,125
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . v 11,247 12,255
Total current assets | 23;5,063 199,956
Assets whose use is limited or festricted: | ' SR
Board designated . 388,305 340,058
Funds held by trustee for insurance reserves,
escrows and construction funds o 34,960 50,118
“Donor-restricted funds and restricted grants ' _ 44,094 - _43,514
Total assets whose use is limited or restricted ’ 467,359 433,690
Other rioncurrent assets: ,
Due from affiliates, net of current portlon : _ 467 533
Prepaid pension and other assets 43,662 __21:126
Total othér’ noncurrent assets - - 44,129 21,659
Property and equipment: . .
Land and land 1mpr0vements .. 8435 8,359
Buildings ' 267,179 266,581
Equipment , 278,585 260,992
‘Construction in progress ' » ..10,620. . 11807
o \ 564,819 547,739
Less accumulated depreciation © (363.709) (344416).
“Net prdperty and equipment ' 1201,110 203,323
'O}ierating leé'se right-of-use assets R 26,252 B e ”



LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
(In thousands)

Current liabilities: :
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued compensation and related expenses
Accrual for estimated third-party payor settlements
Current portion of long-term debt /
Current portion of operating lease liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current portion
Operating lease liabilities, less current portion
Reserve for insurance
Accrued pension and other long-term liabilities
Total labilities
Net assets: '
Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions
Total Concord Hospital net assets

Noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiary

Total net assets

See accompanying notes.

2023 2022
$ 49982 $ 50,361
46,827 49,107
68,589 62,608
6,144 4,147
5.406 -
176,948 166,223
145,525 152,609
21,091 -
20,759 23,601
18278 26490
382,601 368,923
544,486 443,500
44094 _.43514
588,580 487,014
2732 2,691
591,312 489,705

$.973.913 858,628



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES *
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended September 30, 2023 and 2022

{(In thousands)
, 2023 2022

Revenue and other support without donor restrictions: : - :
Patient service revenue $705,758 $709,396. -

-Other revenue 29,373 . 39,781
Disproportionate share revenue 230,212 29,744
Net assets released from restrictions for operations _ 5,105 1.889

Total revenue and other éupport without donor restrictions ' v ,770,448 780,810

Operating expenses: '

- Salaries and wages . 377,209 380,846
Employee benefits 81,591 92,363
Supplies and other - 152,635 156,674
Purchased services 57,796 51,392
Professional fees , . 17,021 16,498

~ Depreciation and amortization , 27,291 28,953
- Medicaid enhancement tax 32,647 32,035
Interest 4275 -~ 4.568
Total operating expenses . 750465 763,329

Income from operations ' 19,983 17,481

Nonoperating income (loss): y
Gifts and bequests without donor restrictions 346 - 261
Investment income (loss) and other 49,961 (48,917)
Other nonoperating expense . (856)- (856)
Net periodic benefit gain, other than service cost ‘ 4,733 1.321

Total nonoperating income (loss) ' o . 54,184  (48.191)

Consolidated excess (deficiency) of revenues and , ,
nonoperating income (loss) over expenses - 74,167  (30,710) -

Excess of revenues and nonoperating income (loss) .o,ver expenses _ - o
attributable to noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiary (181) = . (227)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and nonoperating income o
(loss) over expenses attributable to the System 3 :Z3,2_8§ $ g;g‘,g; D

See accompanying notes.



CONCORD HOSPITAL INC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Years Ended September 30, 2023 and 2022

(In thousands)

Systein net assets w1thout donor restrictions:

Excess (deficiency) of reveriues and nonoperating income

(loss) over expenses attributable to the System
* Net transfers from affiliates

Other changes

Net assets released from restrictions used for
purchases of property and equipment

Pension adjustrnent

Increase (decrease) in System net assets without donor restrictions
System net assets with donor restrictions:
- Contributions and pledges with donor restrictions
Net investment gain (loss) .
Contributions to affiliates and other community orgamzatlons
Unrealized gains (losses) on trusts admmlstered by others
Net assets released from restrictions for operatlons
" Net assets released from restrictions used for
- purchases of property and equipment
. Increase (decrease) in System net assets with donor restrictions
Increase (decrease) in Systém net assets
Noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsuhary
Distributions to noncontrolhng interest in consolidated subs:dxary
" Excess of revenues and nonoperating income ‘(loss) over expenses
attributable to noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiary
* Increase (decrease) in noncontro_]]ing interest in coﬁsolidated subsidiary
Increase (decrease) in total net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end 6f year

See accompanying notes.

023

2 2022
$73,98  $(30,937)
97 343
- (339) -
753 1886
26480 _(5.502)
100,986  (34,210)
2704 5057
3,664 (3,923)
(G0 (243)
32 (2,505)
(5,105 - (1,889)
(753) _(1.886)
580 _(5.389)
101,566 (39,599)
(140)  @70)
181 227
41 _(43)
101,607 - (39,642)
489705 520347
$59L312  $489,705
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES .

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS. |

Years Ended September 30, 2023 and 2022

(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Increase (decrease) in total net assets
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in total net
assets fo net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Contributions and pledges with donor restrictions
Depreciation and amortization
Net realized and unrealized (gains) losses on investments
Bond premium and issuance cost amortization
Equity in earnings of affiliates, net

Distributions to noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiary

Loss on disposal of property and equ1pment

Pension adjustment

Noncash lease expense

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Supplies, prepald expenses and other current assets
Prepaid pension and other assets
Due from affiliates
Accounts payable and accrued. expenses
Accrued compensation and related expenses
Accrual for estimated third-party payor settlements
Accrued pension and other long-term liabilities
Reserve for insurance .

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities: -
Purchases of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Purchases of investments :
"Proceeds from sales of investments -
Equity distributions from affiliates
Net cash (used) provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments on long-term debt
Bond issuance costs ‘
Distributions to noncontrolling interest in consohdated subsidiary
Contributions and pledges with donor restrictions
Net cash (used) provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent§ at beginning of year

Cash and ca_sh equivalents at end of year

Supplemental disclbshre of noncash transact.ions:
Se¢ Note 16 with respect to certain noncash

activities related to leases.

See accompanying notes.

2023

o (2,704)

2022

$ 101,607 $ (39,642)

(5,057)
27,291 28,953
(46,446) 63,991
(940) - (968)
(5,012) (4,893)
140 270
S (270)
(26,489) 5,502
245 -
19,207  (15,805)
2,389  (1,149)
1,900 (4,022)
- (278) 14
- (379) 3,289 -
(2,280) 5,125
5,981  (33,795)
(5,665) - -(19,403)
(2.842) - _(5.331)
765,725 (23,191
(25,078)  (22,032)
R 11,362
(99,562)  (23,369)
81,450 - 67,838
4518 . 4445 .
(38,672) 38,244
(4,147) (3,020)
- (26)
- (140) (270).
2521 5171
_(1.766) __1855
25287 . 16,908
54630 37,722
$_79917 $_54.630



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Description of Organization and Summary of Sl nificant Accounting Policies

Organization

~ Concord Hospital, Inc. (the Hospital), located in Concord, New Hampshire, is a not-for-profit acute care
hospital. The Hospital provides inpatient, outpatient, emergency care and physician services for
residents within its geographic region. Admitting physicians are primarily practitioners in the local area.
The Hospital is controlled by Capital Region Health Care Corporation (CRHC).

In 1985, the then Concord Hospital underwent a corporate reorganization in which it was renamed and
became CRHC. At the same time, the Hospital was formed as a new entity. All assets and liabilities of
the former hospital, now CRHC, with the exception of its endowments and restricted funds, were
conveyed to the new entity. The endowments were held by CRHC for the benefit of the Hospital, which
is the true party in interest. Effective October 1, 1999, CRHC transferred these funds to the Hospital.

In March 20009, the Hospital created The Concord Hospital Trust (the Trust), a separately incorporated,
not-for-profit organization to serve as the Hospital's philanthropic arm. In establishing the Trust, the
Hospital transferred philanthropic funds with donor restrictions, including board designated funds,
endowments, indigent care funds and specific purpose funds, to the newly formed organization together :
with the stewardship responsibility to direct monies available to support the Hospital's charitable mission
and reflect the specific intentions of the donors who made these gifis.

Subsidiaries of the Hospital are as follows:

Capital. Region Health Care. Development. Cornoratzon (CRHCDC) is a not-for—proﬂt real estate .
corporation that owns and operates medical office buildings and other properties.

Capital Region Health Ventures Cor; oration (CRHVC) is a not-for-profit corporation that engages in
health care delivery partnerships and joint ventures. It operates ambulatory surgery and dlagnostlc
facilities independently and in cooperatlon with other entities.

NH Cares ACO. LLC (NHC) and Concord Hosmtal ACO (CH-ACOQ)are both single member limited
liability companies that engage in providing medical services to Medicare beneficiaries as accountable
care organizations. NHC has a perpetual life and is subject to termination in certain events. During
2022, NHC was transferred to an unrelated entity for no consideration and the Hospital formed CH-
ACO, which operates in a manner consistent with NHC and had minimal activity during fiscal years
2022 and 2023.

Concord Hospital — Laconiq (CH-Laconia) is a not-for-profit corporation formed to operate a licensed
hospital providing inpatient, outpatient, emergency care and physician services for residents within its
geographic region of Laconia, New Hampshire. The CH-Laconia facility includes 137 acute care beds
and was designated a Rural Referral Center in 1986, and a Sole Community Hospital in 2009. Admlttmg '
physicians are primarily practitioners in the local area.




CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
- NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
: (In thousands)

of Significant Accounting Policies ( Contil_med y

Description of Organization and .Sun\\mar._v
Concord Hospital — Franklin (CH- -Franklin) is a not-for-profit corporation formed to operate a licensed
hospltal provxdmg inpatient, outpatient, emergency care and physician services for residents within its
geographic region of Franklin, New Hampshire. The CH-Franklin facility was designated a Critical
Access Hospital effective July 1, 2004, and includes 25 acute care beds. CH-Franklin also operates a 10 .
bed designated psychiatric receiving facility. Admitting physmans are primarily practitioners in the
local area.

Granite Shield Insurance Exchange and Subsidiaries (GSIE) was formed on December 20, 2010, in the
State of Vermont as an industrial insured reciprocal insurance entity and unincorporated association.
GSIE commenced underwriting activities on January 1, 2011. GSIE was formed to provide healthcare
professional liability, general liability and medical stop loss insurance to its subscribers through GSI
Services, LLC (GSI), the attorney-in-fact. GSI was formed in the State of Vermont as a limited liability
company on December 14, 2010, and acts as an agent to enable the subscribers of GSIE to exchange
insurance contracts. Through December 31, 2020, GSI was equally controlled by each of the subscribers
of GSIE, all of which were health systems located in the State of New Hampshire, inclusive of the
Hospital. Effective January 1, 2021, the Hospital became the sole voting member of GSIE, resuling in
all activity of GSIE being recorded within the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

GSIE discontinued writing coverages effective October 1, 2022, and its cﬁrrem operations consist of
runoff claims for a previously withdrawn subscriber, as well as the current subscriber, CRHC.

Concord Hospital Insurance Group. LLC (CHIG) is a Vermont domiciled single parent captive entity
and operates in a manner and conducts activities similar to GSIE, as described above. CHIG began
operations in late 2022. GSIE entered into a loss portfolio transfer agreement with CHIG in September
2022, whereas GSIE would transfer all of its existing and future claims to CHIG, with the exception of
acts prior to CRHC. This transfer was completed prior to September 30, 2023.

Concord Endoscopy Center, LLC(CEC) is a New Hampshire limited liability company that engages in
providing gastrointestinal services, including the diagnosis and treatment of digestive and liver diseases.

CEC has a perpetual life and is subject to termination in certain events. CRHVC holds a maj jority interest
and control of CEC.

Capital Region Healthcare Services Corporatzon (CRHSC) is a for-profit provider of health care -

services, including an eye surgery center and assisted living facility. CRHSC became a subsidiary of
the Hospital effective October 1, 2022.

The Hospital, its subsidiaries and the Trust are collectively referred to as the System. The consolidated
financial statements include the accounts of the Hospital, the Trust, CRHCDC, CRHVC, NHC, CH-
ACO, CH-Laconia, CH-Franklin, GSIE, CHIG, CEC and CRHSC. All significant intercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The Hospital, the Trust, CH-Laconia
and CH-Franklin constitute the Obligated Group at September 30, 2023 and 2022 to certain debt
described in Note 7. '



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
~(In thousands) -

Description of Orsanization and Summary.of Si nificant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Principles of: ansol'idatioiz'

Noncontrolling interests in less-than-wholly-owned consolidated  subsidiaries of the System are
. presented as a component of total net assets to distinguish between the interests of the System and the
_ interests of the. noncontrolhng owners. Revenues, expenses and nonoperating income (loss) from these
 subsidiaries are included in the consolidated amounts presented on the consolidated statements of
operations. Excess (deficiency) of revenues and nonoperating income (loss) over expenses attributable
to the System separately presents the amounts attributable to the controlling interest. '

,Noncontrollmg Interests

Noncontrollmg interests represent -the. portion of equity in a subsidiary not attributable, dn'ectly or
-indirectly, to a parent. The System's accompanying consohdated financial statements include all assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses at their consolidated amounts, which include the amounts attributable
to the System and the noncontrolling interest. The System recognizes as a Separate componént of net
assets and earnings the portion of income or loss attributable to noncontrolling 1nterests based on the -
portion of the entity not owned by the Systesa.

Use of Estimates.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the corisolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Concentratz‘oﬁ ofCrediz,Risk

Financial instruments Whlch subject the System to credit risk consist pnmanly of cash equivalents,
accounts receivable and investments. The risk with respect to cash equivalents is minimized by the
System's policy of investing in financial instruments with short-term maturities issued by highly rated
financial institutions. The System's accounts receivable are pnmarﬂy due from third-party payors and -
amounts are presented net of expected explicit and’ implicit price concessions, including estimated
implicit price concessions from uninsured patients. The System's investment portfolio consists of
diversified investments, which are subject to market tisk. The System's investment in one fund, the
Vanguard Institutional Index Fund, exceeded 10% of total System investments as of September 30, 2023 .
and 2022,

Cash and C"asiltb Eauivalents

Cash and cash equlvalents include money market funds with original maturities of three months or less,
excluding assets whose use is limited or restricted. The System maintains its cash in bank deposit
accounts which, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The System has not expenenced any
‘losses on such accounts. .
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

- Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies(Continued

Supplies

Supplies are carried at the lower of cost, determined on a weighted-average method, or net realizable
value.

Assets Whose Use is Linﬁted_ or Restricted

Assets whose use is limited or restricted include assets held by trustees for insurance reserves, €sCrows,
construction funds, designated assets set aside by the Board of Trustees (over which the Board retains
control and may, at its discretion, subsequently use for other purposes), and donor-restricted investments.

Investments and Investment Income (Loss)

Investments are carried at fair value in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Investment
income (loss) (including realized gains and losses on investments, interest and dividends) and the net
change in unrealized gains and losses on investments are included in the excess (deficiency) of revenues
and nonoperating income (loss) over expenses in the accomnpanying consolidated statements of
operations, unless the income or loss is restricted by donor or law.

Benéficial Interest in Perpetual Trusts

The System has an irrevocable right to receive income earned on certain trust assets established for its
benefit. . Distributions received by the System are without donor restrictions. The System's interest in
the fair value of the trust assets is included in assets whose use is limited or restricted and as net assets
with donor restrictions. Changes in the fair value of beneficial trust assets are reported as increases or
decreases to net assets with donor restrictions.

Investment Policies

The System's investment policies provide guidance for the prudent and skillful management of invested
assets with the objective of preserving capital and maximizing returns. The invested assets include
endowment, specific purpose and board designated funds.

Endowment funds are identified as perpetual in nature, intended to provide support for current or future
operations and other purposes identified by the donor. These funds are managed with disciplined longer-
term investment objectives and strategies designed to accommodate relevant, reasonable, or probable
events. :

Specific purpose funds are temporary in nature, restricted as to time or purpose as identified by the donor
or grantor. These funds have various intermediate/long-term time horizons associated with specific
identified spending objectives.

Board designated funds have various intermediate/long-term time horizons associated with specific
spending objectives as determined by the Board of Trustees.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES x
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS" 7
September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Dgscrif”'t‘ion'of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Management of these assets is designed to increase, with minimum risk, the inflation adjusted principal
and income of the endowment funds over the long term. The System targets a diversified asset allocation
that places emphasis on achieving its long-term return objectives within prudent risk constraints.

Spending Policy for Appropriation of Assets for Expenditure

In accordance with the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), the System
considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted
endowment funds: (a) the duration and preservation of the fund; (b) the purpose of the organization and
the donor-restricted endowment fund; (c) general economic conditions; (d) the possible effect of
inflation and deflation; (e) the expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments;
(f) other resources of the organization; and (g) the investment policies of the organization.

Spending policies may be adopted by the System, from time to time, to provide a stream of funding for
the support of key programs. The spending policies are structured in a manner to ensure that the
purchasing power of the assets is maintained while providing the desired level of annual funding to the
programs. The System has a current spending policy on various funds currently equivalent to 5% of
twelve-quarter moving average of the funds' total market value.

Accounts Receivable ‘

Patient accounts receivable for which the unconditional right to payment exists are receivables if the
right to consideration is unconditional and only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. ' Accounts receivable at September 30, 2023 and 2022 reflect the fact that any
estimated uncollectible amounts are generally considered implicit price concessions that are a-direct
reduction to accounts receivable rather than allowance for doubtful accounts. At September 30, 2023
and 2022, estimated implicit price concessions of $26,391 and $29,203, respectively, had been recorded

- as reductions to accounts receivable balances to enable the System to record revenues and accounts

receivable at the estimated amounts expected to collected.

Accounts receivable as of September 30, 2023 2022 and 2021 are $9l 318, $110 525 and $94, 720,
respectively.

Property and Equipment

~ Property and equipment is stated at cost at time of purchase, or at fair value at time of donation for assets

contributed, less any reductions in carrying value for 1mpa1rment and less accumulated depreciation.
The System s policy is to- capitalize expenditures for major improvements and charge maintenance and
repairs currently for expenditures which do not extend the lives of the related assets. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method in a manner intended to amortize the cost of the related assets
over their estimated useful lives. For the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, deprecratlon
expense was $27,291 and $28,953, respectively.

The System has also capitalized certain costs associated with property and equipment not yet in service.
Construction in progress includes amounts incurred related to major construction projects, other
renovations, and other capital equipment purchased but not yet placed in service. There was no interest
expense capitalized during 2023 or 2022, -
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In ihousands)

Description of Organization and Summary of Sjgﬁiﬁcant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Gifts of long-lived assets such as land, buildings or equipment are reported as support without donor
restrictions, and are excluded from the excess (deficiency) of revenues and nonoperating income (loss)
over expenses, unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of
long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used, and gifts of cash or
other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets, are reported as support with donor restrictions.
Absent explicit donor- stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must be maintained,
expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed
in service.

o~

/Intangb' ible Assets

The System reviews its 1ntang1b1e and other long-lived assets annually to determine whether the carrying
amount of such assets is impaired. Upon determination that an impairment has occurred, these assets -
are reduced to fair value. There were no 1mpa1rments recorded for the years ended September 30, 2023
or 2022 N,

ﬁtangible assets are included within other noncurrent assets in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortizable intangible assets consist of the following at
September 30: ' '

2023 - 2022
Cost ' $ 8,556 $ 8,556
Accumulated amortization . S (2140)  (1.284)
Amortizable intangible assets, net ' $__g,i_1g $_7272

Amortization expense was $856 during the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022 and is recorded
within other nonoperating expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Expected amortization of intangible assets through their useful lives is as follows:

2024 ' $ 856
2025 - 856
2026 ) 856
. 2027 » 856
2028 , : 856 -
Thereafter » ) - 2136
$6416

. Federfal Grant_Revenue and Expenditures

Revenues and expenses under federal grant programs are recognized as the grant expenditures are
incurred. |
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES .
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Septembert 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

I

Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Bond Issuance Costs/Original Issue Discount or Premium

Bond issuance costs incurred to obtain financing for construction and renovation projects and the original
issue discount or premium are amortized to interest expense using the straight-line method, which
approximates the effective interest method, over the life of the respective bonds. The original issue
discount or premium-and bond issuance costs are presented as a component of bonds payable.

Charitv-Care

A

The System provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy without
charge or at amounts less than its established rates (Note 12). Because the System does not pursue
collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as revenue. The System
uses an industry standard approach in calculating the costs associated with providing charity care. Funds
received from gifts and grants to subsidize charity services provided for the years ended September 30,
2023 and 2022 were approximately $130 and $133, respectively. '

Net Assets With Denor Restrictions

Gifts are reported as restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of
donated assets. Donated investments, supplies and equipment are reported af fair value at the date of
receipt. Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date of
receipt of the promise. When a donor restriction expires (when a stipulated time restriction ends. or
purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets
without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of operations as either net assets released from
restrictions for operations (for noncapital related items) or as net assets released from restrictions used
for purchases of property and equipment (capital related items). Some net assets with donor restrictions
have been restricted by donors to be maintained by the System in perpetuity.

Patient Service Revenue

Revenues generally relate to contracts with patients in which the System's performance obligations are
to provide health care services to patients. Revenues are recorded during the period obligations to
provide health care services are satisfied. Performance obligations for inpatient services are generally
satistied over a period of days. Performance obligations for outpatient services are generally satisfied
over a period of less than one day. The contractual relationships with patients, in most cases, also involve
a third-party payor (Medicare, Medicaid, managed care health plans and commercial insurance
companies, including plans offered through the health insurance exchanges) and the transaction prices
for the services provided are dependent upon the terms provided by Medicare and Medicaid or negotiated
with managed care health plans and commercial insurance companies, the third-party payors. The
payment arrangements with third-party payors for the services provided to related patients typically
specify payments at amounts less than standard charges. Medicare generally pays for inpatient and -
outpatient services at prospectively determined rates based on clinical, diagnostic and other factors.
Services provided to patients having Medicaid coverage are generally paid at prospectively determined
rates per discharge, per identified service or per covered member. Agreements with commercial
insurance carriers, managed care and preferred provider organizations generally provide for payments
based upon predetermined rates per diagnosis, per diem rates or discounted fee-for-service rates.
Management continually reviews the revenue recognition process to consider and incorporate updates
to laws and regulations and the frequent changes in managed care contractual terms resulting from
contract renegotiations and renewals. : :
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2023 and 2022

(In thousands)

Description of Organization and Summary of ,Si'g-niﬁcan't. Accounting Policiés (Continued)

The collection of outstanding receivables for Medicare, Medlcaxd managed care payers, other third-

party payors and patients is the System's primary source of cash and is critical to its operating

performance. The primary collection risks relate to uninsured patient accounts, including patient

accounts for which the primary insurance carrier has paid the amounts covered by the applicable

agreement, but patient responmsibility amounts (deductibles and copayments) remain outstanding.

Implicit price concessions relate primarily to amounts due directly from patients. Estimated implicit

price concessions are recorded for all uninsured accounts, regardless of the aging of those accounts.

Accounts are written off when all reasonable internal and external collection efforts have been

performed. The estimates for implicit price concessions are based upon management's assessment of
historical write-offs and expected net collections, business and economic conditions, trends in federal,

state and private employer health care coverage and other collection indicators. Management relies on

the results of detailed reviews of historical write-offs and collections at facilities that represent a majority -
of hospital revenues and accounts receivable (the "hindsight analysis") as a primary source of

information in estimating the collectability of accounts receivable. Management performs the hindsight

analysis regularly, utilizing rolling twelve-months accounts receivable collection and write-off data.

‘Management believes its regular updaies to the estimated implicit price concession amounts provide

reasonable estimates of revenues and valuations of accounts receivable. These routine, regular changes

in estimates have not resulted in material adjustments to the valuations of accounts receivable or period-

to-period comparisons of operations. :

The System receives payment for other Medicaid outpatient services on a reasonable cost basis which
are settled with retroactive adjustments upon completion and audit of related cost finding reports.
Differences between amounts prevmusly estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be
recoverable or payable are included in patient service revenues in the year that such amounts become
known. For the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, patient service revenue in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations increased by approximately $4,700 and $5,100, respectively, due
to actual settlements and changes in assumptions underlying estimated future third-party settlements.

Revenues from the Medicare and Medicaid programs accounted for approximately 40% and 5% and.
39% and 6% of the System's patient service revenue for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022,
respectively. Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and
subject to interpretation.

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Nonoperating Income (Loss) Over Expenses

The System has deemed all activities as ongoing, major or central to the provision of health care services
and, accordingly, they are reported as operating revenue and expenses, except for contributions and
pledges without donor restrictions, the related philanthropy expenses and investment income which are
recorded as nonoperating income (loss).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The consolidated statements of operations also include excess (deficiency) of revenues and nonoperating
income (loss) over expenses. Changes in net assets without donor restrictions which are excluded from
excess (deficiency) of revenues and nonoperating income (loss) over expenses, consistent with industry
practice, include the permanent transfers of assets to and from affiliates for other than goods and services,
pension adjustments and contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired using contributiornis
which by donor restriction were to be used for the purposes of acquiring such assets).

Estimated Workers' Compensation, Malpractice and Health Care Claims

The provision for estimated workers' compensation, malpractice and health care claims includes
estimates of the ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not reported.

' F uncti onal Ex'pense Allocatz'on

The costs of prowdmg program services and other activities have been summanzed on a functional basis
in Note 11. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among program services and supporting services
benefitted.

Income _Taxes.

The Hospital, CH-Laconia, CH-Franklin, CRHCDC, CRHVC, and the Trust are not-for-profit
corporations as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, and are exempt from
federal income taxes on related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. NHC was organized as
a single member limited liability company and has elected to be treated as a disregarded entity for federal
and state income tax reporting purposes. Accordingly, all income or losses and applicable tax credits
are reported on the member’'s income tax returns, with the exception of taxes due to the State of New
Hampshire. Management evaluated the System's tax positions and concluded the System has maintained
its tax-exempt status, does not have any significant unrelated business income and had taken no uncertain
tax positions that require adjustment to or disclosure in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements. GSIE, CHIG, NHC, CH-ACO, CEC and CRHSC account for income taxes in accordance
with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 740,
Income Taxes. FASB ASC 740 is an asset and liability method, which requires the recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences
between the tax and financial reporting basis of certain assets and liabilities. Resulting income tax
expense and the temporary differences between the tax and financial reporting basis are not material.

Advertising Costs

The System expenses advertising costs as incurred, and such costs totaled $247 and $168 for the- years
ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
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Description of Organization and Summary of Sig nificant.Acqou_nt_ing:.Poli,cieS:lContinuédv)’v

Leases

In February 2016, the Financial Accountmg Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) 2016-02, Leases. The standard, including subsequently issued amendments, collectively
referred to .as Accounting Standards Codification (ASC).842, Leases, established the principles that
lessees and lessors will apply to report useful information to users of financial statements about the
amount, timing and uncertainty of cash flows arising from a lease. ASC 842 did not have a significant
impact on lessor accounting. The System adopted this standard using the modified retrospective
transition approach as applied to leases existing as of or entered into after the adoption date (October 1,
2022) in fiscal year 2023. See Note 16 for a discussion of the System's adoption of this standard and its
impact on the consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

At the inception of an arrangement, the System determines whether the arrangement is, or contains, a
lease based on the unique facts and circumstances present in the arrangement. A lease is a contract, or
part of a contract, that conveys the right to control the use of identified property or. equipment (an
identified asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The System determines if the contract
conveys the tight to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time. The System assesses
throughout the period of use whether the System has both of the following: (1) the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset, and (2) the right to direct the
use of the identified asset. This determination is reassessed if the terms of the contract are changed.

Leases are classified as operating or finance leases based on the terms of the lease agreement and certain
characteristics of the identified asset. Leases with a term greater than one year are necogmzed on the
balance sheet as right-of-use assets and lease obligations, as applicable.

The interest rate implicit in lease contracts is typically not readily determinable. As a result, the System .
has elected to utilize a risk-free rate as the rate to discount lease payments.

Lease liabilities are initially recorded based on the present value of lease payments over the expected
remaining lease term. Lease payments are comprised of fixed and in-substance fixed contract
consideration. The System has made a policy election not to separate lease components, nonlease
‘components, and noncomponents. The right-of-use asset is based on the lease lability, adjusted for
certain items such-as lease prepayments or lease incentives received. Finance lease assets are amortized
on a straight-line basis, with interest costs reported separately, over the lesser of the useful life of the
leased asset or lease term. Operating lease expense is recognized on a straight-line basis. Variable lease
payments are expensed as incurred.

The System assesses at the commencement of a lease any options to extend or terminate the lease -
agreement, and will include in the lease term any extensions or renewals which it determines it is-
reasonably certain to exercise. Assumptions made at the lease commencement date are re-evaluated
upon the occurrence of certain events, including a lease modification. A lease modification results in a
separate contract when the modification grants the lessee an additional right-of-use not included in the
original lease and when lease payments increase commensurate with the standalone price for the
additional right-of-use. When a lease modification results in a separate contract, it is accounted for in
the same manner as a new lease.
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7
s

»Descﬁg" tion of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Contiﬁuéd)

Risks and Uncertainties

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of coronavirus (COVID-19)
a pandemic. The COVID-19 pandemic has significantly affected employees, patients, systems,
communities and business operations, as well as the U.S. economy and financial markets. Since the
declaration of the pandemic, the System has received approximately $57,885 of accelerated Medicate

‘payments (see Note 6), approximately $30,668 related to the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic

Security Act (CARES Act) Provider Relief Funds (PRF) and approximately $8,800 in rural payments
relatéd to the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA). Distributions from the PRF and ARPA are not subject
to repayment, provided the System is able to attest to and comply with the terms and conditions of the
funding, including demonstrating that the distributions received have been used for healthcare-related
expenses or lost revenue attributable to COVID-19. Such payments are accounted for as government
grants, and are recognized on a systematic and rational basis as other income once there is reasonable
assurance that the applicable terms and conditions required to retain the funds will be met. Based on an
analysis of the compliance and reporting requirements of the PRF and ARPA and the impact of the
pandemic on operating results through September 30, 2022, the System recognized approxm;ately
$10,000 related to PRF and ARPA, and these payments were recorded within other revenue in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations for the year ended September 30, 2022. No

-amounts related to PRF or ARPA were recognized within other revenues during the year ended

September 30, 2023. The remaining funds were recognized within other revenues during previous years.

The CARES Act also provides for a deferral of payments of the employer portion of payroll tax incurred
during the pandemic, allowing half of such payroll taxes to be deferred until December 2021, and the
remaining half until December 2022. At September 30, 2022, the System had deferred balances of
payroll taxes totaling $4,646 which were recorded within accrued compensation and related expenses on
the accompanying 2022 consolidated balance sheet. Amounts were fully repaid during the year ended
September 30, 2023,

The System will continue to monitor compliance with the terms and conditions of the PRF, ARPA and

other potential assistance programs and available grants, and the impact of the pandemic on revenues -
and expenses. If the System is unable to attest to or comply with current or future terms and conditions,
the System's ability to retain some or all of the distributions received ﬂm{y be impacted.

Reclassifications

‘Certain 2022 amounts have been reclassified to, permit comparison with the 2023 consolidated financial

statements presentation format.

Subsequent Events

Management of the System evaluated events occurring between the end of the SYstem's fiscal year and
December 8, 2023, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
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(In thousands)

Transabtions With Affiliates.

The System provides funds to CRHC and its affiliates which are used for a vanety of puzposes The
System records the transfer of funds to CRHC and the other affiliates as either receivables or directly
against net assets, depending on the intended use and repayment requirements of the funds. Generally,
funds transferred for start-up costs of new ventures or capital related expenditures are recorded as
charges against net assets. For the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, transfers received from
affiliates were $97 and $343, respectively.

Amounts due the System, primarily from joint ventures, totaled $1,910 and $1,632 at September 30,
2023 and 2022, respectively. Amounts have been classified as current or long-term depending on the
intentions of the parties involved. Beginning in 1999, the Hospital began charging interest on a portion
of the receivables ($467 and $533 at September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively) with principal and
interest (6.75% at September 30, 2023) payments due monthly. Interést income amounted to $34 and
$52 for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. '

A brief description of CRHC's affiliated entities is as follows:

»  Granite VNA (formerly Coiicord Regional Visiting Nurse Association, Inc. and Subsidiary) provides
home health care services.

» Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc. provides behavioral health services.

Contributions to affiliates and other community organizations from net assets with donor restrictions
were $302 and $243 in 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Financial Assets and Liquidity Resources

Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, such &as
operating expenses, scheduled principal payments on debt, and capital construction costs, consisted of
the following at September 30, 2023: '

Cash and cash equivalents $ 79,917
Short-term investments 46,394
Accounts receivable 91,318
Funds held by trustee for insurance reserves, '
debt service and construction costs 18,380
$236,009
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Financial Assets and Liguidity Resources Continued)

To manage liquidity, the System maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalent balances to support daily
operations throughout the year. Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments include bank
deposits, money market funds, and other similar vehicles that generate a return on cash and provide daily
liquidity to the System. In addition, the System has board-designated assets without donor restrictions
that can be utilized at the discretion of management to help fund both operational needs and/or capital
projects. As of September 30, 2023, the balance of liquid investments in board-designated assets was
$343,827. '

Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted

Short-term investments totaling $46,394 and $15,322 at September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, are
comprised primarily of cash and cash equivalents. Assets whose use is limited or restricted are carried
at fair value and consist of the following at September 30:

2023 2022

Board designated funds: ' _ '
Cash and cash equivalents $:25295 § 2,771
Fixed income securities 22,124 21,839
Marketable equity and other securities 326,500 - 301,116
Inflation-protected securities 14,386 14,332

388,305 340,058

Held by trustee for workers' compensation reserves:
Fixed income securities 2,967 2,501

Self-insurance escrows and construction funds:

Cash and cash equivalents 1,255 8,648
Fixed income securities 13,357 24,074
Marketable equity securities 17,381 14,895

31,993 47,617

Donor-restricted funds and restricted grants:

Cash and cash equivalents : 5,857 7,553
Fixed income securities 1,372 1,606
Marketable equity securities 24,965 23,091
Inflation-protected securities ‘ 1,100 1,020
Trust funds administered by others 10,208 9,836
Other 592 - 408
44,094 43,514

$467,359 $433,690

Included in marketable equity and other securities above are $205,295 and $203,040 at September 30,
2023 and 2022, respectively, in so called alternative investments and collective trust funds. See also
Note 15. '
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Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted {(_Continued}

Investment income (loss), net realized gains and losses and net unrealized gains and losses on assets
whose use is limited or restricted, cash and cash equivalents, and other investments are as follows at

- September 30:

2023 2022
Net assets without donor restrictions: , ’ :
Interest and dividends / $ 7,904 $ 7,099
Investment income from trust funds administered by others o 541 599
Net realized gains on sales of investments 5,383 4,079
. Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments ' 37.459  (61.177)

51,287 - (49,400)

Net assets with donor restrictions:

 Interest and dividends : 432 465
Net realized gains on sales of investments : 395 608
Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 3,209 (7,501)

' 4036 _(6,428)
$55.323 $(55.828)

In comphance with the System s spending policy, portions of investment income and related fees are
recognized in other operatmg revenue on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
Investment income reflected in other operating revenue was $1,767 and $2,300 in 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

Investment management fees expensed and reflected in investment income (loss) and other were $857
and $922 for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. -

’

Retirement Plans

The System sponsors a defined contribution plan qualified under Section 403(b) of the U.S. Internal
Revenue Code (IRC) covering eligible employees of the System. Participants are allowed to make pre-
tax or post-tax Roth 403(b) contributions, or a combination of the two. The System does not make
matching contributions. Effective January 1, 2024, the System elected to amend this plan to institute
employer nonelective and matching contnbutlons, based on certain eligibility requirements, as well as
1mplement1ng an automatic deferral arrangement equal to 3% of eligible compensation, as further defined
in the amendment.

_The System sponsors two noncontributory defined benefit retirement plans (the Retirement Plan for
Employees of Concord Hospital (CH Plan) and the Retirement Plan for Employees of Concord Hospital —
Laconia (CH-Laconia Plan)), (collectively, the Plans), which cover substantially all employees of the
System. The Plans provide benefits based on an employee s years of service, age and compensation over
those years. The System's funding policy for the plans is to contribute annually the amount needed to
meet or exceed actuarially determined minimum funding requirements of the Employee Retirement
Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA).
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- NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2023 and 2022

(In thousands)

Retirement Plg_l_ls (Continued)

The System accounts for its defined benefit pension plans under ASC 715, Compensation Retirement
" Benefits, which requires entities to recognize an-asset or liability for the overfunded or underfunded
status of their benefit plans in their financial statements.

On September 26, 2022, the Plans were amended to offer certain participantsr age 62 and older the option
to receive a lump-sum distribution as payment for grandfathered benefits. The eligible participants had
180 days to elect this benefit, beginning October 1, 2022.

During fiscal year 2022, the CH-Laconia Plan incurred a settlement charge due to lump sums paid in
excess of the settlement threshold for the Plan year. The settlement charge totaled $450 and is reflected
as a component of net periodic benefit gain, other than service cost. “

On October 24, 2022, the Board of Trustees approved a merger of the CH Plan into. the CH-Laconia
Plan. The merger of the Plans was effective December 31, 2022 and the surviving plan was named the
Retlrement Plan for Employees of Concord Hospital (Concord Hospital Plan) '

_Effective Janmary 1, 2024, the Board of Trustees elected to amend the Concord Hosmtal Plan to
‘discontinue firiure participation in the Plan by any employees who are hired or rehlred atter
December 31, 2023, as further defined in the amendment.

The following table summarizes the Plans' funded status at September 30: _ 

(

: 12023 2022
Funded status: :
Fair value of plan assets . $343471  § 319,496

Projected benefit obligation ‘ v (319.529) (329.477)
| $_23942 $_(9.98)

Activities for the year consist of:
Benefit payments and administrative 4 o 7
expenses paid % 33965 § 19,314
Net periodic benefit cost ' : 8,565 15,198

The table below presents details about the Plans, including the funded status, components of net periodic
benefit cost, and certain assumptions used in determining the funded status and cost:

Change in benefit obligation: ' S .
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year $329,477 $392,275
Service cost 13,298 16,519
Interest cost 18,596 13,217
Actuarial gain “(1,877)  (69,169)
Benefit payments and administrative expenses paid (33,965) (19,313)
Settlements and plan amendments - (4.052)

Projected benefit obligation at end of year ' $319,529 $329.477
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Retirement Plans {(Continued).

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual gain (loss) on plan assets
Employer contributions
Benefit payments and administrative expenses
Settlements

Fair value of plan assets at end of year

Funded status and amount recognized in
noncurrent assets (liabilities) at September 30

2023 2022
$319,496 $375,094
41,940  (59,286)
16,000 27,900
(33,965)  (19,313)
- (4,899)

$343471 $319,496

$.23.942 $_(9,981)

Amounts recognized as a change in net assets without donor restrictions during the years ended

September 30, 2023 and 2022 consist of:

Net actuarial (gain) loss

Net amortized loss

Prior service credit amortization
Impact of settlement

Total amount recognized

Pension Plan Assets

2023 022

$(23,273) $ 15,858
(3,372)  (10,149)

156 243
- (450)
$(26,480) $_5,502

The fair values of the Plans' assets as of Sep_témber 30, 2023 and 2022, by asset category are as follows
(see Note 15 for level definmons) In accordance with ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements, certain
investments that are measured using the net value per share practical expedlent have not been class1ﬁed

in the fair value hierarchy.

Short-term investments (Level 1):
Money market funds

Equity securities (Level 1):
Mutual funds — domestic
Mutual funds — international
Mutual funds — inflation hedge

Fixed income securities (Level 1):
Mutual funds — fixed income

23

2023 2022
$ 12,804 $ 4,114
145,825 115,233
- 10,302
12,946 12,909

37877 45965
200,452 188,523




CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022

(In thousands)
Retirement Plans (Continued)
: . 2023 2022
" Funds measured at net asset value: '
Equity securities: -
Funds-of-funds ' .. % 81,170  § 81,961
Collective trust funds: .
Equities ' 46,327 - 40,727
Fixed income 6,522 8,285
52.849 49,012
Total investments at fair value ' - $343.471 $§12,496

The Concord Hospital Plan's target asset policy guidelines include total short-term investments between
0% and 20%, total equity securities between 40%-80%, total fixed income securities between 5% and

80%, and other strategies between 0% and 30%. The CH Plan's target asset policy guidelines, prior to
the merger of the Plans described above, included total short-term investments between 0% and 20%,
total equity securities between 40%-80%, total fixed income securities between 5% and 80%, and other
strategies between 0% and 30%. The CH-Laconia Plan's target asset policy guidelines, prior to the
merger of the Plans described above, included total equity securities of 50% and total fixed income
securities of 50%. .

The Plans' asset allocations by asset category are as follows as of September 30:

2023 - 2022
Short-term investments : A% 1%
Equity securities 70% ~ 69%
Fixed income securities ' 13% 17%
Other _ 13% 13%

The funds-of-funds in the Concord Hospital Plan are invested with various invéstrjncnt managers and
have various restrictions on redemptions. -One manager holding amounts totaling approximately

-$19 million at September 30, 2023 allows for semi-monthly redemptions, with 5 days' notice. One

manager holding approxnnately $9 million at September 30, 2023 allows for monthly redemptions, with .
15 days' notice. Four managers holding amounts totaling approximately $34 million at September 30,
2023 allow for quarterly redemptions, with notices ranging from 45 to 65 days. Two managers holding
amounts totaling approximately $16 million at September 30, 2023 allow for annual redemptions, with

‘notices ranging from 60 to 90 days. One manager holding amounts totaling approximately $3 million at

September 30, 2023 allow for redemptions on a semi-annual basis, with a notice of 60 days. The
collective trust funds allow for daily, weekly or monthly redemptions, with notices ranging from 6 t0 10
days. Certain funds also may include a fee estimated to be equal to the cost the fund incurs in convetting
investments to cash, limit the percent of the investment that can be redeemed each redemption period,
or are subject to certain lock periods.

The System considers various factors in estxmatmg the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets.
Among the factors considered include the historical long-term returns on plan assets, the current and
expected allocation of plan assets, input from the System's actuaries and investment consultants, and
long-term inflation assumptions. The System's expected allocation of plan assets is based on a
diversified portfolio consisting of domestic and international equ1ty securities, fixed income securities,
and real estate.’
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Retiremé;it Plans (Continued)

The System's investment policy for its pension plans is to balance risk and returns using a diversified
portfolio consisting primarily of high quality equity and fixed income securities. - To accomplish this
goal, plan assets are actively managed by outside investment managers with the objective of optimizing
long-term return while maintaining a high standard of portfolio quality and proper diversification. The
System monitors the maturities of fixed income securities so that there is sufficient liquidity to meet
current benefit payment obligations. The System's Investment Committee provides oversight of the
Plans' investments and the performance of the investment managers.

Amounts included in expense consist of the following for the years ended September 30:

Components of net periodic benefit cost: ' '
Service cost : _ $ 13,298 § 16,519
Interest cost : -~ 18,596 13,217
Expected return on plan assets (26,545) (24,894)
Amortization of prior service credit and loss - 3,216 9,906
.Settlements - A . : - 450
Net periodic benefit cost : $__8.565 $_15,198

The accumulated benefit obligation for the Plans at September 30, 2023 and 2022 Was $313,562 and
$315,168, respectively.

2023 2022

Weighted average assumptions to determine benefit obligation:

Discount rate 6.11% 5.63%

Rate of compensation increase 3.00% 3.00%
Weighted average assumptions to determine net periodic benefit cost: J

Discount rate - ' 5.63% . - 3.33%

Expected return on plan assets 7.60% 6.50% - 7.75%

Cash balance credit rate ‘ 3.00% - 5.00% - 5.00%

Rate of compensation increase , 300% 2.50% - 3.00%

In selecting the long-term rate of return on plan assets, the System considered the average rate of earnings
expected on the funds invested or to be invested to provide for the benefits of the plans. This included
considering the plans' asset allocation and the expected returns likely to be earned over the life of the
plans, as well as the historical returns on the types of assets held and the current economic environment.

The System funds the pension plans and no contributions are made by employees. - The System funds
the plans annually by making a contribution of at least the minimum. amount required by applicable
regulations and as recommended by the System's actuary. However, the System may also fund the plans

in excess of the minimum required amount. '
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Retirement Plans (Continued)

Cash. contributions in subsequent years will depend on a number of factors including performance of
plan assets. However, the System expects to fund $16,000 in cash contributions to the Concord Hospital
Plan in 2024. i

. /
Benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid as
follows:

Year Ended September 30

2024 g $ 27,172
2025 , 24,447
2026 ‘ : 26,747
2027 ' ‘ 28,696
2028 28,774
2029 - 2033 147,475

Estimated Third-Party Payor Setﬂements

The System has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the System at amounts
different from its established rates. A summary of the payment arrangements with major thlrd-party
payors follows:

Medicare

Inpatient and outpatient services rendered to Medicare program beneficiaries are primarily paid at
prospectively determined rates. These rates vary according to a patient classification system that is
based on clinical diagnosis and other factors. In addition to this, the System is also reimbursed for
medical education and other items which require cost settlement and retrospective review by the fiscal
intermediary. Accordingly, the System files an annual cost report with the Medicare program after the
completion of each fiscal year to report activity applicable to the Medicare program and to detenmne
any final settlements.

The physician practices are reimbursed on a fee schedule basis.

Medicaid Enhancement Tax and Disproportionate Share Payment

Under the State of New Hampshire's (the State) tax code, the State imposes a Medicaid Enhancement

. Tax (MET) equal to 5.40% of net patient service revenues in State fiscal years 2023 and 2022. The

amount of tax incurred by the System for 2023 and 2022 was $32,647 and $32,035, respectively.

In the fall of 2010, in order to remain in compliance with stated federal regulations, the State of New
Hampshire adopted a new approach related to Medicaid disproportionate share funding (DSH)
retroactive to July 1, 2010. Unlike the former funding method, the State's approach led to a payment,
that was not directly based on, and did not equate to, the level of tax imposed. As a result, the legislation
created some level of losses at certain New Hampshire hospitals, while other hospitals realized gains.
DSH payments from the State are recorded within revenue without donor restrictions and other support
and amounted to $30,212 in 2023 and $29,744 in 2022, net of reserves referenced below.

26
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Estimated Third-Partv Payor Settlements ~;§Cpn_tinuedf)

The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) has completed audits of the State's program
and the disproportionate share payments made by the State from 2011 to 2019, the first years that those
payments reflected the amount of uncompensated care provided by New Hampshire hospitals. It is
possible that subsequent years will also be audited by CMS. The System has recorded reserves to address
its potential exposure based on the audit results to date or any future redistributions. -

Subsequent to year end, the Hospital filed suit against the NH Department of Health and Human Services
over their plan for the redistribution of DSH payments from 2011 to 2017. All amounts related to the
redistribution plan have been fully reserved for as of September 30, 2023.

Inpatient services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries are paid at prospectively determined rates

per discharge. Outpatient services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries are reimbursed under

fee schedules and cost reimbursement methodologies subject to various limitations or discounts. The

System is reimbursed at a tentative rate with final settlement determined after submission of annual cost
reports by the System and audits thereof by the Medicaid program. : —

The physician practices are reimbursed on a fee schedule basis.
Other

The System has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance ‘carriers and
health maintenance organizations. The basis for payment to the System under these agreements includes
prospectively determined rates per discharge, discounts from established charges, fee schedules, and
prospectively determined rates.

The accrual for estimated third-party payor settlements reflected on the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets represents the estimated net amounts to be paid under reimbursement contracts with the
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (Medicare), the New Hampshire Department of Welfare
(Medicaid) and any commercial payors with settlement provision. Settlements for the Hospital have
been finalized through 2018 for Medicare and 2017 for Medicaid. Settlements for CH-Laconia have
been finalized through 2019 for Medicare and Medicaid. Settlements for -CH-Franklin have been
finalized through 2021 for Medicare and 2019 for Medicaid.

During fiscal year 2020, the System requested accelerated Medicare payments as provided for in the
CARES Act, which allowed for eligible health care facilities to request up to six months of advance
Medicare payments for acute care hospitals or up to three months of advance Medicare payments for
other health care providers. One year from the date of receipt of the advance payments (beginning April
2021) 25% of the advances were recouped in the first eleven months. An additional 25% of the advances
were recouped in the next six months, with the entire amount repayable in 29 months. Any outstanding
balance after 29 months was repayable at a 4% interest rate. During the third quarter of fiscal 2020, the
System received $57,885 from these accelerated Medicare payment requests. At September 30, 2022,
the current portion due within a year, totaling $248 was recorded under the caption "accrual for estimated
third-party payor settlements” in the accompanying 2022 balance sheet. Amounts were repaid in full
during the year ended September 30, 2023, '
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Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following at September 30, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022

New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority (NHHEFA)

Revenue bonds, Concord Hospital Issue, Series 2021A; interest

ranging from 3.0% to 5.0% per year and principal payable in

annual installments ranging from $1,685 to $3,095 through

October 2042, including unamortized original issue premium

of $6,219 in 2023 and $6,950 in 2022 , $ 46,280 $ 48,610
2020A note payable to a bank, due October 1, 2026, interest at 1.57%

per annum, payable in monthly and annual principal payments ,

ranging from $2,469 to $2,580 : 10,093 12,520
2020B note payable to a bank, due October 1, 2035 (lender has the

option to extend the maturity date through October 1, 2043), interest

at 2.26% per annum, payable in monthly and annual principal

payments ranging from $991 to $2,942 beginning October 2023,

Final balloon payment of $10,157 due October 1, 2035, if the

maturity date is not extended by the lender. This note converted into

tax-exempt revenue bonds effective July 6, 2022. As a result of the ‘

conversion, the interest rate was reduced to 1.84% 36,582 36,582
NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Concord Hospital Issue, Series 2017; interest :

of 5.0% per year and principal payable in annual installments.

Installments ranging from $2,010 to $5,965 beginning October 2032,

including unamortized original issue premium of $5,923 in 2023

and $6,249 in 2022 60,012 60,459

. : 152,967 158,171
Less unamortized bond issuance costs (1,298) (1,415)
Less current portion , (6.144) _(4.147)
$145,525 $152.609

In March 2020, the Hospital entered into a $12,5§0 note payable agreement (2020A note) with a lender
to advance refund $11,780 of the Series 2011 NHHEFA Hospital Revenue Bonds. No amounts of the
Series 2011 advance refunded bonds remained outstanding as of September 30, 2023 .and 2022.

In March 2020, the Hospital entered into a $36,582 note payable agreement (2020B note) with a lender
to advance refund the Series 2013A NHHEFA Hospital Revenue Bonds. As of September 30, 2022
$33,785 of the Series 2013A advance refunded bonds, which were considered extinguished for purposes
of these consolidated financial statements, remained outstanding. No amounts of the Series 2013A
advance refunded bonds remained outstanding as of September 30, 2023. In conjunction with the
issuance of the 2020B note, in order to further reduce debt service obligations, the Hospital, NHHEFA
and the lender entered intoa forward purchase agreement. Under the forward purchase agreement, the
Hospital'had the option to request NHHEFA to issue tax-exempt revenue bonds on or after July 3, 2022
to refinance the 2020B note. The Hospital exercised this option on July 6, 2022, which resulted in the
interest rate decreasing from 2.26% to 1.84%. '
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In December 2017, $62,004 (mc]udmg an original issue premium of §7 794) of NHHEFA Revenue
Bonds, Concotd Hospital Issue, Series 2017, were issued to pay for the construction of a new medical
office building. In addition, the Series 2017 Bonds reimbursed the Hospital for capital expenditures
incurred in association with the construction of a parking garage and the construction of a medical office
building, as well as routme capital expenditures.

¢

Substantially all the property and equ1pment relating to the aforementioned construction and renovatlon
projects, as well as subsequent property and equipment additions thereto, are pledged as collateral for
all outstanding long-term debt. In addition, the gross receipts of the Hospital, CH-Laconia and CH-
Franklin are also pledged as collateral for all outstanding long-term debt. CH-Laconia and CH-Franklin
also pledge gross receipts as collateral for the outstanding Series 2021A Revenue Bonds. The most
restrictive financial covenants require a 1.10 to 1.0 ratio of aggregate income available for debt service
to total annual debt service and a day's cash on hand ratio of 75 days. The System was in compliance
with its debt covenants at September 30, 2023 and 2022,

The obligations of the Hosp1tal under the above bond indentures are guaranteed by the Hospital, CH-'
Laconiz and CH-Franklin and are not guaranteed by y any of the subsidiaries or affiliated entities.

Interest pa1d on long-term debt amounted to $5,215 and $5,531 for the years ¢ ended September 30 2023
and 2022, respectively.

The aggregate principal payments on long-term debt for the next five fiscal years endmg September 30
and thereafter are as follows:

2024 | $ 6144

2025 | 4455
2026 , g ' 5,181
2027 : : 6,949
2028 o ' » 4,516
Thereafter. S 113.580

$140.825
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Commitments and Contingencies (

Malpractice Loss Contingencies

. The Systexh'iﬁsures its medical malpractice risks through GSIE, a multiprovider capﬁve‘iixsurance v
_company. As discussed in Note 1, during 2022, GSIE began the process of winding down; operatlons

and was replaced with CHIG.

.GSIE _and CHIG provide claims-made medical stop loss coverage to their subscriber, health systems.

Subsequent to December 31, 2020, the System is the sole remaining subscriber of GSIE. The System is

~ also the only subscriber of CHIG. GSIE and CHIG purchase reinsurance from three reinsurers to limit

potential exposure to the Sys‘tem‘. The reinsurance policies in place are subject to renewal on January 1,
2024, and, afier the System's primary retained layer of $2 million (GSIE) and $3 million (CHIG) per
occurrence and $12 million aggregate, cover up to $25 million per occurrence and aggregate per annum.
The failure of reinsurers to honor their obligations could result in additional losses to GSIE and CHIG,
and those losses could be s:gmﬁcant to GSIE CHIG and the System.

The reserve for unpald losses and loss adJustment expenses and the related reinsurance recoverab]es
includes case basis estimates of reported losses, plus supplemental reserves for incurred but not reported

losses (IBNR) calculated based upon loss projections utilizing historical and industry data. An

independent consulting actuary is involved in estabhshmg this reserve and the related reinsurance

recoverables. Management of the System believes that GSIE's and CHIG's aggregate reserve for unpaid

losses and loss adjustment expenses and related reinsurance recoverables at year-end represent its best
estimate, based on the available data, of the amount necessary to cover the ultimate cost of losses;
however, because of the nature of the insured risks and limited historical ‘experience, actual loss
experience may not conform to the assumptions used in determining the estimated amounts for such
liability and' corresponding asset at the consolidated balance sheet date. Accordingly, the ultimate -
liability and corresponding asset could be significantly in excess of or less than the amount indicated in
these consolidated financial -statements.” As adjustments to these estimates become necessary, such
adjustments are reflected in current year operations. Amounts. recoverable from reinsurers have been
reduced to their net realizable value. , -

At September 30, 2023 there were no known malpraetlce claims outstandmg for the System which, in
the opinion of management will be settled for amounts in excess of insurance coverage, nor were there
any unasserted claims or incidents which require 10ss accruals. The System has established reserves for
unpaid claim amounts for Hospital and Physician Professional Liability and General Liability reported

- claims and for unreported claims for incidents that have been incurred but not  reported. The amounts of

the reserves total $17,690 and $20,253 at September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and are reflected
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets within reserves for insurance.” The poss1b111ty exists,
as a normal risk of doing business, that malpractice claims in excess of insurance coverage may be
asserted against the System ’
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Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

In accordance with ASU No. 2010-24, "Health Care Entities" (Topic 954): Presentation of Insurance

Claims and Related Insurance Recoveries, at September 30, 2023 and 2022, the System recorded a

liability of approximately $3,100 and $3,300, respectively related to estimated professional liability
losses. At September 30, 2023 and 2022, the System also recorded a receivable of $3,100 and $3,300,
respectively, related to estimated recoveries under insurance coverage for recoveries of the potential

losses. These amounts are included in reserve for insurance ($3,100 at September 30, 2023 and $3,300

at September 30, 2022), and other assets ($3,100 at September 30, 2023 and $3,300 at September 30,
2022), respectively, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Workers' Compensation

The System maintains workers' compensation insurance under a self-insurance plan. The plan offers,
among other provisions, certain specific and aggregate stop-loss coverage to protect the System against
excessive losses. The System has employed independent actuaries to estimate the ultimate costs, if any,
of the settlement of such claims. Accrued workers' compensation losses of $4,061 and $3,888 at
September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, are recorded within accounts payable and accrued expenses
in the accomparying consolidated balance sheets and have been discounted at 3% (both years) and, in
rmanagement]s opinion, provide an adequate reserve for loss contingencies. A trustee held fund has been
established as a reserve under the plan. Assets held in trust totaled $2,967 and $2,501 at September 30,
2023 and 2022, respectively, and are included in assets whose use is limited or restricted in' the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. :

Litigation

The System is involved in litigation and regulatory investigations arising in the ordinary course of
business. After consultation with legal counsel, management estimates that these matters will be
resolved without material adverse effect on the System's financial position, results of operations or cash
flows.

Health Insurance

The System has a self-funded health insurance plan. The plan is administered by an insurance company
which assists in determining the current funding requirements of participants under the terms of the plan
and the liability for claims and assessments that would be payable at any given point in time. The System
recognizes revenue for services provided to employees of the System during the year. The System is
insured above a stop-loss amount of $550 on individual claims. Estimated unpaid claims, and those
claims incurred but not reported at September 30, 2023 and 2022, have been recorded as a liability of
$13,631 and $13,286, respectively, and are reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
within accounts payable and accrued expenses. ' : '
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Nef Assets With Donor Restrictions;

Net asséfs with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes at September 30:-

Purpose restriction: _
Health education and program services
Capital acquisitions
Indigent care
Pledges receivable with stipulated
purpose and/or time restrictions

Perpetual in nature:
Health education and program services
Capital acquisitions
Indigent care :
Annuities to be held in perpetuity

Total net assets with donor restrictions

Patient Service Revenue

2023 2022
$18,770 $18,991
441 610
83 116

575 391

19,869 20,108

20,859 20,225 .

. 803 803 -
2,105 2,105
458 273

24,225 23,406

$44,094 $43,514

An estimated breakdown of patient service revenue for the System by major payor sources is as follows

for the years ended September 30:

Private payor (includes coinsurance and deductibles)

Medicare
Medicaid
Self-pay

32

2023 2022

© $388,492  $391,300

282,111 276,967
34,880 40,340
275 789

| $705758 $709.396
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11. Fupétionél 'Exp_; enses

The System provides general health care services to residents within its geographic location. Expenses
related to providing these services are as follows for the years ended September 30: - :

Health General and - Fund-

: Services - Administrative - raising Total
Salaries and wages B $316,143 $ 60,492 § 574  $377,209
Employee benefits ' « 68,381 13,086 - 124 81,591
Supplies and other. - : 131,206 © 21,241 - - 188 - 152,635
Purchased services : . 37,677 19,896 223 57,796
Professional fees - . ' : 17,021 - - 17,021
Depreciation and amortization - - 18,310 - 8,692 289 27,291
Medicaid enhancement tax 32,647 - - 32,647
Interest ' 2.868 1362 . ___45 4,275
. Lo 8
$624,253 $124,760 - $1443  $150,465
Salaries and wages $320,669 $ 59,597 $ 580 $380,846
Employee benefits : 77,767 14,455 - 141 92,363 -
Supplies and other . : 135,008 - 21,486 180 156,674
Purchased services " 33,227 17,988 S i 51,392,
Professional fees = - : 16,495 3. - 16,498
Depreciation and amortization 19,424 9,222 . 307 28,953
Medicaid enhancement tax ’ 32,035 =) - 32,035
Interest , 3.065 -1.455 48 4,568

$637,600  $124206  $1433 - $763.329

The consolidated financial statements repoi't certain expense categories that are atiributable to more than
one healthcare service or support function. Therefore, these expenses require an -allocation on a
reasonable basis that is consistently applied. Costs not directly aitributable to a function, such as
depreciation and interest, are allocated to a function based on square footage. Supporting activities that
are not. directly identifiable with one or more healthcare programs are classified as general and.
administrative. If it is impossible or impractical to make a direct identification, allocation of the
expenses were made according to management's- estimates. Employee benefits are allocated in
accordance with the ratio of salaries and wages of the functional classes. Specifically identifiable costs
are assigned to the function which they are identified to. ' ' :
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

. Chariﬁyf Care and C’omn'umil:’\“P Benefits (Unaudited)

The System maintains records to 1dent1fy and monitor the level of charity care it provides. The System
- provides traditional charity care, as well as other forms of community benefits. - The estimated cost of
. all such benefits provided is as follows for the years ended September 30:

2023 2022
‘Government sponsored healthcare $35353 $36,515
Community health services 1,507 1,281
Health professions education - - - 2,801 2,038
Subsidized health services ’ 52,622 50,929
Research 306 131
Financial coniributions ' 1,405 1,440
Community benefit operations & 68 . 89
Community building activities ' ‘ 786 414

* - Charity care costs (see Note 1) . 3465 3,389
$98313 $96226

The System incurred estimated costs for services to Medicare patients in excess of the payment from thls
program of $82,230 and $78,563 in 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Concentr-aﬁon of Credit Risk

The System grants credit without collatera] to its pat1ents most of whom are local residents of southern
New Hampshire and are insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of gross receivables from
patients and third-party payors as of September 30 is as follows:

2023 2022

~Patients , _ 9% 8%
Medicare 38 42
Anthem Blue Cross : 19 18

~Cigna’ : - 3. 3
Medicaid. ‘ : . ‘ 10 11
Commercial , -19 16

~ Workers' compensation _ v ' o _2 _2

100% 100%
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15.

CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

_Voluntge_;':Seryices (Unaudited)

Total volunteer service hours received by the System were approximately 25,000 and 23,000 in 2023
and 2022, respectively. The volunteers provide various nonspecialized services to the System, none of
which has been recognized as revenue or expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations. -

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value of a financial instrument is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In
determining fair value, the System uses various methods including market, income and cost approaches.
Based on these approaches, the System often utilizes certain assumptions that market participants would-
use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and or the risks inherent in the
inputs to the valuation technique. These inputs can be readily observable, market corroborated, or
generally unobservable inputs. The System utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. Based on the observability of the inputs
used ir. the valuation techniques, the System is required to provide the following information according
to the fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy ranks the quality and reliability of the information
used to determine fair values. Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value will be classified and
disclosed in one of the following three categories:

Level 1 — Valuations for assets and labilities traded in active exchange markets, such as the New
York Stock Exchange. Level 1 also includes U.S. Treasury and federal agency securities and federal
agency mortgage-backed securities, which are traded by dealers or brokers in active markets.
Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market transactions involving
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in less active dealer or broker markets.
Valuations are obtained from third party pricing services for identical or similar assets or liabilities.

Level 3 — Valuations for assets and liabilities that are derived from other valuation methodologies,
including option pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques, and not based
on market exchange, dealer or broker traded transactions. Level 3 valuations incorporate certain
assumptions and projections in determining the fair value assigned to such assets or liabilities.

In determining the appropriate levels, the System performs a detailed analysis of the assets and liabilities.
There have been no changes in the methodologies used at September 30, 2023 and 2022. In accordance
with ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements, certain investments that are measured using the net value per
share practical expedient have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy. : '
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- CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES -
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Fair Vallje Measurements (Continued)

The following presents the balances of assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at September 30;

Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total

© 2023
Cash and cash equivalents $7881 $ - $ -~ $ 78801
Fixed income securities 25471 10,177 - 35,648
Marketable equity and other securities 163,551 - - 163,551
Inflation-protected securities and other 16,078 - - 16,078
Trust funds administered by others - - 10,208 - _10.208

$283.901 $10177 $10.208 304,286

Funds measured at net asset value:

Marketable equity and other securities : 205,295
$500,581
-2022 ,

Cash and cash equivalents $34204 § - § - § 34294
Fixed income securities 35,203 10,645 = 45,848
Marketable equity and other securities 136,062 - - 136,062
Inflation-protected securities and other 15,760 - - 15,760
Trust funds administered by others - - _9836 9,836

$221.310 $10,645 $_9.836 . 241,800

Funds measured at net assét value:
Marketable equity and other securities ‘ 203.040

$244,840

In addition, for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, there are certain mvestments totaling -
$4,172 which are appropriately being carried at cost.

The System's Level 3 investments consist of funds administered by others. The fair value measurement
is based on significant unobservable inputs. ‘

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit and overall market
volatility. As such, it is reasonably possible that changes in the fair value of investments will occur in
the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets and statements of operations. :
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC.’AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
{In thousands)

15. Fair Val‘ﬁéi »Meg;surements (Continued)

A reconciliation of the fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) is as
follows for 2023 and 2022: :

. Trust Funds
- Administered
_by Others

Balance at September 30, 2021 ' , 812341
Net réa]ized and unrealized losses ’ {2.505)
Balance at September 30, 2022 9,836
Net realized and unrealized gains : _ 32
Balance at September 30, 2023 C $__]M

The table below sets forth additio.ﬁal disclosires for investment funds (other than mutual funds) valued
based ori net asset value to further understand the nature and risk of the investments by category:

Unfunded - Redemption
Fair Commit- Redemption Notice
Value ments Frequency ._Period
September 30, 2023: ‘ ,
Funds-of-funds $22628 - § - Semi-monthly . 5 days
Funds-of-funds ' 12,007 - Monthly 15 days
Funds-of-funds 44,264 - Quarterly , 45 — 65 days**
Funds-of-funds - 13,621 - Annual 60 - 90 days
Funds-of-funds 4,657 ~ Semi-annual 60 days*
Funds-of-funds 47,870 32,327 liquid : N/A
Collective trust funds 7,032 - Daily 10 days
Collective trust funds - 7,641 - Weekly 10 days
Collective trust funds 45,575 - Monthly 6 — 10 days
September 30, 2022:

‘Funds-of-funds $1848 § - Semi-monthly 5days -
Funds-of-funds 9,645 - Monthly - 15 days
Funds-of-funds 53,791 - Quarterly 45 — 65 days**
Funds-of-funds : 10,329 - Annual 90 days
Funds-of-funds 8,250 - Semi-annual 60 days*
Funds-of-funds , 42,296 25,854 Iliquid  N/A :
Collective trust funds 12,582 - Daily 10 days
Collective trust funds 7,008 - Weekly . . 10 days - .
Collective trust funds 40,650 - Monthly 6 — 10 days

* Limited to 25% of the investment balance at each redemption. A full redemption of this fund is in

_ progress as of September 30, 2023.
** One investment has a one-year lock period and redemption of one investment is limited to 12.5% of
the investment balance at each redemption.

37



15.

CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- September 30, 2023 and 2022

(In thousands)

Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Fixed Income Securities
The primary purpose of fixed income investments is to provide a hlgth predictable and dependable
source of income, preserve capital, and reduce the volatility of the total portfolio and hedge against the

risk of deflation or protracted economiic contraction.

Marketable Equity and Other Securit_ies

'The primary purpose of ‘marketable equity investments is to provide appreciation of principal and érowth
“of income with the recognition that this requires the assumption of greater market volatility and risk of

loss. The total marketable equity portion of the portfolio will be broadly diversified according to
economic sector, industry, number of holdings and other characteristics including style and
capitalization. The System may employ multiple equity investment managers, each of whom may have
distinct investment styles. Accordingly, while each manager's portfolio may not be fully dlvers1ﬁed it
is expected that the combined equity portfolio will be broadly diversified.

The System invests in other securities that are considered alternative investments-that consist of limited
partnership interests in investment funds, which, in turn, invest in diversified portfolios predominantly
comprised of equity and fixed income securities, as well as. options, futures contracts, and some other
less liquid investments. Management has approved procedures pursuant to the methods in which the

- System values these investments at fair value, which ordinarily will be the amount equal to the pro-rata

interest in the net assets of the limited partnership, as such value is supplied by, or on behalf of, each

~ investment from time to time, usually monthly and/or quarterly by the investment manager. Collective

trust funds are generally valued based on the proportionate share of total fund net assets.

System management is responsible for the fair value measurements of mvestments reported in the
consolidated financial statements. Such amounts are generally determined using audited financial

_statements of the funds and/or recently settled transactions and is estimated using the net asset value per

share of the fund. Because of inherent uncertainty of valuation of certain alternative investments, the
estimate of the fund manager or general partner may differ from actual values, and differences could be
significant. Management believes that reported fair values of its alternative investments at the balance
sheet dates are reasonable.

The System has committed to invest up to $73,183 with various investment managers, and had funded

" $33,856 of that commitment as of September 30, 2023. As these investments are made, the System

reallocates resources from its current investments resulting in an asset allocaﬂon shift within the

_ investment pool.

,Inﬂation-Protected Securities

The primary purpose of inflation-protected securities is to provide protection agairist the negative effects
of inflation.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Fair Value Measurements ( Continue.d)

Fair Value of Other Financial Instruments

Other financial instruments consist of accounts and pledges receivable, accounts payable and accrued
expenses, estimated third-party payor settlements, and long-term debt and notes payable. The fair value
of all financial instruments other than long-term debt and notes payable approximates their relative book
values as these financial instruments have short-term maturities or are recorded at amounts that
approximate fair value.

Leases

Adoption of ASC Topic 842, Leases (ASC 842)

The System has various leases relative to its office and offsite locations. ASC 842 became effective for
the System on October 1, 2022 and was adopted using the modified retrospective method for all leases
that had commenced as of the effective date, along with certain available practical expedients. The
System elected to recognize any effects of applying the new standard as = cumulative-effect adjustment
to the opening balance of net assets in the period of adoption, which there were none. In addition, the
System elected to adopt the package of practical expedients permitted under the transition guidance
within the new standard. The practical expedient package applied to leases that commenced prior to the
effective date of the new standard and permits a reporting entity not to: i) reassess whether any expired
or existing contracts are or contain leases, ii) reassess the historical lease classification for any expired
or existing leases, and iii) reassess initial direct costs for any existing leases. The reporting results for
fiscal year 2023 reflect the application of ASC 842 guidance while the historical results for fiscal year
2022 were prepared under the guidance of ASC 840. The adoption of the new standard did not have a
significant impact upon the System's consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets and
cash flows. The adoption of the new standard resulted in the following impact: the recording of right-
of-use assets and corresponding lease liabilities pertaining to the System's operating leases on the
accompanying 2023 consolidated balance sheet.

Operating lease right-of-use assets and operating lease liabilities are reported in the System's 2023
consolidated balance sheet as follows: '

Operating lease right-of-use assets ’ $26,252
Current portion of operating lease liabilities , $ 5,406
Operating lease liabilities, less current portion , 21,091
Total operating lease liabilities $M

During the year ended September 30, 2023, the total lease cost associated with the System's opefating
leases was $6,319.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Leases ‘{:'C_,ontinued').

 Supplemental Cash Flow Iniformation

“Supplemental cash flow information is as follows for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023:

Operating leéases — operating cash flows (fixed payments) $ 6,073

~ Operating leases - right-of-use assets and operating lease -

liabilities recorded upon adoption of ASU 842 28,636
Operating leases - right-of-use assets obtained in exchange

for new operating lease liabilities 2,876

Lease Term and Discount Rate

Lease term and discount rate are as follows for the fiscal year ended Séptember 30, 2023:

Weighted-average remaining lease term (in years) , 6.97

Weighted-average discount rate » 3.91%

As of September 30, 2023, maturities of operating lease liabilities for each of the following five years
were as follows:

2024 : o ' $ 6,324

2025 5,183
2026 - 4,091
2027 , 3,175
2028 3,091
Thereafter ' 8.588
Total minimum future lease payments ' 30,452
Less imputed interest | ) (3.955)
Total lease liabilities $26,497

As of September 30, 2022, future minimum lease payments prepared under the previous guidance of
ASC 840 were as follows:

2023 $ 8,078
2024 7,038
2025 5,590
2026 : ' 3,333
2027 2,967
Thereafter : 10.826

* $37.832

Rent expense was $9,532 for the year ended September 30, 2022.
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KEY PERSONNEL

Danny Turmel, RTR (CT)
Director of Radlology at Concord Hospital--Concord, Laconla, Franklin

Dan has been in the field of Radiology for 29+ years. He holds a Bachelors Degree in Healthcare
Administra_ti_on; He has 17+ years in a direct leadership role in hospital based settings, with 8 of those
years serving as the Director of Radiology in two different institutions. Dan has been the Director of

- Radiology at Concord Hospital since May of 2021. He focuses on continuous improvement that drives
productivity, operatlonal efficiencies and financial stewardship with the aim of positive customer service.

Dan Turmel RTR (o8))]
Director of Radiology,
603:227-7000 ext. 7262
" Concord Hospital -

250 Pleasant St.
Concord, NH 03301

Debra Willey, MBA, MT(ASCP)
Director of Laboratory Services, Concord Hospital - (‘oncord

“ Debra Willey started working at Concord Hospital in 1989 as a new graduate from the University of New Hampshire. .
Since then, Debra has held multiple leadership roles in the Laboratory, including Director, since 2008. The Laboratory
has serviced Nursing Homes, Acute Care Facilities and Rehabilitation Facilities actively since 1997 and prides itself on
its strong commitment to customer service.

Debra Willey, MBA, MT(ASCF)
Director of Laboratory Services
Concord Hospital / Concord
603-227-7000 x 4614
dwilley@crhc.org

Kerri Scribner OTR/L, MBA
Director of Inpatient Rehabilitation Services and Outpatient Speech Language Pathology at Concord’
Hospital-Concord/Laconia/Franklin

Kerri has served as the Director of Rehabilitative Services at all 3 hospitals in the Concord Hospitél Health
System since 2020 and has been with Concord Hospital since 2012. She has been a practicing
Occupational therapist for 27 + years earning a BS in Science/Occupational Therapy from University of
New Hampshire in 1997 and a MBA from New England College in 2012. An experienced and visionary
leader in acute care PT, OT and SLP as well as leading Outpatient Adult and Pediatric SLP who thrives in a
fast-paced environment that values hlgh quality patient care and system thinking.

250 Pleasant St Suite 5073

Concord, NH 03301

603-227-7000 ext. 2631

kscribne@crhc.org




New Hampshire Veterans Home

KEY PERSONNEL
List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement..

Job descriptions are not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Concord Hospital. Inc.. Concord Hospital — Laconia & Concord Hospital - Frén_klin

NAME JOB TITLE AMOUNT - | ©~ ANNUAL
PAID FROM SALARY
. THIS |
Danny Turmel Director of Radiology ) $180,000 |
' | Director of Inpatient Rehabilitation and .
Kerri Scribner _Outpatient Speech Language Pathology | $0.00. ~ $143,000 |

fDebraWille')? L ’D‘ir‘ec,t,or, of Laboratory Services I A $_,O.OAOV‘ , $163,000




be clearly 1dcnuﬁed to thc agency and agrecd to in wmmg prior to s1gmng the contract

1. IDENTIFICATION.

F ORM NUMBER P-37 (versmn 2/23/2023)

i otme Thls agreement and al] of its attachmcnts shall become pubhc upon submlsswn to Governor and
\ Executive Council for appraval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprictary must
i

gl
!

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby sutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 State Agency Name

‘New Hamps]nre Veterans Home

1.2"»Stvatc’rAéeh(7:‘yAdabre:ss T
1 139 Winter Street, Tilton, NH 03726

1.3 Contractor Name

 Concord Hospital - Franklin

"1.5 Conlractor Phone
Number

| (603)934-2060

1 1.6 'Accouni-Unit and Class |
1 010-043-53590000-101-
- 500729

T4 Conbactor Address

1.7 Completion Date
6/30/2029

[

15 Aiken Ave, Franklin, NH 03235

175 Price Limitation
| $150,000.00

19 Comtracting Officer for State Agency

| Kimberly MacKay

17717 Contractor Signature

Yy s

Date: 34 { s /570 a‘[

"1.10 Siato Agency Telephon Number
603-527-4400 ,

“1"1.12 Mame and Title of Contractor Smnatory )

?nb?ﬂ—k £ S\Lels,mpyﬁk Jp/.as(.lc-v&d CES

113 State Agency Signatore

: 1 14 Name and Title of State Agency Slgnalory

Date: osfoa};w’,

meberly Mackay, MS NHA
Commandant

: 1 15 Approval byzthe N, H Dcparthm of ﬁ.dmlmsuatlon Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By:

Director, On:

17716 Approval by the Attomsy General (Form, Substance and Execttion) (7 applicable)

By: /éﬁé}ﬂzﬁ %&W

On: 6/11/24

' 1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council {if applicable)

G&C Ttem number:

G&C Mecting Dale:
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) —Commcior,lnitials// o
Date_y Jas /o



2. SERVICES TQ BE PERFORMED. The Siate of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.)
{*State™), engages contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor™)
to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of
goods, or both, identified and more particularly described in the
adached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”). ‘

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Govemor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the perties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive Couneil
approve this Agreement, unless no sach approval is required, in
which case the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block 1.13
{“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effective
Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to the
Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor,
and in the event that this Agreement does not become effective, the
State shall bave no liability 10 the Contractar, including without
limitation, any obligation to pay .thc Contractor for any costs
incurred or Services performed.

3.3 Coniractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7. " . ‘

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the conlrary,
all obligations of the Slate hereunder, including, without limitation,
the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such
available appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or
iermination of appropriated funds by any state or federal legislative
or executive action that reduces, eliminales or otherwise modifies
the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole ar in part,
the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such finds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination. The
State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.5 in the event funds
in that Account are reduced or unavailabie.

. 5, CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT.
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and temms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding vnexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments avthorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. The
payment by the State of the contract price shall be the only and the
complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all expenses, of
whatever nawre incurred by the Contractor in the performance
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hereof, and shall be the only and the complete compensation to the
Contractor for the Services. | ' : o

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherivise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement thosc
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA §0:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 The State’s liability under this Agreement shall be limited to
monetary damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has an adéquatc remedy at law for any breach-of this
Agreement by the State and hereby waives any tight 1o specific
performance or other equitable remedies against the State.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS ARD
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUMNITY.
6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county of municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, inclnding, but not limited to, civil rights end equal
employment opportunity laws and the Governor's order on Respect
and Civility in the Workplace, Executive order 2020-01. In
- addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all federal
executive orders, rules, regulations and statutes, and with any rules,
regulations and guidelines as the State or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also cc}mp[y
with all applicable intellectual property laws. )
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of age, sex, sexual orientation, race, color, marital status,
-physical or mental disability, religions creed, national origin,
gender identity, or gender expression, and will take affirmative
aclion o prevent such discrimination, unless exempt by state or
federal law. The Contractor shall ensure any subcontractors
comply with these nondiscrimination requirements. )
6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or iis
Tepresentatives in connection with this Agreement have or shall be
made which have (he purpose or effect of public or commercial
_bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks,
or other uniawful or imptoper means of obtaining business.
6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the: State or United States
access 1o any of the Coniractor’s books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement and
all rules, regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms
and conditions of this Agreement,

7. PERSONNEL. o

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personmel
necessary to perform the Services, The Contractor warrants that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform the
Services, and shail be properly licensed and otherwise authorized

" to do so under all applicable Jaws.

7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in bloclv; 1.9, or auny
successor, shall be the State’s point of coatact pertaining to this

Apreement.
Contractor Initials ﬂ/ »
Date ~f v



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES. y

8.1 Any one ar more of the following acts or amissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder (“Event
of Default™): )

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or

8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Defanlt, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:

8.2.1 give the Contraclor a wrtten notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) calendar days
from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely
cured, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) calendar days
after giving the Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and snspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering thal the portion of the contract price which
would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the period from
the date of such notice until such time as the State detenmines that
the Contractor has cured the Event of Defanlt shall never be paid
to the Contractor;

8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and sel off against any other abligations the State may owe
to the Contractor any damages the State sufférs by xeason of any
Event of Default; and/or 3 o
8.2.4 give the Coniractor a written notire specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agréement as breached, terminate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. TERMINATION,

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in
part, by thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the Contracior
that the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 in the eveni of an early termination of this Agreement for any
reason other than the completion of the Services, the Contractor
shall, at the State’s discretion, deliver to the Contracting Officer,
not later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”} describing in detail
all Services performed, and the contract price eamned, to and
including the date of termination. In addition, ar the State’s
discretion, the Contractor shall, within fifteen (15) calendar days
of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a
transition plan for Services wnder the Agreenent.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “Properiy™ shall mean
all data, information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound. recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether finished or
unfinished. -
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10.2 All data and any Property which has been received from the
State, or purchased with fands provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned
to the State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement
for any reason.

10.3 Disclosure of data, information end other records shall be
govered by N.H. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other applicable law,
Disclosure requires prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects an
independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of
the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its officers, employées,
agents or members shall have anthority to bind the State or receive
any benefits, workers’ compensation or other emoluments
provided by the State to its employses. '

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 Contractor shall provide the State written notice at least fifteen
(15) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, or
other tramsfer of any interest in this Agreement. No such
assignment, delegation, or other transfer shall be. effective without
the written consent of the State. ' .

12.2 For purposes of parsgraph 12, a Change of Control shall
constitute assignment. “Change of Confrol” means (2) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliatés, becomes the direct
or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting
shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting power of the
Contractor, or {b) the sale of all or substantially all of 1he assets of
the Contractor. )

12.3 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor
withom prior written notice and consent of the Statc.

124 The State is entitled to copies of all subrontracts and

assignment agreements and shatl not be bound by any prnvigion_s
contained in a subcontract or an assignmnent agréement to which 11

is not a pariy.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall indemuify,
defend, and hold harmless the State, its officers, and employees
from and against all actions, claims, damages, demands,
judgments, fines, liabilities, losses, and other expenses, including,
without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees, arising out of or
relating to (his Agreement directly or indirectly arising from death,
personal  injury, property damege, intellectual property
infringement, or other claims asserted against the State, its officers,
or employees caused by the acts of omissions of negligence,
reckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by the Contractor, ils
employees, agents, or subconiractors. The State shall not be liable
for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising nnder this
paragraph 13, Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the State’s
sovereign immunity, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the termination
of this Agreement.

Contractor Initials élj/‘
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14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sele expense, obtain and
continnously maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor
or assignee 1o obtain and maintsin in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims of
bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 apgregate or excess;
and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Property
-sibject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the Property.

14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 4.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and endorsements approved for nse in the State of
New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued
by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire,

14.3 The Confractor shail furnish to the Contracling Officer
identified in block 1.9, or any successor; a certificate(s) of
insurance for ail insurance required under tiis Agreement. At the
request of the Contracting Officer, ar any successor, the Contractor
shall provide certificate(s) of insurance for all renewal(s) of
insurance required under.this Agreement. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thercof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference.

15, WORKERS’ COMPENSATION,

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contiactor agrees, certifics and
warrants that the Contractor is in complisiice with or exempt from,
the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A (“Workers’
Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Cantractor is subject {o the requirements of
NH. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and require
any subcontrastor or assxgnee to secure and maintain, payment of
Workers” Compensation in connection with activities which the
person proposes to undertake pursuant to this Agreement. The
Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block
1.9, or any successor, proof of Workers® Compensation in the
manyner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are incorporated
herein by reference. The State shall not be responsible for payment
of any Workers’ Compensation premiums or for any other claim or
benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of
Contractor, which might arise under applicable State of New
Hampshire Workers® Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement,

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A State’s failure to enforce its rights
with respect to any single or continuing breach of this Agreement
shall not act as a waiver of the right of the State 10 later enforce any
such rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall
be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time of
mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States Post
Office addressed to the pariies at the addresses given in blocks 1.2
and 1.4, herein,
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18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waivéd or
discharged only by ag instrument in writing signed by the parlieq
hereto and only afier approval of such amendment, waiver or
discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of the State of
New Hampshire unless no such approval is required under the
eircumstances pursuant to State Inw, nﬂe or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND TORUM )

19.1 This Agreement shall be govemned, interpreted and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of New Hampshire except
where the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The
wordiog used in this Agreement is the wording chosen by the
parlies to express their mutual intent, and no mle of construction
shall be applied against or in favor of eny party.

19.2 Any actions arising out of this Agreement, including the
breach or elleged breach thereof, may not bs submitted to binding
arbitration, bul- must, instead, be brought and maintained in the
Merrimack County Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall
have exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

20. CONFLICTING TERMS. In tlse event of a conflict between
the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any
other portion of this Agreement including any attachments theseto,
the terms of the P-37 {as modified in EXHIBIT A} shall control.

21. THIRD PARTIES. This Agreement is being enilered into for
the sole benefit of the parties hereto, and nothing herein, express or
implicd, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or rernedy of any nature upon any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings thronghout the Agreement are for
reference purposes only, and the words contained therein shall in
no way be held 1o explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpreiation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

23, SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the atiached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Confractor, along with its
agents and affiliaies, shall, at ils own cost and expense, execute any
edditional documenis and (ake such further actions as may be
reasonably required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement
and give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

25, SEVERAEBILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agresment arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
conlrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreemsnl,‘ivhich may be
executed in a number of counterparis, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constituies the entire agreement. and
understanding  between the parties, and supcrsedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter

hereof.
Contractor Initials £4 /
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS
1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

11, Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by deletmg subparagraph 3 3
in its entirety and replacmg it as follows:

3.3. Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date specified in block 1.7.
The parties may extend the Agreement for up to four (4) additional years from the
Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties, and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Appendix A ~ Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions Contractor initials ’/ ;w/

Date £ /rs /}gf{

Page 1 of 1



New Hampshire Veterans Home

Exhibit B

Scope of Services

-~

L Regulatmn and Purpose

1L The New Hampshire Veterans Home is a centified State Veterans Home (SVH) State veteran
‘homes that provide nursing home care to eligible veterans are recognized and certified by the U.S.
Department of Veterans Affairs (VA). As such, there are regulations, reqmrements and
procedures that the state veterans home mmust abide by to be in comphancc with provision of
servtces to the resxdents by the state home as follows:

111,

Specialized rehabilitation services, per 38 CFR 51.160 regulation guldance, such as but not
limited to, physical therapy, speech therapy, occupational therapy, ‘and mental health
services for mental illness are required in the resident's comprehensive plan of care, the
NH Veterans Home must provide the required services; or cbtain the required services
from an outside resource, from a provider of specialized rehabilitative services.

Radiology and other diagnostic services, per 38 CPR $1.120(n) regu[anon gL;dance
Aconrdmgly, the NH Veterans Home must provide or abtain radiology and other diagnostic

services to meet the needs of its residents. "If the state home does not provide its own

. diagnostic services, it must have an agrccment to obtain these services. The services must

meet all apphcable certification standards, statutes, and regulatlons

1.2. This contract serves as a coordinated effort between the New Hampshlre Veterans Home and
Concord Hospital - Franklin to ensure that the veterans are receiving these services.

2. Statement of Work

/

2.1. The Contractor will provide the following provision of service to the‘ residents of the New
Hampshire Veterans Home, as described in U.S. Depariment of Veterans Affalrs (VA)CFR 38
Part 51, such as, but not limited to:

2.2. Specnahzed_ Rehabilitative Services: As defined in 38 CFR 51. 160 these inchide, but are not

limited to:

- (a)
(®)
©
@
©

Concord Hospital - Franklin ~ Pagelof2 » Date _Y/ p_g: 1'52‘/

Physical 'Ihcrapy,

Speech Therapy;

Occupational Therapy; and

Mental health services for mental illness.

These services must be. provided under the written order of a physician by quelified -

- personinel.  “Qualified Pérsonnel” means a physical therapist, occupanonal therapist,
respiratory therapist, speech-language pathelogist, physician, nurse practitioner, clinicai
nurse specialist, or physician’s assistant, who is licensed or certified by the state to furnish
therapy services. Qualified personnel may also include & physxcal therap:st ass:stant (PTA),

. : :
Contractor Initials [/f /fg
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or an occupational therapy assistant (OTA) when furnishing services under the supervision

of a qualified therapist.
2.3. Radiology and other diagnostic services: “As defined in 38 CFR 51.210 (n), the Contractor

will provide radiology and other diagnostic services to meet the needs of NHVH residents.
Radiologic and other diagnostic services must be available 24 hours a day, seven days a week.

Reporting
3.1. The Contractor shall maintain records pertaining to contract activities.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide the Department with reports and/or documentation as requested
by the Department.

By signing this confract, the Contractor is aftesting to the fact that their corporafion and individuals
within their corporation have never been exchided from participating in Umted States Government
federally funded, including VA funded, programs or services.

By signing this comract the Contract is attestmg to the fact that their corporation and mdmduals thhm
their corporation are not currently excluded from participating in United States Government federally
funded, including VA funded, programs or services. :

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this contract

- may be withheld, in whole, or in pa11 in the event of noncompliance with any State or Federal law, rule

or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have not been completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Notwithstanding paragraph- 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting

encumbrances between State Fiscal Years may be made by written agreement of both parties and may
be made without fiirther approval of the Governor and Executive Couricil, if needed and justified.

Contractor Initials éz{ /{
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Method and Conditi‘ons Precedent to Pavment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37 General Prov1s1ons, Price
Limitation, Block 1.8, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of
Services.

1.1. This Agreement is one (1) of multiple Agreements that will provide Department of Veteran Affairs
{VA) required specialized rehabilitative services and radiology and other diagnostic services, to
Veteran residents, per 38 CFR part 51, when the State Veterans Home does not provide the
services in house. No maximum or minimum service volume is guaranteed. Accordingly, the price
limitation among all Agreements is identified in Form P-37, Gencral Provisions. Block 1.8, Price
Limitation. :

1.2. The State shall pay the Contractors among all agreements an amount ot to exceed $30,000 for
State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2025; $30,000 for SFY 2026; $30,000 for SFY 2027; $30,000 for SFY .
2028; and $30,000 for SFY 2029, for the services provided by the Contractors pursuant to
Exhibit B, Scope of Services, for a total contract value listed on the Form P-37, Block 1 -8, Pnce
Limitation of $150,000, with consideration for paragraph 1.1 of this Exhibit C. -

2. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services in compliance with
funding requirements.

3. The NHVH will devise a mechanism to notify the Contractor if the individual is a prevailing, basis, or
no rate individual. v

4. The Veteran residents, at New Hamps}nre Veterans Home, fall into one of three ehgﬁnhty categones
that detcrmme the Contractors billing for services rendered:

4.1. Veteran res1dents, with 0% up to 69% Service-Connected (SC) disability, for whom the
Department of Veterans Affairs pays the New Hampslnre Veterans Home a basic per diem rate:
4.1.1.  The Contractor shall first bill the resident’s insurance for services rendered.
4.1.2. Ifthere is a balance remaining, afier insurance reimburses the Contractor, the Contractor
will bill the resident.

42. Veteran residents, with 70% up to 100% SC chsabxhty, for whom the Department of Vetcrans
Affairs pays the New Hampshire Veterans Home a prevailing per diem rate:
4.2.1. The Contractor shall bill the New Hampshu-e Veterans Home for all services rendered.
422, The Contractor cannot bill the resident’s insurance for services rendered. ’

4.3. Veteran resident for whom the New Hampshire Veterans Home receives no per diem rate: -
43.1, - The Contractor shall first bill the resident’s insurance for services rendered. ,
4.3.2. . Ifthere is a balance remaining, after insurance reimburses the Contractor, the ‘

Contractor will bill the resident.

Exhibit C  Contractor Initials
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5. The Contractor will be solely responsible for billing third party payers for services rendered by the
Contractor, except for 70% SC Veterans or prevailing rate Veterans, as listed in 4.2 above. The New
Hampshire Veterans Home shall reimburse the Contractor for services rendered to SC Veterans not to
exceed the Medicare Fee Schedule, of the year in which the service is provided, for the procedure code
of the service provided. - ‘

6. The Contractor will submit an invoice to NHVH no later than 30 days after the service is rendered, per
Exhibit B, to the following: :

6.1. Email: ‘Accounts.Pavablef@nhvh.nh.gov
6.2. Mail: NH Vetérans Home o
139 Winter Street
“Tilton, NH 03276
~ ATTN: Business Office

7. NHVH has ﬁp to 30 days to pay the Contractor, per invoice submission.
8. The Contractor is responsible for paying their own license, taxes, and insurancé costs.

9. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this contract
may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any State or Federal law, rule
or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have not been completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. ) ’

10. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting amounts

between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within-the price

- limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by written

‘agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive
Council. :

Exhibit C ‘ Cohf;actorlniﬁals L/;////
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CERTIFICATION REGARDIN G DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION AND OTHER
RESPONSIBI LI'] (Y. MATT ERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply thb the provmons of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, ,

" Suspension, and Other Responsu bility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s,
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the fo]lowmg
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

. . A .

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial

of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Veterans Home (NHVH) determination whether fo enter into
this transaction, However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certifi cation or an
explanatlon shall disqualify such person from participation in this transaction.

( - .

3. The certification in this clause. isa material representaiion of fact upon which reltance was placed
when NHVH determined 1o enter-into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erronecus certification, in addition’to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, NHVH may terminate this transaction for cause or defau]t.—

4. The prospéctive primary parhclpant shall provide immediate written notice to the NHVH agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learis
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances. : '

5. The terms “covered fransaction,” “debarred » “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participaat,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “prmclpal > “proposal,”and
“voluntarily exchided,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attachied definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
- proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly ener into any lower tier covered
transaciion with a person who is debarred, suspendad, declared ineligible, or voluntarily exc]uded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by NHVH.

7. The prospective primary pamclpant farther agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary ‘Exclusion
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by NHVH, without modification, in all lower txer
covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Exhibit D — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Respbhsibi;ity Mat_ters
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10.

A parlicipant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant ina
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erronecus. A participant may
decide the method and fiequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Office of Inspector General Exclusion Database;
hitps:flexclusions.oig.bhs.gov/

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of recerds
in order to render in. good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
information of a participant is not required 1o exceed that which is normatly possessed by 2 prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings: ’

Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant ina
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person whois.
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this trapsaction, in -
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, NHVH may terminate this transaction
for cause or default. . :

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11.

12

13,

14,

The prospective primary pariicipant certifies to the best of its 'lmowledge anid belief, that it and its

principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered fransactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraid or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempiing to-obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
" transaction or a coniract under a public transaction; violation of Federal of, State antitrust .
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification, or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity:
-{Federal, Statg, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b)
of this certification; and ‘ :
11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/propasal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for canse or default.

Where the prospective primary participant is unable to cextify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal {(contract).
"LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS. .

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (coniract), the prospective lower tier participant, as -
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable tocertify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contruct).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will

Exhibit b — Certification Regarding Debquent, Suspension and Other Rgsponsibivlit'y» Matters
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include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier
covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

. Vendor Name:

v A

Name: Reboat £ éf-éfy*ﬁw'ﬂ
Title: Procidond & CE.

Exhibit D - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters
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~Exhibit E: Busmess Associates Agreement

This Business Asscciate Agreement herein, “Agreement”, effective as of this 1" day of aguagg 2024 -
herein, “Effective Date”, is entered into-by and between Concord Hospltal  Eranldin herein, “Business
Assaclate’ located at 15 Adken Ave. Frankiin. NH 03235 and State Agency, New Hamgshlrc '
Veterans Home herein, “Covered Entity” located at 139 Wmter Street. Tilton, NH 03276.

1. HIPAA. The Business Associate agrees'to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountablhty Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the Standards for Privacy and Security of
Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. :

59 D.eﬁnitions;

a. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “des1gnated record set” in 43
CER Section 164.501.

»

b. “Data Agga_-cganon shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

¢. “Health Care Operanons" shall have the same meaning s the term “health care operations” in 45
CFR Section 164,501. ; :

"d. “HIPAA” means the Health insurance Portability and Accountablhty Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191,

“Indmdual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual® in 45 CFR Section 164.501
and shall include a person who qualifies-as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR
" Section 164. 50](g)

f. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for anaCy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States Department

of Health and Human Services.

g. “Protected Health ]nfonnatmn” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or recelved by Busmess
Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. .

: h “Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45CFR
* Section 164.501. :

i. “Secretary " shall mean the Secretary of the Depariment of Health and Human Servxces or his/her

designee.
- “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected

Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

k, Other Dt:ﬁmnons All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning estahhshed
. under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time.

) USé_and Disclosure of Protected H;e#h_h Information,

Business Associate Initials r_’_’é’/j .
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(

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain, or transmit Protected Health Information
~ {PH)) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the
Agreement. Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, ofiicers,
employees, and agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would
constitute a violation of the Privacy and Secutity Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
(i) for the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
(ii) as required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
(ifi) for data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

¢. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agresment to disclose PHI to a third
party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclesure, {i) reasonable assurances
from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and uscd or further disclosed only as
required by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement
from such third party to imimediately notify Business Associate of any breaches of the confidentiality of
the PHI, to the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary te provide
services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHY in response to a request for disclosure on -
the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying Coveied Entity so that Covered Entity has an
opportunity to object to the chsclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to siich
dxsclosurc, the Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has
exhausted all :emedxes .

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound -
by additional restrictions on the uses or disclosures or secutity safeguards of PHI pursuant to the
Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such additional restrictions and
shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and shall abide by any addmonal

security safeguards.

3) Oblioz'ltidnsiand’ Activities of Business Associate.

a. Business Associate shall report to the designated Prxvacy Officer of Covered Emlty, in writing,
any use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident involving
Covered Entity data, of which it becomes aware, within two (2) business days of becommg aware of
such unauthonzed uge or-disclosure or security incident.

b. Business Associate shall use admmlsiratwe physical and technical safeguards that reasonably
and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of protected health information,
in electronic or any other form, that it creates, receives, maintains or transmits under this Agreement, in
" accordance with the Privacy and Security Rules, 1o prevent the use or disclosure of PHI other than as
penmtted by the Agreement
/
c. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and
records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the Business
Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining Covered Entity’s

compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule. »
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Exhlblt E: Busmess Assocmtes Agreement

d. Busmess Assocxate shall rcqnu‘c all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to
PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on the
“use and disclosure of PHI contamed herein, including the duty to retumn or destroy.the PHI as prowded
. under Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct third parly -
‘beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’s intended business
associates, who will be receiving PHI pursaant to this-Agreément, with rights of enforcement and
indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by standard provision #13 of this
Agreement for the purpose of nse and disclosure of protected health mformatmn '

e. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written raqucst from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books,
agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and dlsclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity,
for putposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate's comphance with the tenms
of the Agrecment

f. Within ten (1 0) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Busmess
Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity; or as directed
by Covered Entity, to an md:mdual inorder to meet the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524. -

A Wxthm ten (10) busmess days of receiving a written request from COV"red Entity foran
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the Business
Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and incorporate any such
amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obhgauons under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

h. Busmess Assomate shall documcnt such disclosures of PHI and information related to such
disclosures as would be required for Coveréd Entity to respond to a request by an individual for an
accountmg of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528. ) :

- L Within ten (1 0) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity fora requcst for

an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity such:
information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting of
dlsclosures wuh respect o PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164. 528

j- Tn the event any. mdmdual requesis access 10, amendment of, or accountmg of PHI directly from
the Business Assaciate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such request
to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to forwarded requests.
However, if forwarding the individual’s request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the'
Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall”
instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such law and notify Covered Entity of such
response as soon as practicable , '
k Wlthm ten (10) busmess days of termination of the Agreement for any reason, the Busmcss
_ Assaciate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not retain any copies
or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or destruetion is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has
been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections
of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further nses and disclosures of such PH'I ] those purposes °

" Business Assouate lmhals 57% //
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that mai.e the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains such PHI. If
Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the
Business Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the PHT has been destroyed, :

6] Obliva'tion's of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall ncmfy Business Assocjate of any changes or lmntauon(s) in its Notice of -
Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the
extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Businéss Associate of any changes in, or revocation of -
permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Asgociate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section
164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any resmcuons on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, 1o the
‘extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

{5) Term and Termination for Canse

a. Term. The Term of this Agreement shall be effective as of the Effective Date first set forth above
and shall continue in cffect until terminated hereunder. :
b. Termination by Agreement. This Agreement may be terminated at any time by mutual
agreement of the parties.
¢. Automatic Termination. This Agreement shall tenninate upon tennmatmn of the business -
‘relationship between the parties.
d. TYermination for Cause. Upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a matena] breach by Busmess
Associate, Covered Enuty may at its sole discretion:
1. Terminate this Agreemnent after providing opportunity for Business Assomate to cure the
“breach or end the violation within the time spécified by Covered Entity; or
2. Terminate this Agreement immediately if Business Associate has breached amaterial term of -
this Agreement; or '

If neither termination nor cure are feasible, Covered Entity shall report the vibla’ifionkto the Secretary.

€, Effect of Termination, -
‘If this Agreement is terminated for any reason, the Covered Entlty may s:multancously
terminate any business relationship without penalty. If there is a conflict between the -
underlying service agreement and this Agreement with respect to termination, ﬂllS Agreement
shall prevail. - -
2. Except as provided in paragraph (3) of this Section V1. E., upon termmanon of this :

Agreement for any reason, Business Associate shall return to Covered Entity or, if agreéd to
by Covered Entity, destroy all protected health information received from Covered Entity, or

- created, maintained, or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity, that the -
Business Associate maintains in any form. Business Associate shall retain no copies of the
protected health information. :

Business Associate Initials M
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3. Inthe event that Business Associate determines thai returning or destroying the protected health
information is infeasible, Business Associate shall provide to Covered Entity notification of
the conditions that make return or destruction infeasible. In such event, Business Associate
shall extend the protections of this Agreement to such protected health information and limit
further uses and disclosures of such protected health information to those purposes that make
the retum or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains such protected
health information.

4. The provisions of this Section VLE shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Repulatory References, All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shail have
the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, as amended from lime to time. A
reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to a Section in the Privacy and
Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to
amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the
changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and
state law.

¢. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with

respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.
d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any person(s)
or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which can
be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of this
Exhibit I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I reparding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agresment in section 3 k, the defense and
indemnification provisions of section 3 d and g. below, shall survive the termination of the
Agreement. :

g. Indemnification. To the extent permitted by law, each party (the “Indemnifying Party™) shall
indemnify and hold harmless the other party (the “Indemnified Party™), its officers, directors,
employees and agents, from and against, and, at the Indemnified Party’s request, defend the
Indemnificd Party against, any and all claims, damages, losses, liabilities, costs and expenses
(including reasonable attomey’s fees) arising out of or resulting from the grossly negligent or the
intentional acts or omissions of the Indemnifying Party, its employees and its agents under the
Agreement. Each Indemnified Party shall fully cooperate with the Indemnifying Party in all
mattess within the scope of this section.
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1.

CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Concord Hospital — Franklin (CH-Franklin) is a not-for-profit corporation formed to operate a licensed
hospital providing inpatient, outpatient, emergency care and physician services for residents within its
geographic region of Franklin, New Hampshire. The CH-Franklin facility was designated -a Critical
Access Hospital effective July 1, 2004, and includes 25 acute care beds. CH-Franklin also operates a 10
bed designated psychiatric receiving facility. Admitting physicians are primarily practitioners in the
local area.

 Granite Shield Insurance Exchange and Subsidiaries (GSIE) was formed on December 20, 2010, in the

State of Vermont as an industrial insured reciprocal insurance entity and unincorporated association.
GSIE commenced underwriting activities on January 1, 2011, GSIE was formed to provide healthcare
professional liability, general liability and medical stop loss insurance to its subscribers throngh GSI
Services, LLC (GSI), the attorney-in-fact. GSI was formed in the State of Vermont as a limited liability
company on December 14, 2010, and acts as an agent to enable the subscribers of GSIE to exchange -
insurance contracts. Through December 31, 2020, GSI was equally controlled by each of the subscribers
of GSIE, all of which were health systems located in the State of New Hampshire, inclusive of the
Hospital. Effective January 1, 2021, the Hospital became the sole voting member-of GSIE, resulting in
all activity of GSIE being recorded within the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

GSIE discontinued writing coverages effective October 1, 2022, and its current operations consist of
runoff claims for a previously withdrawn subscriber, as well as the current subscriber, CRHC.

Concord Hospital Insurance Group. LLC (CHIG) is a Vermont domiciled single parent captive entity -
and operates in a manner and conducts activities similar to GSIE, as described above.. CHIG began
operations in late 2022. GSIE entered into a loss portfolio transfer agreement with CHIG in September
2022, whereas GSIE would transfer all of its existing and future claims to CHIG, with the exception of
acts prior to CRHC. This transfer was completed prior to September 30, 2023. '

Concord Endoscopy Center, LLC {CEC) is a New Hampshire limited liability company that engages in
providing gastrointestinal services, including the diagnosis and treatment of digestive and liver discases.
CEC has a perpetual life and is subject to termination in certain events. CRHVC holds a majority interest
and control of CEC.

Capital Region Healthcare Services Corporation {CRHSC) is a for-profit provider of health care
services, including an eye surgery center and assisted living facility. CRHSC became a subsidiary of

* the Hospital effective October 1, 2022.

The Hospital, its subsidiaries and the Trust are collectively referred to as the System. The consolidated
financial statements include the accounts of the Hospital, the Trust, CRHCDC, CRHVC, NHC, CH- .
ACO, CH-Laconia, CH-Franklin, GSIE, CHIG, CEC and CRHSC. " All significant intercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The Hospital, the Trust, CH-Laconia
and CH-Franklin constitute the Obligated Group at September 30, 2023 and 2022 to certain debt
described in Note 7. ' v



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIA‘RvIVES ,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS"

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

.Description of Org anization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):

Principles of-Consolidation

Noncontrolling interests in less-than-wholly-owned consolidated subsidiaries of -the System are
presented as a component of total net assets to distinguish between the interests of the System and the
interests of the noncontrolling owners. Revenues, expenses and nonoperating income (loss) from these
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated amounts presented on the consolidated statements of
operations. Excess (deficiency) of revenues and nonoperating income (loss) over expenses attributable
to the System separately presents the amounts attributable to the controlling interest.

Noncontrolling Interests

Noncontrolling interests represent the portion of equity in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or -
indirectly, to a parent.- The System's accompanying consolidated financial statements include all assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses at their consolidated amounts, which 1nclude the amounts attributable
to the System and the noncontrolling interest. The System recognizes as a separate component of net
assets and earnings the portion of income or loss attributable to noncontrolhng interests based on the
portion of the entity not owned by the System.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which subject the System to credit risk consist primarily of cash equivalents,
accounts receivable and investments. The risk with respect to cash equivalents is minimized by the
System's policy of investing in financial instruments with short-term maturities issued by highly rated
financial institutions. The System's accounts receivable are primarily due from third-party: payors and
amounts are presented net of expected explicit and implicit price concessions, including estimated:
implicit price concessions from uninsured patients. The System's investment portfolio consists of
diversified investments, which are subject to market risk. The System's investment in one fund, the
Vanguard Institutional Index Fund, exceeded 10% of total System investments as of September 30, 2023
and 2022,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include money market funds with original maturities of three months or less,
excluding assets whose use is limited or restricted. The System maintains its cash in bank déposit

- accounts which, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The System has not experlenced any

losses on such accounts.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIﬁlARIES :
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Séptember 30, 2023 and 2022
‘(In thousands)

Description of Orggpizatioﬁ_;and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies g'Cohtinued;)f
Supplies

/ '
Supplies are carried at the lower of cost, determined on a weighted-average method, or net realizable
value.

Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted

Assets whose use is limited or restricted include assets held by trustees for insurance reserves, escrows,
construction funds, designated assets set aside by the Board of Trustees (over which the Board retains
control and may, at its discretion, subsequently use for other purposes), and denor-restricted investments.

Investments and Investment Income. ‘gLoss)}

Investments are-carried at fair value in the accompanyxng consohdated balance sheets. . Investment
income (loss) (mcludmg realized gains and losses on investments, interest and dividends) and the net
change in unrealized gains and losses on investments are included in the excess (deficiency) of revenues
and ronoperating income (loss) over expenses in the accompanying consolidated s:atements of
operations, unless the income or loss is restricted by donor or law.

Bené'ﬁcial Interest in Pei‘g‘ vetual Trusts

The System has an m-evocable right to receive income earned on certain trust assets established for its
benefit. Distributions received by the System are without donor restrictions. The System's interest in
the fair value of the trust assets is included in assets whose use is limited or restricted and as net assets
with donor restrictions. Changes in the fair value of beneficial trust assets are repoﬁed as increases or
decreases to net assets with donor restrictions.

Investment Policies

The System's mvestment policies provxde guidance for the prudent and skillful management of invested
assets with the objective of preserving capital and maximizing returns. The invested assets include
endowment, specific purpose and board designated funds.

Endowment funds are identified as perpetual in nature, intended to provide support for current or future
operations and other purposes identified by the donor. These funds are managed with disciplined longer-
term investment objectives and strategies designed to accommodate relevant, reasonable, or probable
events,

Specific purpose funds are temporary in nature, restricted as to time Of purpose as identified by the donor
or grantor. These funds have various intermediate/long-term time horizons associated with specific
identified spending objectives.

Board designated funds have various intermediate/long-term time horizons associated with specific
spending objectives as determined by the Board of Trustees. ‘
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Description of Or,'g‘anizétion and Summary

of Si"rhificant Accounting Policiesi Continued)

Management of these assets is designed to increase, with minimum risk, the mﬂat1on ad_]usted principal
and income of the endowment funds over the long term. The System targets a diversified asset allocation
that places emphasis on achieving its long-term return objectives within prudent risk constraints.

Spending Polic_v*fbr Appropriation of Assets fbr,Expenditure.

In accordance with the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), the System
considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted
endowment funds: (a) the duration and preservation of the fund; (b) the purpose of the organization and
the donor-restricted endowment fund; (c) general economic - conditions; (d) the possible effect of
inflation and deflation; (e) the expected total retursi from income and the appreciation of investments;
(f) other resources of the organization; and (g) the investment policies of the organization.

Spending policies may be adopted by the System, from time to time, to provide a stream of funding for
the support of key programs. The spending policies are structured in a manner to ensure that the
purchasing power of the assets is maintained while providing the desired level of annual funding to the .
programs. The System has a current speriding policy on various funds currently equivalent to 5% of
twelve-quarter moving average of the funds' total market value. ‘

dccounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable for which the unconditional right to payment exists are receivables if the
right to.consideration is unconditional and only the passage of time is required before payment of that -
consideration is due. Accounts receivable at September 30, 2023 and 2022 reflect the fact that any
estimated uncollectible amounts are generally considered implicit price concessions that are a-direct
reduction to accounts receivable rather than allowance for doubtful accounts. At September 30, 2023
and 2022, estimated implicit price concessions of $26,391 and $29,203, respectively, had been recorded
as reductions to accounts receivable balances to enable the System to record revenues and accounts
receivable at the estimated amounts expected to collected.

Accounts receivable as of September 30 2023, 2022 and 2021 are $91,318, $110, 525 and $94 720 '
respectively. :

Property and Eguipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost at time-of purchase, or at fair value at time of donation for assets
contributed, less any reductions in carrying value for impairment and less accumulated depreciation.
The System s policy is to capitalize expenditures for major improvements and charge maintenance and -
repairs currently for expenditures which do not extend the lives of the related assets. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method in a manner intended to amortize the cost of the related assets
over their estimated useful lives. For the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, depreciation
expense was $27,291 and $28,953, respectively.

The System has also capitalized certain costs associated with property and equipment not yet in service.
Construction in progress includes amounts incurred related to major construction projects, other
renovations, and other capital equipment purchased but not yet placed in service. There was no interest
expense capltallzed dunng 2023 or 2022, :
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
~ NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Description of Qg'ganizationxand Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued

Gifts of long-lived assets such as land, buildings or equipment are reported as support without donor
restrictions, and are excluded from the excess (deficiency) of revenues and nonoperating income (loss)
over expenses, unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of
long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used, and gifts of cash or
other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets, are reported as support with donor restrictions.
Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must be maintained,
expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed
in service. '

Intang ‘ib]e Assets

The System reviews its intangible and other long-lived assets annually to determine whether the carrying
amount of such assets is impaired. Upon determination that an impairment has occutred, these assets
are reduced to fair value. There were no impairments recorded for the years ended September 30, 2023
or 2022.

Intangible assets are included within other noncurrent assets in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortizable intangible asseéts consist of the following at
September 30:

023 2022
Cost - § 8,556 § 8,556
Accumulated amortization (2.140) (1.284)
Amortizable intangible assets, net v %6416 $_7272

Amortization expense was $856 during the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022 and is recorded
within other nonoperating expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Expected amortization of intangible assets through their useful lives is as follows: '

2024 $ 856
2025 - 856
2026 856
2027 ’ 856
2028 856
Thereafter - 2,136

$.6416

Federal Grant Revenue and Expenditures

Revenues and expenses under federal grant programs are recognized as the grant expenditures are
incurred.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Description of Organization and Suramary of Si¢nificant Accounting Policies (Continued)

’Bo;_zd Issuance Costs/Original Issue Discount or Premium

Bond issuance costs incurred to obtain financing for construction and rénovation projects and the original
issue discount or premium are amortized to interest expense using the straight-line method, which
approximates the effective interest method, over the life of the respective bonds. The original issue
discount or premium and bond issuance costs are presented as a component of bonds payable. -

The System provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy without
charge or at amounts less than its established rates (Note 12). Because the System does not pursue
collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as révenue. The System
uses an industry standard approach in calculating the costs associated with providing charity care. Funds
received from gifts and grants to subsidize charity services provided for the years ended September 30,
2023 and 2022 were approximately $130 and $133, respectively.

. Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Gifts are reported as restricted support if ihey are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of
donated assets. Donated investments, supplies and equipment are reported at fair value at the date of
receipt. Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported .at fair value at the date of
receipt of the promise. When a donor restriction expires (when a stipulated time restriction ends or
purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets
without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of operations as either net assets released from
restrictions for operations (for noncapital related items) or as net assets released from restrictions used
for purchases of property and equipment (capital related items). Some net assets with donor restrictions
have been restricted by donors to be maintained by the System in perpetuity.

Patient Service Revenue

Revenues generally relate to contracts with patients in which the System's performance obligations are
to provide health care services to patients. Revenues are recorded during the perlod obligations to
provide health care services are satisfied. Performance obligations for mpanent services are generally
satisfied over a period of days. Performance obligations for outpatlent services are generally satisfied
over a period of less than one day. The contractual relationships with patients, in most cases, also involve
a thlrd-party payor (Medicare, Medicaid, managed care -health plans and commercial insurance
companies, including plans offered through the health insurance exchanges) and the transaction prices
for the services provided are dependent upon the terms provided by Medicare and Medicaid or negotiated
with managed care health plans and commercial insurance companies, the third-party payors. The
payment arrangements with third-party payors for the services provided to related patients typically
specify payments at amounts less than standard charges. Medicare generally pays for inpatient and
outpatient services at prospectively determined rates based on clinical, diagnostic and other factors.
Services provided to patients having Medicaid coverage are generally paid at prospectively determined
rates per discharge, per identified service or per covered member. Agreements with commercial
insurance carriers, managed care and preferred provider organizations generally provide for payments
based upon predetermined rates per diagnosis, per diem rates or discounted fee-for-service rates.
Management continually reviews the revenue recognition process to consider and incorporate updates
to laws and regulations and the frequent changes in managed care contractual terms resulting from
contract renegotiations and renewals.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022

{(In thousands)
1. Description of Organization and Su_m‘m‘gr'y»qf Significant Accounting Policies. Continued)

The collection of outstanding receivables for Medicare, Medicaid, managed care paylers, other third-
party payors and patients is the System's primary source of cash and is critical to its operating
performance. The primary collection risks relate to uninsured patient accounts, including patient
accounts for which the primary insurance carrier has paid the amounts covered by the applicable
agreement, but patient responsibility amounts (deductibles and copayments) ‘remain outstanding.
Implicit price concessions relate primarily to amounts due directly from patients. Estimated implicit
price concessions are recorded for all uninsured accounts, regardless of the aging of those accounts.
Accounts are written off when all reasonable internal and external collection efforts have been
performed. The estimates for implicit price concessions are based upon management’s assessment of
historical write-offs and expected net collections, business and economic conditions, trends in federal,
state and private employer health care coverage and other collection indicators. Management relies on
the results of detailed reviews of historical write-offs and collections at facilities that represent a majority
of hospital revenues and accounts receivable (the "hindsight analysis") as a primary source of
information in estimating the collectability of accounts receivable. Management performs the hindsight
analysis regularly, utilizing rolling twelve-months accounts receivable collection and write-off data.
Management belicves its regular updates to the estimated implicit price concession amounts provide
reasonable estimates of revenues and valuations of accounts receivable. These routine, regular changes
in estimates have not resulted in material adjustments to the valuations of accounts receivable or period-
to-period comparisons of operations. :

The System receives payment for other Medicaid outpatient services on a reasonable cost basis which
are settled with' retroactive adjustments upon completion and audit of related cost finding reports.
Differences between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be
recoverable or payable are included in patient service revenues in the year that such amounts become
known. For the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, patient service revenue in the accompanying -
consolidated statements of operations increased by approximately $4,700 and $5,100, respectively, due
to actual settlements and changes in assumptions underlying estimated future third-party settlements.

Revenues from the Medicare and Medicaid programs accounted for approximately 40% and 5% and
39% and 6% of the System's patient service revenue for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022,
respectively. Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and
subject to interpretation. '

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Nonq;z_erdtin g Income (Loss) Over Expenses

The System has deemed all activities as ongoing, major or central to the provision of health care services
and, accordingly, they are reported as operating revenue and expenses, except for contributions and
pledges without donor restrictions, the related philanthropy expenses and investment income which are
recorded as nonoperating income (loss). .
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES ,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The consolidated statements of operations also include excess (deficiency) of revenues and nonoperating
income (loss) over expenses. Changes in net assets without donor restrictions which are excluded from
excess (deficiency) of revenues and nonoperating income (loss) over expenses, consistent with industry
practice, include the permanent transfers of assets to and from affiliates for other than goods and services,
pension adjustments and contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired using contributions
which by donor restriction were to be used for the purposes of acquiring such assets). '

Estima;gd_ Workers’ Compensation, Malpractice.and -ﬂeqlth;_qu*'e Claims

The provision for estimated workers' compensation, malpractice and health care claims .includes
estimates of the ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not reported.

Functional Expense Allocation

The costs of providing program services and other activities have been summarized ona functional basis
in Note 11. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among program services and supporting services
benefitted. ‘ ‘

Income Taxes

The Hospital, CH-Laconia, CH-Franklin, CRHCDC, CRHVC, and the Trust are not-for-profit
corporations as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, and are exempt from
federal income taxes on related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. NHC was organized as
a single member limited liability company and has elected to be treated as a disregarded entity for federal
and state income tax reporting purposes. Accordingly, all income or losses and applicable tax credits
are reported on the member's income tax returns, with the exception of taxes due to the State of New
Hampshire. Management evaluated the System's tax positions and concluded the System has maintained
its tax-exempt status, does not have any significant unrelated business income and had taken no uncertain
tax positions that require adjustment to or disclosure in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements. GSIE, CHIG, NHC, CH-ACO, CEC and CRHSC account for income taxes in accordance
with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 740, -
Income Taxes. FASB ASC 740 is an asset and liability method, which requires the recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences
between the tax and financial reporting basis of certain assets and liabilities. Resulting income tax
expense and the temporary differences between the tax and financial reporting basis are not material.

Advertising Costs

The System expensés advertising costs as incurred, and such costs totaled $247 and $168 for the years
ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES'
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued
Leases

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) 2016-02, Leases. The standard, including subsequently issued amendments, collectively
referred to as Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 842, Leases, established the principles that
lessees and lessors will apply to report useful information to users of financial statements about the
amount, timing and uncertainty of cash flows arising from a lease. ASC 842-did not have a significant
impact on lessor accounting. The System adopted this standard using the modified retrospective
transition approach as applied to leases existing as of or entered into after the adoption date (October 1,
2022) in fiscal year 2023. See Note 16 for a discussion of the System's adoption of this standard and its
impact on the consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

At the inception of an arrangement, the System determines whether the arrangement is, or contains, a
lease based on the unique facts and circumstances present in the arrangement. A lease is a contract, or
part of a contract, that conveys the right to control the use of identified property or equipment (an
identified asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The System determines if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified assct for a period of time. The System assesses’
throughout the period of use whether the System has both of the following: (1) the right- to.obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset, and (2) the right to direct the
use of the identified asset. This determination is reassessed if the terms of the contract are changed.

Leases are classified as operating or finance leases based on the terms of the lease agreement and certain
characteristics of the identified asset. Leases with a term greater than one year are recognized on the
balance sheet as right-of-use assets and lease obligations, as applicable.

The interest rate implicit in lease contracts is typically not readily determinable. As a result, the System
has elected to utilize a risk-free rate as the rate to discount lease payments.

Lease liabilities are initially recorded based on the present value of lease payments over the expected
remaining lease term. Lease payments are comprised of fixed and in-substance fixed contract
consideration. The System has made a policy election not to separate lease components, nonlease
components, and noncomponents. The right-of-use asset is based on the lease liability, adjusted for
certain items such as lease prepayments or lease incentives received. Finance lease assets are amortized
on a straight-line basis, with interest costs reported separately, over the lesser of the useful life of the
leased asset or lease term. Operating lease expense is recognized on a straight-line basis, Variable lease
payments are expensed as incurred. '

The System assesses at the commencement of a lease any options to extend or terminate the lease
agreement, and will include in the lease term any extensions or renewals which it determines it is
reasonably certain to exercise. ‘Assumptions made at the lease commencement date are re-evaluated
upon the occurrence of certain events, including a lease modification. A lease modification resultsin a
separate contract when the modification grants the lessee an additional right-of-use not included in the
original lease and when lease payments increase commensurate with the standalone price for the
additional right-of-use. When a lease modification results in a separate contract, it is accounted for in
the same manner as a new lease.

17



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES -
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September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accrountin"g‘,Policie's (Continued)

* Risks and Uncertainties

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of coronavirus (COVID-19)
a pandennc The COVID-19 pandemic has significantly affected employees, patients, systems,
communities and business operations, as well as the U.S. economy and financial markets. Since the
declaration of the pandemic, the System has received approximately $57,885 of accelerated Medicare
payments (see Note 6), approximately $30,668 related to the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic
Security Act (CARES Act) Provider Relief Funds (PRF) and approximately $8,800 in rural payments
related to the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA). Distributions from the PRF and ARPA are not subject
to repayment, provided the System is able to attest to and comply with the terms and conditions of the
funding, including demonstrating that the distributions received have been used for healthcare-related -
expenses or lost revenue attributable to COVID-19. Such payments are accounted for as government
grénts, and are recognized on a systematic and rational basis as other income once there is reasonable
assurance that the applicable terms and conditions required to retain the funds will be met. Based on‘an
analysis of the compliance and reporting requirements of the PRF and ARPA and the impact of the
pandemic on operating results through September 30, 2022, the System recognized approxnnately
$10,000 related to PRF and ARPA, and these payments were recorded within other revenue in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations for the year ended September 30, 2022. No
amounts related to PRF or ARPA were recognized within other revenues during.the year ended
September 30, 2023. The remaining funds were recognized within other revenues during previous years.

The CARES Act also provides for a deferral of payments of the employer portion of payroll tax incurred
during the pandemic, allowing half of such payroll taxes to be deferred until December 2021, and the
remaining half until December 2022, At September 30, 2022, the System had deferred balances of
payroll taxes totaling $4,646 which were recorded within accrued compensation and related expenses on
the accompanying 2022 consolidated balance sheet. Amounts were fully repaid during the year ended
September 30, 2023.

The System will continue to monitor compliance with the terms and conditions of the PRF, ARPA and

. other potential assistance programs and available grants, and the impact of the pandemic on revenues -
and expenses. If the System is unable to attest to or comply with current or future terms and conditions,
the System's ability to retain some or all of the distributions received may be impacted.

Reclassifications

Certain 2022 amounts have been reclassified to. permit comparison with the 2023 consolidated financial
statements presentation format.

Subsequent Events

' Management of the System evaluated events occurring between the end of the System's ﬁscal year and-
December 8§, 2023, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be 1ssued
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
'NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 'k

September 30, 2023 and 2022
{In thousands)

Transactions With Affiliates

The System provides funds to CRHC and its affiliates which are used for a variety of purposes The
System records the transfer of funds to CRHC and the other affiliates as either receivables or directly
against net assets, depending on the intended use and repayment requirements of the funds. Generally,
funds transferred for start-up costs of new ventures or capital related expend1tures are recorded as
charges against net assets. For the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, transfers received from
affiliates were $97 and $343, respectively. :

Amounts due the System, primarily from joint ventures, totaled $1,910 and $1,632 at September 30,
2023 and 2022, respectively. Amounts have been classified as current or long-term depending on the
intentions of the parties involved. Beginning in 1999, the Hospital began charging interest on a portion
of the receivables ($467 and $533 at September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively) with principal and
interest (6.75% at September 30, 2023) payments due monthly. Interest income amounted to $34 and
$52 for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. ,

A brief description of CRHC's affiliated entities isras\ follows:

. Gra iite VNA (formerly Concord Regional Vlsltmg Nurse Association, Inc. and Subs1d1ary) prowdes
home hea]th care services.

. Rlverbend Community Mental Health, Inc. provides behavioral health services.
, \ _ 7

Contributions to affiliates and other community brganjzafions from net assets w1th donor restrictions
were $302 and $243 in 2023 and 2022, respectively, '

Financial Assets and Li"guidiﬁzu Resources

F1nanc1al assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, such as
operating expenses, scheduled principal payments on debt, and capital construction costs, consisted of
the follomng at September 30, 2023:

Cash and cash equivalénts S $ 79,917

Short-term investments 46,394
Accounts receivable 91,318

Funds held by trustee for insurance reserves, : ’
debt service and construction costs : 18.380
$236.009



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDi'ARIES '
NOTES TO CONSOL‘IDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

" Financial Assets and Liguidity Resources {Continued)

To manage liquidity, the System maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalent balances to support daily
operations throughout the year. Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments include bank
deposits, money market funds, and other similar vehicles that generate a return on cash and provide daily
liquidity to the System. In addition, the System has board-de51gnated assets without donor restrictions
that can be utilized at the discretion of management to help fund both operanonal needs and/or cap1ta1
projects. As of September 30, 2023, the balance of liquid investments in board designated assets was
'$343,827.

Investments and Assets Whose Use s Limlted or Restncted

Short-term investments totaling $46, 394 and $15,322 at September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectwely, are
comprised primarily of cash and cash equivalents. Assets whose-use is limited or restncted are carrled .
at fair value and consist of the following at September 30:

2023 | 022

“Board designated funds: - ,

- Cashand cash equivalents » $ 25295 § 2,771
Fixed income securities . 22,124 - 21,839
Marketable equity and other securities B 326,500 301,116
Inflation-protected securities 14,386 14,332

/388,305 340,058

Held by trustee for workers' compensation reserves:

Fixed income securities ) ’ 2967 2,501
Self-insurance escrows and construction funds: 3 :

Cash and cash equivalents : 1,255 - 8,648

Fixed income securities & - 13,357 24,074

Marketable equity securities 17.381 14,895

-31,993 47,617

Donor-restricted funds and restricted grants:

Cash and cash equivalents ' 5,857 7,553
Fixed income securities ) 1,372 1,606
Marketable equity securities 24,965 23,001
Inflation-protected securities . 1,100 1,020
Trust funds administered by others 10,208 9,836
Other 592 408
44004 43,514
$467,359 $433.690-

Included in marketable equity and other securities above are $205,295 and $203,040 at Séptember 30,
2023 and 2022, respectively, in so called alternative investments and collective trust funds. See also
Note 15.
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September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted {Continued)

Investment income (loss), net realized gains and losses and net unrealized gains and losses on assets
whose use is limited or restricted, cash and cash equivalents, and other investments are as follows at
September 30:

2023 2022
Net assets without donor restrictions: i
Interest and dividends $ 7,94 §$ 7,099
Investment income from trust funds administered by others 541 599
Net realized gains on sales of investments 5383 = 4,079
Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 37459 (61:177)

51,287  (49,400)

Net assets with donor restrictions: ‘ ;
Interest and dividends 432 465

Net realized gains on sales of investments 395 608
Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 3.209 (7.501)
' 4,036 _(6.428)

$55323 $.55,828)

In compliance with the System's spending policy, portions of investment income and related fees are
recognized in other operating revenue on the accompanying consolidated statements of opefations.
Investment income reflected in other operating revenue was $1,767 and $2,300 in 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

" Investment management fees expensed and reflected in investment income (loss) and other were $857

and $922 for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Retire;mgntP,blans

The System sponsors a defined contribution plan qualified under Section 403(b) of the U.S. Internal
Revenue Code (IRC) covering eligible employees of the System. Participants are allowed to make pre-
tax or post-tax Roth 403(b) contributions, or a combination of the two. The System does not make
matching contributions., Effective January 1, 2024, the System elected to amend this plan to institute
employer nonelective and matching contributions, based on certain eligibility requirements, as well as
implementing an automatic deferral arrangement equal to 3% of eligible compensation, as further defined
in the amendment. : :

‘The System sponsors two noncontributory defined benefit retirement plans (the Retirement Plan for

Employees of Concord Hospital (CH Plan) and the Retirement Plan for Employees of Concord Hospital —
Laconia (CH-Laconia Plan)), (collectively, the Plans), which cover substantially all employees of the
System. The Plans provide benefits based on an employee's years of service, age and compensation over
those years. The System's funding policy for the plans is to contribute anmually the amount needed to
meet or exceed. actuarially determined minimum funding requirements of the Employee Retirement .
Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA).
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' Retirement Plans {Continued)

The System accounts for its defined benefit pension plans under ASC 715, Compensation Retirement
~ Benefits, which requires entities to recognize an asset or liability for the overfunded or underfunded
status of their benefit plans in their financial statements.

On September 26, 2022, the Plans were amended to offer certain participants age 62 and older the option
to receive a lump-sum distribution as payment for grandfathered benefits. The eligible pamelpants had
180 days to elect this benefit, beginning October 1, 2022.

During fiscal year 2022, the CH-Laconia Plan incurred a settlement charge due to lump sums paid in
excess of the settlement threshold for the Plan year. The settlement charge totaled $450 and is reflected
as a component of net periodic benefit gain, other than service cost.

On October 24, 2022, the Board of Trustees approved a merger of the CH Plan into the CH-Laconia
Plan. The merger of the Plans was effective December 31, 2022 and the surviving plan was named the
Retirement Plan for Employees of Concord Hospital (Concord Hospital Plan).

Effective Jaﬁuary] 2024, the Board of Trustees elected to amend the Concord Hospital Plan to
discontinue future participation in the Plan by any emplcyees who are hired or rehired after
December 31, 2023, as further defined in the amendment.

The following table summarizes the Plans’ funded status at September 30:

2023 2022

Funded status:
Fair value of plan assets $ 343,471 $ 319,496
Projected benefit obligation (319.529) (329477
Activities for the year consist of:
Benefit payments and administrative
expenses paid $ 33965 $ 19,314
Net periodic benefit cost - 8,565 15,198

The table below presents details about the Plans, including the funded status, coniponents of net periodic
benefit cost, and certain assumptions used in determining the funded status and cost:

2023 2022

Change in benefit obligation: -

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year $329,477 $392,275

Service cost 13,298 . 16,519

Interest cost 18,596 13,217

Actuarial gain (7,877)  (69,169)

Benefit payments and administrative expenses paid (33,965) (19,313)

Settlements and plan amendments - (4,052)
Projected benefit obligation at end of year $319,529 $329477
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{(In thousands)

Retiréméi_nt Plans (Continued)

023 2022

Chénge in plan assets: :
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $319,496 $375,094
- Actual gain (loss) on plan assets o 41,940  (59,286)
Employer contributions 16,000 27,900
Benefit payments and administrative expenses © (33,965) (19,313)
Settlements - (4.899)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year . $343.471 $319.496:
Funded status and amount recognized in ’ '
noncurrent assets (liabilities) at September 30 $_23,042 $_(9.981)

Amounts recognized as a change in net assets without donor resmctlons during the years ended
September 30, 2023-and 2022 consist of:’

2003 - 2022

Net actuarial (gain) loss ’ $(23,273) '§ 15,858
Net amortized loss - (3,372)  (10,149)
Prior service credit amortization : 156 243
Impact of settlement _ - ___(450)
Total amount recognized $(26.489) §_5.502

Pension Plan Assets

The fair values of the Plans' assets as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, by asset category are as follows
(see Note 15 for level definitions). In accordance with ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements, certain
investments that are measured using the net value per share practical expedient have not been classified
in the fair value hierarchy.

Short-term investments (Level 1): ' :
Money market funds ' $ 12,804 $ 4,114
Equity securities (Level 1): ,
Mutual funds — domestic , 145,825 115,233
Mutual funds — international = 10,302
Mutual funds — inflation hedge 12,946 12,909
Fixed income securities (Level 1): . _
Mutual funds ~ fixed income ' - _37.877  _45965

209,452 188,523
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‘(In thousands)
Reﬁrem»ent Plans (Continued)
\ 2023 202
Funds measured at net asset value: ’
Equity securities: '
" Funds-of-funds $ 81,170 §$ 81,961
Collective trust funds; )
Equities . 46,327 - 40,727
Fixed income 6.522 8.285
! 52,849 49,012
Total investments at fair value ' \ $343.471 $319.496

The Concord Hospital Plan's target asset policy guidelines include total short-term investments between
0% and 20%, total equity securities between 40%-80%, total fixed income securities between 5% and
80%, and other strategies between 0% and 30%. The CH Plan's target asset policy guidelines, prior to
the merger of the Plans described above, included total short-term investments between 0% and 20%,
total equity securities between 40%-80%, total fixed income securities between 5% and 80%, and other
strategies between 0% and 30%. The CH-Laconia Plan's target asset policy guidelines, prior to the
merger of the-Plans described above, included total equity securities of 50% and total fixed income .
securities of 50%.

The Plans' asset allocations by asset category are as follows as of September 30:

023 2022
Short-term investments ' : 4% 1%
Equity securities ; ' 70% 69%
Fixed income securities 13% 17%
Other : A | O 13%  13%

The funds-of-funds in the Concord Hospital Plan are invested with various investment managers and
have various restrictions on redemptions. One manager holding amounts totaling approximately
$19 million at September 30, 2023 allows foi semi-monthly redemptions, with 5 days' notice. One
‘manager holding approximately $9 million at September 30, 2023 allows for monthly redemptions, with
15 days' notice. Four managers holding amounts totaling approximately $34 million at September 30,
2023 allow for quatterly redemptions, with notices ranging from 45 to 65 days. Two managers holding
amounts totaling approximately $16 million at September 30, 2023 allow for annual redemptions, with
notices ranging from 60 to 90 days. One manager holding amounts totaling approximately $3 million at
September 30, 2023 allow for redemptions on a semi-annual basis, with a notice of 60 days. The
collective trust funds allow for daily, weekly or monthly redemptions, with notices ranging from 6 to 10

" days. Certain funds also may include a fee estimated to be equal to the cost the fund incurs in converting
investments to cash, limit the percent of the investment that can be redeemed each redemption period,
or are subject to certain lock periods. :

The System considers various factors in estimating the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets.
Among the factors considered include the historical long-term returns on plan assets, the current and
‘expected allocation of plan assets, input from the System's actuaries and investment consultants, and
long-term inflation assumptions' The System's expected allocation of plan assets is based on a
diversified portfolio consisting of domestic and international equity securities, fixed income securities,
and real estate.
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(In thousands)

Retirement Plans (Continued)

The System's investment policy for its pension plans is to balance risk and returns using a diversified
portfolio consisting primarily of high quality equity and fixed income securities. To accomplish this
goal, plan assets are actively managed by outside investment managers with the objective of optimizing
long-term return while maintaining a high standard of portfolio quality and proper diversification. The
System monitors the maturities of fixed income securities so that there is sufficient liquidity to meet
current benefit payment obligations. The System's Investment Committee provides oversight of the
Plans' investments and the performance of the investment managers.

Amounts included in expense consist of the following for the years ended September 30:

2023 ° 2022

Components of net periodic benefit cost:

Service cost $ 13,298 § 16,519

Interest cost _ 18,596 13,217

Expected return on plan assets (26,545) (24,894)

Ammortization of prior service credit and loss 3,216 9,906

Settlements . - 450
Net periodic benefit cost $_8.565 §_15198

The accumulated benefit obligation for the Plans at September 20, 2023 and 2022 was $3v13,5.>62 and
$315,168, respectively. v

2023 - 2022

Weighted average assumptions to determine benefit obligation:

Discount rate 6.11% 5.63%

Rate of compensation increase 3.00% 3.00%
Weighted average. assumptions to determine net periodic benefit cost: A

Discount rate . 5.63% - 3.33%

Expected return on plan assets 7.60% 6.50% - 7.75%

Cash balance credit rate 3.00% - 5.00% 5.00%

Rate of compensation increase 3.00% 2.50% - 3.00%

In selecting the long-term rate of return on plan assets, the System considered the average rate of earnings
expected on the funds invested or to be invested to provide for the benefits of the plans. This included
considering the plans' asset allocation and the expected returns likely to be earned over the life of the
plans, as well as the historical returns on the types of assets held and the current economic environment.

The System funds the pension plans and no contributions are made by employees. The System funds
the plans annually by making a contribution of at least the minimum amount required by applicable
regulations and as recommended by the System's actuary. However, the System may also fund the plans
in excess of the minimum required amount. :
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Retirement Plans {Continued)

© Cash contributions in subsequent years will depend on a number of factors including pexforménce of

plan assets. However, the System expects to fund $16,000 in cash contributions to the Concord Hospital
Plan in 2024, ’

Beneﬁt payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be pald as
follows:

Year Ended September 30

2024 ' : . $ 27,172
2025 24,447
2026 - 26,747
-2027 28,696
2028 28,774
2029 - 2033 _ 147,475

Estlmated Thlrd-Par 3 Pa"or Settlements

The System has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the System at amounts
different from its established rates. A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party
payors follows: ‘

Medicare

Inpatient and outpatient. services rendered to Medicare program beneﬁcmnes are primarily paid at
prospectively determined rates. These rates vary according to a patient classification system that is
based on clinical diagnosis and other factors. In addition to this, the System is also reimbursed for
medical education and other items which require cost settlement and retrospective review by the fiscal
intermediary. Accordingly, the System files an annual cost report with the Medicare program after the -
completion of each fiscal year to report activity applicable to the Medicare program and to detennme
any final settlements. :

~ The physician practices are reimbursed on a fee schedule basis.

Medicaid Enhancement Tax and Disvrop‘ortionate Share Payment

. Under the State of New Hampshire's (the State) tax code, the State imposes a Medicaid Enhancement
“Tax (MET) equal to 5.40% of net patient service revenues in .State fiscal years-2023 and 2022. The

amount of tax incurred by the System for 2023 and 2022 was $32,647-and $32,035, respectlvely

In the fall of 2010, in order to remain in compliance with stated federal regulations, the State of New
Hampshire adopted a new approach related to Medicaid disproportionate share funding (DSH)
retroactive to July 1, 2010. Unlike the former funding method, the State's approach led to a payment
that'was not directly based on, and did not equate to, the level of tax imposed.- As a result, the legislation
created some level of losses at certain New Hampshire hospitals, while other hospitals realized gains.
DSH payments from the State are recorded within revenue without donor restrictions and other support

and amounted to $30,212 in 2023 and $29,744 in 2022, net of reserves referenced below.
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Estimated Thilzd;-Pg_rxyr. Payor Settlements {Continued)

The Centers for Medicare and Medxcald Services (CMS) has completed audits of the State's program
and the disproportionate share payments made by the State from 2011 to 2019, the first years that those
payments reflected the amount of uncompensated care provided by New Hampshire hospitals.. It is

- possible that subsequent years will also be audited by CMS. The System has recorded reserves to address

its potential exposure based on the audit results to date or any future redlstnbutlons

Subsequent to year end, the Hosp1ta1 ﬁled suit against the NH Department of Health-and Human Services
over their plan for the redistribution of DSH payments from 2011 to 2017 All amounts related to the
redistribution plan have been fully reserved for as of September 30, 2023.

. Medicaid
Inpatxent services rendered to Medicaid program beneﬁmanes are paid at prospectwe]y determined rates

per discharge. Outpatient services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries are reimbursed under
fee schedules and cost reimbursement methodologies subject to various limitations or discounts. The

System is reimbursed at a téntative rate with final settlement determined after submlssmn of annual cost

reports by the System and audits thereof by the Medicaid program.
The physician practices are reimbursed on a fee schedule basis.
Other

The System has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers and
health maintenance organizations. The basis for payment to the System under these agreements includes’
prospectively determined rates per discharge, discounts from established charges, fee schedules and
prospectively determined rates.
The accrual for estimated third-party payor settlements reflected on the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets represents the estimated net amounts to be paid under reimbursement contracts with the
" Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (Medicare), the New Hampshire Department of Welfare
(Medicaid) and any commercial payors with settlement provision. Settlements for the Hospital have
been finalized through 2018 for Medicare and 2017 for Medicaid. Settlements for CH-Laconia have
been finalized through 2019 for Medicare and Medicaid. Settlements for CH-Franklin have been
' finalized through 2021 for Medicare and 2019 for Medicaid. .

During fiscal year 2020, the System requested accelerated Medicare payments as provxded for in the
-CARES Act, which allowed for eligible health care facilities to request up to six months of advance
Medicare payments for acute care hospitals or up to three months of advance Medicare payments for
other health care providers. One year from the date of receipt of the advance payments (beginning April
2021) 25% of the advances were recouped in the first eleven months. An additional 25% of the advances
were recouped in the next six months, with the entire amount repayable in 29 months. Any outstanding
balance after 29 months was repayable at a 4% intetest rate. During the third quarter of fiscal 2020, the
System received $57,885 from these accelerated Medicare payment requests. At September 30, 2022,
the current portion due within a year, totaling $248 was recorded under the caption "accrual for estimated
third-party payor settlements” in the accompanying 2022 balance sheet. Amounts were repaid in full
during the year ended September 30, 2023.

27



CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Long:-Term Debt
Long-term debt consists of the'followiﬁg at September 30, 2023 and 2022:

2023

[\l
>
3]

New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority (NHHEFA)
Revenue bonds, Concord Hospital Issue, Series 2021A; interest
ranging from 3.0% to 5.0% per year and principal payable in
annual installments ranging from $1,685 to $3,095 through
October 2042, including unamortized original issue premium : '
of $6,219 in 2023 and $6,950 in 2022 $ 46,280 § 48,610
2020A note payable to a bank, due October 1, 2026, interest at 1.57% -

per annum, payable in monthly and annual principal payments :
~ ranging from $2,469 to $2,580 ‘ 10,093 12,520
2020B note payable to a bank, due October 1, 2035 (lender has the ' ‘ o

option to extend the maturity date through October 1, 2043), interest

at 2.26% per annum, payable in monthly and annual principal

payments ranging from $991 to $2,942 beginning October 2023.

Final balloon payment of $10,157 due Octoker 1, 2035, if the

maturity date is not extended by the lender. This note converted into

tax-exempt revenue bonds effective July 6, 2022. As a result of the : -

conversion, the interest rate was reduced to 1.84% ©36,582 36,582
NHHEFA Revenue Bonds, Concord Hospital Issue, Series 2017; interest

of 5.0% per year and principal payable in annual installments.

Installments ranging from $2,010 to $5,965 beginning October 2032,

including unamortized original issue premium of $5,923 in 2023

and $6,249 in 2022 60012 60459

o : : - 152,967 158,171
Less unamortized bond issuance costs (1,298) . (1,415)
Less cutrent portion (6.144) (4.147)
$145,525 $152,609

(
In March 2020 the Hospital entered into a $12,520 note payable agreernent (2020A note) with a lender

to advance refund $11,780 of the Series 2011 NHHEFA Hospital Revenue Bonds. No'amounts of the
Series 2011 advance refunded bonds remained outstanding as of September 30, 2023 and 2022.

In March 2020 the Hospital entered into a $36,582 note payable agreement (2020B note) with a lender
to advance refund the Series 2013A NHHEFA Hospital Revenue Bonds. As of September 30, 2022
$33,785 of the Series 2013A advance refunded bonds, which were considered extinguished for purposes
of these consolidated financial statements, remained outstanding. No amounts of the Series 2013A
advance refunded bonds remained outstanding as of September 30,'2023. In conjunction with the
issuance of the 2020B note, in order to further reduce debt service obhgatxons, the Hospital, NHHEFA
and the lender entered into a forward purchase agreement Under the forward purchase agreement, the
Hospital had the option to request NHHEFA to issue tax-exempt revenue bonds on or after July 3, 2022
to refinance the 2020B note. The Hospital exercised this option on July 6, 2022, which resulted in the
interest rate decreasing from 2.26% to 1.84%.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2023 and 2022

(In thousands)

Long-Term Debt (Continued)

In December 2017, $62,004 (including an original issue premium of $7,794) of NHHEFA Revenue
Bonds, Concord Hospital Issue, Series 2017, were issued to pay for the construction of a new medical
office building. In addition, the Series 2017 Bonds reimbursed the Hospital for capital expenditures
incurred in association with the construction of a parking garage and the construction of a medical office
building, as well as routine capital expenditures.

Substantially all the property and equipment relating to the aforementioned constructlon and renovatlon
projects, as well as subsequent property and equipment additions thereto, are pledged as collateral for
all outstanding long-term debt. In addition, the gross receipts of the Hospital, CH-Laconia and CH-_
Franklin are also pledged as collateral for all outstanding long-term debt. CH-Laconia and CH-Franklin
also pledge gross receipts as collateral for the outstanding Series 2021A Revenue Bonds. The most
restrictive financial covenants require a 1.10 to 1.0 ratio of aggregate income avallable for debt service
to total annual debt service and a day's cash on hand ratio of 75 days. The System was in compllance
~with its debt covenants at September 30, 2023 and 2022,

The obligations of the Hospital under the above bond indentures are guaranteed by the Hospltal CH-
Lacenia and CH-Franklin:and are not guaranteed by any of the subsidiaries or affiliated eatities. '

Interest paid on long-term debt amounted to $5,215 and $5 531 for the years ended September 30 2023
and 2022, respectively. .

The aggregate principal payments on long-term debt for the next five fiscal years endmg September 30
and thereafter are as follows:

2024 : $ 6,144

2025 4455
2026 - 5,181
2027 6,949 -
2028 4516
Thereafter : 113,580 -
$140,825
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Commitments and Contingencies

Malpractice Loss Conlingencies

The System insures its medical malpractice risks through GSIE, a multiprovider captive insurance
company. As discussed in Note 1, during 2022, GSIE began the process of winding down operatlons
and was replaced with CHIG. .

- GSIE and CHIG provide claims-made medical stop loss coverage to their subscriber health systems
Subsequent to December 31, 2020, the System is the sole remalmng subscriber of GSIE. ‘The System is
also the only subscriber of CHIG. GSIE and CHIG purchase reinsurance from three reinsurers to limit
potential exposure to the System. The reinsurance policies in place are subject to renewal on January 1,
2024, and, after the System's primary retained layer of $2 million (GSIE) and $3 million (CHIG) per
occurrence and $12 million aggregate, cover up to $25 million per occurrence and aggregate per annum.
The failure of reinsurers to honor their obligations could result in additional losses to GSIE and CHIG,
and those losses could be significant to GSIE, CHIG and the System. '

. The reserve for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses and the rélated reinsurance recoverables
includes case basis estimates of reported losses, plus supplemental reserves for incurred but not reported

-losses (IBNR) calculated based upon loss projections utilizing historical and industry data. An
independent consulting actuary is involved in establishing this reserve and the related reinsurance:
recoverables. Management of the System believes that GSIE's and CHIG's aggregate reserve for unpaid
losses and loss adjustment expenses and related reinsurance recoverables at year-end represent its best
estimate, based on the available data, of the amount necessary to cover the ultimate cost of losses;
however, because of the nature of the insured risks and limited historical experience, actual loss
experience may not conform to the assumptions used in deten'mnmg the estimated amounts for such
liability and corresponding asset at the consolidated balance sheet date. Accordingly, the ultimate
liability and corresponding asset could be significantly in excess of or less than the amount indicated in
these consolidated financial statements. As adjustments to these estimates become necessary, such
adjustments are reflected in current year operations. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers have been
reduced to their net realizable value.

At September 30, 2023, there were no known malpractice claims outstanding for the System, which, in
the opinion of management will be settled for amounts in excess of insurance coverage, nor were there
any unasserted claims or incidents which require loss accruals. The System has established reserves for
unpaid claim amounts for Hospital and Physician Professional Liability and General Liability reported
claims and for unreported claims for incidents that have been incurred but not reported. The amounts of
the reserves total $17,690 and $20,253 at September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and are reflected
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets within reserves for insurance. The possibility exists,
as a normal risk of doing business, that malpractice claims in excess of insurance coverage may be
asserted against the System.
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_ CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2023 and 2022

(In thousands)

Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

In accordance with ASU No. 2010-24, "Health Care Entities" (Topic 954): Presentation of Insurance
Claims and Related Insurance Recoveries, at September 30, 2023 and 2022, the System recorded a’
liability of approximately $3,100 and- $3,300, respectively related to estimated ‘professional liability
losses. At September 30, 2023 and 2022, the System also recorded a receivable of $3,100 and $3,300,
respectively, related to estimated recoveries under insurance coverage for recoveries of the potential
losses. These amounts are included in reserve for insurance ($3,100 at September 30, 2023 and $3,300
at September 30, 2022), and other assets (53,100 at September 30, 2023 and $3,300 at September 30,
2022), respectively, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. ‘

Workers' Compensation

The System maintains workers' compensation insurance under a self-insurance plan. The plan offers,
among other provisions, certain specific and aggregate stop-loss coverage to protect the System against
excessive losses. The System has employedindependent actuaries to estimate the ultimate costs, if any,
of the settlement of such claims. -Accrued workers' compensation losses of $4,061 and $3,888 at
September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, are recorded within accounts payable and accrued expenses
in the accompanying consolidated balance: sheets and have been discounted at 3% (both years) and, in
managementls opinion, provide an adequate reserve for loss contingencies. A trustee held fund has been
established as a reserve under the plan. Assets held in trust totaled $2,967 and $2,501 at September 30,
2023 and 2022, respectively, and are included in assets whose use is limited or restricted in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. '

)

Litigation

The System is involved in litigation and regulatory investigations arising in the ordinary course of
business. After consultation with legal counsel, management estimates that these matters will be
resolved without material adverse effect on the System's financial position, results of operations or cash
flows.

Health Insurance

The System has a self-funded health insurance plan. The plan is administered by an insurance company
which assists in determining the current funding requirements of participants-under the terms of the plan
and the liability for claims and assessments that would be payable at any given point in time. The System
recognizes revenue for services provided to employees of the System during the year. The System is
insured above a stop-loss amount of $550 on individual claims. Estimated unpaid claims, and those
claims incurred but not reported at September 30, 2023 and 2022, have been recorded as a liability of
$13,631 and $13,286, respectively, and are reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets -

within accounts payable and accrued expenses. :
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- CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Net Asséts With Donor Res_tﬁctions '

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes at September 30:

022

- 2023 2022
Purpose restriction: N
Health education and program services $18,770 $18,991
*Capital acquisitions ' 441. 610
Indigent care : o 83 © 116
Pledges receivable with stipulated y
purpose and/or time restrictions 575 391
' 19,869 20,108
Perpetual in nature:
Health education and program services . . 20,859 20,225
Capital acquisitions 803 803
Indigent care 2,105 2,105
Annuities to be held in perpetuity , . 458 273
' 024225 23406
$43,514

Total net assets with donor restrictions _ ' $44,094
Baﬁenf Service Revenue

for the years ended September 30:

An estimated breakdown of patient service revenue for the System by 1 maJor payor sources is as follows

2023 2022
Private payor (includes coinsurance and deductibles) - $388,492 §391,300
Medicare : 282,111 276,967
- Medicaid . ' . 34,880 40,340
- Self-pay ' v » 275 789
§705.758 $709.396
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

11. Functional Expenses

The System provides general health care services to residents within its geographic location.  Expenses
related to providing these services are as follows for the years ended September 30:

Health General and Fund-

Services Administrative  raising Total

2023 '
Salaries and wages $316,143 $ 60,492 $ 574 $377,209
Employee benefits 68,381 13,086 124 81,591
Supplies and other 131,206 21,241 188 152,635
Purchased services 37,677 - 19,896 T 223 57,796
Professional fees 17,021 - - 17,021
Depreciation and amortization 18,310 8,692 289 . 27,291
Medicaid enhancement tax 32,647 - - 32,647
Interest _2.868 _ 1,362 , 45 4,275

$624.253 $124,769 $1443  $750465
2022
Salaries and wages $320,669 $ 59,597 $ 580 $380,846
Employee benefits 71,767 14,455 - 141 92,363
Supplies and other 135,008 21,486 180 156,674
Purchased services 33,227 17,988 177 51,392
Professional fees 16,495 3 - 16,498
Depreciation and amortization 19,424 9,222 307 28,953
Medicaid enhancement tax 32,035 - : - 32,035
Interest : v 3.065 1,455 48 4,568

$637,690 $124,206 $1433  $763.329

The consolidated financial statements report certain expense categories that are attributable to more than
one healthcare service or support function. Therefore, these expenses require an allocation on a
reasonable basis that is consistently applied. Costs not directly attributable to a function, such as
depreciation and interest, are allocated to a function based on square footage. Supporting activities that
are not directly identifiable with one or more healthcare programs are classified as general and
administrative. If it is impossible or impractical to make.a direct identification, allocation of the
expenses were made according to management's estimates. Employee benefits are allocated in
accordance with the ratio of salaries and wages of the functional classes. Specifically identifiable costs
are assigned to the function which they are identified to. : ‘
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES -
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2023 and 2022

. (In thousands)

Charity Care and Community Benefits (Unaudited).

The System maintains records to identify and monitor the level of charity care it provides. The System
provides traditional charity care, as well as other forms of community benefits. The estimated cost of
all such benefits provided is as follows for the years ended September 30:

2023 2022

Government sponsored healthcare $35,353 $36,515
Community health services , 1,507 1,281
Health professions education : 2,801 2,038
Subsidized health services 7 52,622 50,929
Research , 306 - 131
Financial contributions . 1,405 = 1,440
Community benefit operations " 68 -89
Community building activities 786 414
Charity care costs (see Note 1) , 3.465 3,389

$98313 $95.226

The System incurred estimated costs for services to Medicare patients in excess of the payment from this

_program of $82,230 and $78,563 in 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk

" The System grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents of southern

New Hampshire and are insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of gross receivables from
patients and third-party payors as of September 30 is as follows:

)

2023 2022
Patients _ : 9% 8%
Medicare , 38 42
Anthem Blue Cross 19 18
“Cigna » -3 3
Medicaid ' 10 11
Commercial v 19 16
Workers' compensation o2 _2
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' CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC.. AND SUBSIDIARIES -
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Volunteer 7_S_e‘rvicve_s (Unau"d‘ite_d),

Total volunteer service hours received by the System were approximately 25,000 and 23,000 in 2023
and 2022, respectively. The volunteers provide various nonspecialized services to the System, none of
which has been recognized as revenue or expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations. - v o

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value of a financial instrument-is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In
determining fair value, the System uses various methods including market, income and cost approaches.

Based on these approaches, the System often utilizes certain assumptions that market participants would
use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and or the risks inherent in the
inputs to the valuation technique. These inputs can be readily observable, market corroborated, or
generally unobservable mputs The System utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. Based on the observability of the inputs
used in the valuation techmquec the System is required to provide the following information according

 to the fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy ranks the quality and reliability of the information

used to determine fair values. Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value will be classified and
disclosed in one of the following three categories: :

Level 1 — Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in active exchange markets, such as the New
York Stock Exchange. Level 1 also includes U.S. Treasury and federal agency securities and federal
agency mortgage-backed securities, which are traded by dealers-or brokers in active markets.
Valuations are obtained from readily avallable pricing sources for market transactions involving
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in less active dealer or broker markets.
Vatuations are obtained from third party pricing services for identical or similar assets or liabilities.

Level 3 — Valuations for assets and liabilities that are derived from other valuation methodologies,
including option pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques, and not based
on market exchange, dealer or broker traded transactions. Level 3 valuations incorporate certain
assumptions and projections in determining the fair value assigned to such assets or liabilities.

" In determining the appropriate levels, the System performs a detailed analysis of the assets and Tliabilities.

There have been no changes in the methodologies used at September 30, 2023 and 2022. In accordance
with ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements, certain investments that are measured using the net value per
share practical expedient have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy.

i
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
' NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

The following presents the balances of assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at September 30:

Level 1 Level2 Level 3 ~ Total

2023
Cash and cash equivalents v $78801 $ - § - $ 78801

" Fixed income securities - 25,471 10,177 - 35,648 -
Marketable equity and other securities ‘ 163,551 - - 163,551
Inflation-protected securities and other ) 16,078 - - 16,078
Trust funds administered by others - - 10208 _10.208

5283901 $10,177 $10208 304,286

Funds measured at net asset value:

Marketable equity and other securities : ' 205.295
$509,581

202 .
Cash and cash equivalents $34294 § - § - 8§ 34294
Fixed income securities ‘ 35,203 10,645 - 45,848

. Marketable equity and other securities 136,062 - - 136,062
Inflation-protected securities and other 15,760 - - 15,760
Trust funds administered by others - - . _9.836 9.836

$221319 $10645 $ 9836 241,800

Funds measured at net asset value: _ )
Marketable equity and other securities 203,040

$444.840

In addition, for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, there are ggrtéin investments totaling
$4,172 which are appropriately being carried at cost.

The System's Level 3 investments consist of funds administered by others. The fair value measurement
is based on significant unobservable inputs. ’

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit and overall market
volatility. As such, it is reasonably possible that changes in the fair value of investments will occur in

- the near term and that such_changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets and statements of operations. :
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022

(In thousands)

Fair Value Mea:surements (Conﬁnued:}

A reconciliation of the fair value measurements using significant unobservab]e inputs (Level 3)is as
follows for 2023 and 2022:

Balance at September 30, 2021

Net realized and unrealized losses

Balance at September 30, 2022

Net realized and unrealized gains

Balance at September 30, 2023

Trust Funds
Administered
_byOthers _

$12,341
(2.505)
9,836

372
$10.208

The tab1§ below sets forth additional disclosures for investment funde (other than mutual funds) valued
based on net asset value to further understand the nature and risk of the investments by category:

Unfunded
Commit-
ments.

Fair
- Value
September 30, 2023:
Funds-of-funds $22,628
Funds-of-funds 12,007
Funds-of-funds 44,264
Funds-of-funds 13,621
Funds-of-funds 4,657
Funds-of-funds 47,870
Collective trust funds 7,032
Collective trust funds 7,641
Collective trust funds 45,575
September 30, 2022:
Funds-of-funds $18,489
Funds-of-funds 9,645
Funds-of-funds 53,791
Funds-of-funds 10,329
Funds-of-funds 8,250
Funds-of-funds 42,296
Collective trust funds 12,582
Collective trust funds 7,008
Collective trust funds 40,650

*

Redemption

Frequency.

Semi-monthly
Monthly
Quarterly .
Annual
Semi-annual
Miquid

Daily

Weekly
Monthly

Semi-monthly
Monthly
Quarterly
Annual
Semi-annual
Iiquid

Daily

Weekly
Monthly

Redémption .
Notice
. _Period

5 days

15 days

45 — 65 days**
60 - 90 days
60 days*

N/A

10 days

10 days

6— 10 days

5 days

15 days

45 — 65 days**
90 days '
60 days*

- N/A

10 days
10 days
6 — 10 days

Limited to 25% of the investment balance at each redemption. A full redemption of this fund is in
progress as of September 30, 2023.
** Ope investment has a one-year lock period and redemption of one investment is limited to 12.5% of
the investment balance at each redemption.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Fixed Income-,Securities

The primary purpose of fixed income investments is to provide a highly predlctable and dependable

- source of income, preserve capital, and reduce the volatility of the total portfolio and hedge against the

risk of deflation or protracted economic contraction.

" Marketable Equity.and Other Securities.

The primary purpose of marketable equity investments is to provide appreciation of principal and growth
of income with the recognition that this requires the assumption of greater market volatility and risk of-
loss. The total marketable equity portion of the portfolio will be broadly diversified according to
economic sector, industry, number of holdings and other characteristics including style and
capitalization. The System may employ multiple equity investment managers, each of whom may have
distinct investment styles. Accordingly, while each manager's portfolio may not be fully diversified, it
is expected that the combined equity portfolio will be broadly diversified.

Tl.e System invests in other securities that are considered alternative investments that ¢ onsist of limited
partnership interests in investment funds, which, in turn, invest in diversified portfolios predominantly
comprised of equity and fixed income securities, as well as options, futures contracts, and some other
less liquid investments. Management has approved procedures pursuant to the methods in which the
System values these investments at fair value, which ordinarily will be the amount equal to the pro-rata

interest in the net assets of the limited partnership, as such value is supplied by, or on behalf of, each

investment from time to time, usually monthly and/or quarterly by the investment manager. Collective
trust funds are generally valued based on the proportionate share of total fund net assets.

System management is responsible for the fair value measurements of investments reported in the
consolidated financial statements. Such amounts are generally determined using audited financial
statements of the funds and/or recently settled transactions and is estimated using the net asset value per
share of the fund. Because of inherent uncertainty of valuation of certain alternative investments, the
estimate of the fund manager or general partner may differ from actual values, and differences could be
significant. Management believes that reported fair values of its alternative investments at the balance
sheet dates are reasonable.

The System has committed to invest up to $73,183 with various investment managers, and had funded
$33,856 of that commitment as of September 30, 2023. As these investments are made, the System
reallocates resources from its current investments resulting in an asset allocation shift within the
investment pool.

Inflation-Protected Securities

The primary purpose of inflation-protected securities is to provide protection against the negative effects
of inflation. '
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands)

Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Fair Value of Other Financial Instruments - |

Other financial instruments consist of accounts and pledges receivable, accounts payable and accrued
expenses, estimated third-party payor settlements, and long-term debt and notes payable. The fair value
of all financial instruments other than long-term debt and notes payable approximates their relative book
values as these financial instruments have short-term maturities or are recorded at amounts that
approximate fair value.

Leases

Adoption of ASC Topic 842, Leases [ASC 842)

The System has various leases relative to its office and offsite locations. ASC 842 became effective for
the System on October 1, 2022 and was adopted using the modified retrospective method for all leases
that had commenced as of the effective date, 2long with certain available practical expedients. The
System elected to recc.gnize any effects of applying the new standard as a cumulative-effect- adjustment
to the opening balance of net assets in the period of adoption, which there were none. In addition, the
System -¢elected to adopt the package of practical expedients permitted under the transition guidance
within the new standard. The practical expedient package applied to leases that commenced prior to the
effective date of the new standard and permits a reporting entity not to: i) reassess whether any expired
or existing contracts are or contain leases, ii) reassess the historical lease classification for any expired
or existing leases, and iii) reassess initial direct costs for any existing leases. The reporting results for

- fiscal year 2023 reflect the application of ASC 842 guidance while the historical results for fiscal year

2022 were prepared under the guidance of ASC 840. The adoption of the new standard did not have a
significant impact upon the System's consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets and
cash flows. The adoption of the new standard resulted in the following impact: the recording of right-
of-use assets and corresponding lease liabilities pertaining to the System s operatmg leases on the
accompanying 2023 éonsohdated balance sheet. -

Operatmg lease right-of-use assets and operatlng lease hab1ht1es are reported in the Systems 2023
consolidated balance sheet as follows:

Operating lease right-of-use assets B ) , $26252
Current portion of operating lease liabilities $ 5,406
Operating lease liabilities, less current portion 21,091
Total operatmg lease liabilities ‘ $ QAL’Z

During the year ended September 30, 2023, the total lease cost associated with the System s operatmg
leases was $6,319.
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CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2023 and 2022

~ (In thousands)

Leases.(Continued)

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Supplemental‘ cash flow information is as follows for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023:

Operating leases — operating cash flows (fixed payments) $ 6,073
Operating leases - right-of-use assets and operating lease : -
liabilities recorded upon adoption of ASU 842 : 28,636
Operating leases - right-of-use assets obtained in exchange 7
for new operating lease liabilities : ' 2,876

Lease Term and Discount Rate
Lease term and discount rate are as follows for the fiscal year ended Septeniber 30, 2023:

Wexghted-average remaining lease term (in years) 6.97
Welghted-average discount rate : 3. 9]%

As of September 30, 2023, maturities of operating lease llabxhnec for each of the followmg five years
were as follows:

2024 : : : § 6,324

2025 5,183
2026 , © 4,091
2027 : ‘ 3,175
- 2028 . 3,001
Thereafter - 8.588
Total minimum future lease payments K . 30,452
Less imputed interest . ‘ (3.955)
Total lease liabilities ’ , $26,497

As of September 30, 2022, future minimum lease payments prepared under the previous gu]dance of
ASC 840 were as follows:

2023 : : . $ 8,078

2024 : ' 7,038
2025 ' - 5,590
2026 3,333
2027 g o 2,967
Thereafter 10,826

. ’/ ) )
Rent expehse was $9,532 for the year ended September 30, 2022.

-~
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KEY PERSONNEL

Danny Turmel, RTR (CT)
Director of Radlology at Concord Hospltal--Concord Laconia, Franklin

Dan has been in the field of Radiology for 29+ years. He holds a Bachelors Degree in Healthcare
Administration. He has 17+ years in a direct leadership role in hospital based settings, with 8 of those
years serving as the Director of Radiology in two different institutions. Dan has been the Director of
Radiology at Concord Hospital since May of 2021. He focuses on continuous improvement that drives
productivity, operational efficiencies.and financial stewardship with the aim of positive customer service:

Dan Turmel RTR (CT)
Director of Radiology
603-227-7000 ext. 7262
Concord 'Hospital

250 Pleasant St.
Concord, NH 03301

dturmel@crhc.org

Debra Willey, MBA, MT{(ASCP)

Director of Laboratory Services, Concord Hospital - Concord

Debra Willey started working at Concord Hospital in 1989 as a new graduate from the University of New Hampshnre. g
Since then, Debra has held multiple leadership roles in the Laboratory, lncludlng Director, since 2008. The Laboratory
has serviced Nursing Homes; Acute Care Facilities and Rehabilitation Facilities actively since 1997 and prides itself on
its strong commitment to customer service.

Debra Willey, MBA, MT(ASCP)
Director of Laboratory Services
Concord Hospital / Concord
603-227-7000 x 4614

dwilley@crhc.org

Kerri Scribner OTR/L, MBA \ :
Director of Inpatient Rehabilitation Services and Outpatient Speech Language Pathology at Concord
Hospital-Concord/Laconia/Franklin

Kerri has served as the Director ofRehabiIitatiye Servicés at all 3 hospitals in the Concord Hospital Health
System since 2020 and has been with Concord Hospital since 2012. She has been a practicing
Occupational therapist for 27 + years earning a BS in Science/Occupational Therapy from University of
New Hampshire in 1997 and a MBA from New England College in 2012. An experienced and visionary
leader in acute care PT, OT and SLP.as well as leading Outpatient Adult and Pediatric SLP who thnves ina
fast-paced environment that values high quality patient care and system thinking. :
250 Pleasant St Suite 5073

Concord, NH 03301

603-227-7000.ext.2631

kscribne@crhc.org




New'H_am'pshire'Veterans Home

KEY PERSONNEL

~ List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions are not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: db}?@f{l Hospital.Inc.. Concord Hospital — Laconia & Concord Hospital - Franklin

ANNUAL

- ANNUAL

“Debra Willey

NAME JOB TITLE AMOUNT
PAID FROM . SALARY
 THIS \
Danny Turmel | Director-of Radiology $0.007  $180,000.
_ T I Director of Inpatient Rehabilitationand =~ | Ty B
| Kerri Scribner “ Outpatient Speech Language Pathology. $0.00 $143,000:
Director of Laboratory Services . | $0.00]

$163,000




